
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 

121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 

State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 

 
 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING August 13, 2018 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION – Pastor David Soliday, Delaware Unitarian Universalist 

Fellowship Church 
 

3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Regular Meeting of Council 

held on July 23, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Finance Committee 
meeting held on July 11, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Historic Preservation 

Commission meeting held on June 27, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

C.  Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Records Commission 
meeting held on December 13, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.  

D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Airport Commission 

meeting held on April 19, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
E. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 

meeting held on July 18, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
F.  Establish August 27, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 

public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-69, an 

ordinance approving a Rezoning Amendment request by Joshua 



2 
 

Morgan Construction LLC, at 1354 SR 521 (parcels 519-441-02-
002-000, 519-441-02-003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) from A-1 

(Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential District) on 
approximately 2.091 acres.  

G. Establish August 27, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-70, an 
ordinance for Metro Development LLC, for approval of a Rezoning 

Amendment for the Seattle House Apartments (240 Units) on 
approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-001)from R-6 
(Multi-Family Residential District) and B-3 Community Business 

District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
and located on the north side of US 36/27 and the south side of 

Bowtown Road just east of the Chesrown Auto Storage Lot and 
Ordinance No. 18-71, an ordinance for Metro Development LLC, 
for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of 

a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for 
the Seattle House Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 

acres (parcels 519-444-01-001-001) and located on the north side 
of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown Auto Storage Lot. 

H. Establish August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-73, an 
ordinance for Metro Development LLC, for approval of a Rezoning 

Amendment for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 Unites) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-

442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) to R-
6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential with a Planned Mixed Use overlay 
District) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west 

of Village Gate Apartments and Ordinance No. 18-74, an 
ordinance for Metro Development LLC, for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned 

Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Highpoint 
Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres 

(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and 
located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village 
Gate Apartments. 

 I. Establish September 10, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for 
a public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-77, an 

ordinance determining that the petition for the establishment of 
the Terra Alta Community Authority complies as to form and 
substance with the requirements of Section 349.03 of the Ohio 

Revised Code and to fix a date and place for a public hearing on 
that petition, and declaring an emergency.    

  



3 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
A. Access Delaware Update – Marie Keister, President, MurphyEpson 

 
7. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-64, an ordinance approving a Conditional Use Permit request by N & 
G Takhar Oil for a renovation and expansion of the Marathon Gas 
Station at 473 South Sandusky Street on approximately 0.80 acres on 

property zoned B-3 (Community Business District).  
 
8. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  
9. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
10. CONSIDERATION OF LIQUOR PERMIT TREX  

A. Mystic Golf & Games LLC, 1159 Columbus Pike, Delaware, Ohio 

43015.  Permit Class: D2 
 

11. FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-50, an ordinance for Manos 
Properties for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (Parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-

04-039-002) from PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) and  R-3 
(One-Family Residential District) to PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) at 235 and 239 West William Street.   

 
12. FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-51, an ordinance for Manos 

Properties for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Wesleyan Inn on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 

519-433-04-005-000 and 5519-433-04-039-002) at 235 and 239 West 
William Street.  

 

13.  FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-52, an ordinance for Manos 
Properties for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 

Wesleyan Inn on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 
and 519-433-04-039-002) on property zoned PO/I and R-3 PMU 
(Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 and 239 West William Street. 

  
14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-65, an ordinance approving a 

Final Development Plan request by Glenross North LLC, for Glenross 
North Sections 2-4 containing 127 single family lots on approximately 
65.81 acres located just east of Glenn Parkway and north of the Glenross 

Golf Club on property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District).  

 



4 
 

15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-66, an ordinance approving a 
Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North LLC, for Glenross North 

Section 2 containing 48 single family lots on approximately 28.726 acres 
on property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential with a Planned 

Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on Irvine Loop, Delano Drive, 
Sycamore Lane, Irvine Way and Blackmore Drive.  

 

16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-67, an ordinance approving a 
Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North LLC, for Glenross North 
Section 3 containing 44 single family lots on approximately 17.930 acres 

on property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on Blackmore Drive, Windley 

Court and Melick Drive.  
 
17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-68, an ordinance approving a 

Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North LLC, for Glenross North 
Section 4 containing 35 single family lots on approximately 19.157 acres 

on property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on Melick Drive and Irvine Way.  

 

18.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-69, an ordinance approving a 
Rezoning Amendment request by Joshua Morgan Construction LLC, at 
1354 SR521 (parcels 519-441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-003-000 & 519-

441-02-004-000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-Family 
Residential District) on approximately 2.091 acres.  

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-70, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle 

House Apartments (240 Units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 
519-444-01-001-001)from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-
3 Community Business District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use 

Overlay District) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the 
south side of Bowtown Road just east of the Chesrown Auto Storage Lot.  

 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-71, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 

placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Seattle House Apartments (240 units) on 

approximately 24.212 acres (parcels 519-444-01-001-001) and located 
on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just 
east of the Chesrown Auto Storage Lot.  

 
21. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-72, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 



5 
 

Seattle House Apartments 9240 Units) on approximately 24.212 acres 
(parcel 519-444-01-001-001) zoned R-6 and B-3 PMU (Multi-Family 

Residential District and Community Business District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of US 36/37 

and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the Chesrown Auto 
Storage Lot.  

 

22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-73, an ordinance for Metro 
Development LLC, for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 Units) on approximately 16.70 acres 

(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-
Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential with a 

Planned Mixed Use overlay District) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments.  

 

23. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-74, an ordinance for Metro 
Development LLC, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 

placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-

10-021-000) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of 
Village Gate Apartments.  

 

24. CONSIDERATION Ordinance No. 18-75, an ordinance for Metro 
Development LLC, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 

Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres 
(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU 
(Multi-Family Residential with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and 

located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments.  

 

25. CONSIDERATION Ordinance No. 18-76, an ordinance supplementing the 
2018 appropriations ordinance to provide additional funding for the 

renovation of City Hall and the City Hall Annex and to make 
improvements to the parking lot east of the City Hall Annex building.   

 

26. CONSIDERATION Ordinance No. 18-77, an ordinance determining that 
the petition for the establishment of the Terra Alta Community Authority 

complies as to form and substance with the requirements of Section 
349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code and to fix a date and place for a public 
hearing on that petition, and declaring an emergency.   

 
27. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-78, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2018 appropriations ordinance to provide funding to complete a trail 



6 
 

segment on Cheshire Rd.  
 

26. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

27. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
28. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

 



















1 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
MOTION SUMMARY 

June 27, 2018 
 

ITEM 1.  Roll Call 
 

Mr. Coleman called the Historic Preservation Commission meeting to order at 
7:00 p.m.   
 
Members Present: Joe Coleman, Erinn Nicley, Stephanie Van Gundy, and 
Councilman Kyle Rohrer 
 
Members Absent:  Vice-Chairman Mark Hatten, Sherry Riviera, and Cara Hering 
 
Staff Present: Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager and Dave Efland, Planning 
and Community Development Director 
 
Motion to Excuse:  Mr. Coleman motioned to excuse Vice-Chairman Mark 
Hatten, Sherry Riviera, and Cara Hering, seconded by Councilman Rohrer.  
Motion approved by a 4-0 vote.  
 
ITEM 2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
A. Chairperson 
B. Vice-Chairperson 
 
The Commission requested to wait to elect a Chair and Vice-Chair until the 
absent members are present.  The Commission was in agreement to elect an 
acting Chairperson for the June 27, 2018 meeting.   
 
Motion:  Mr. Nicley motioned to appoint Mr. Coleman as Acting Chairperson for 
the June 27, 2018 Historic Preservation Commission, seconded by Councilman 
Rohrer.  Motion approved by a 4-0 vote.  
 
ITEM 3. APPROVAL OF MOTION SUMMARY of the Historic Preservation 
Commission meeting held on February 28, 2018 as recorded and transcribed. 
 
Motion:  Mr. Nicley motioned to approve the Motion Summary of the Historic 
Preservation Commission meeting held on February 28, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed, seconded by Councilman Rohrer. Motion approved a by 4-0 vote.  
 
ITEM 4.  REGULAR BUSINESS 
A. 2018-0086: A request by The Flying Pig Ale House for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for a temporary sidewalk vestibule for 12 South 
Sandusky Street which is zoned B-2 (Central Business District) and 
located in the Downtown Core Sub-District of the Downtown Historic 
District Overlay. (Tabled January 24, 2018). 





























8/8/2018

1

Date

Transportation Research & 
Engagement Findings

Presented by:

Marie Keister, AICP, APR
MurphyEpson

August 13, 2018

• Introduction/purpose of research and engagement

• Methodology

• Findings: Key takeaways

• Recommendations based on community input

Overview



8/8/2018

2

Introduction/Purpose

• Seek input from community leaders, officials, residents on 
transportation challenges

• Understand why 2016 levy failed

• Hear what’s important to public

• Build trust, transparency between city and residents

• Provide future direction taking community input into account

• Meet transportation needs in ways that are smart and cost-effective

Why Access Delaware?



8/8/2018

3

Methodology

Residents, leaders, officials

• Age range 25 to 74   

• Years in Delaware 15 (avg.) 

• Neighborhoods Various

• Work/live in Delaware:  52% (avg.)

Who We Talked To



8/8/2018

4

We engaged the community

• March 22 - May 28, 2018

We engaged them 3 ways

• Key influencer interviews

• Community forums

• Online survey

When and How

1000+ People Were Heard in 
Qualitative Conversations!

How Many



8/8/2018

5

Findings: Key Takeaways

Key Takeaways

a. Delaware residents/workers mostly drive to get around

• But also appreciate being able to take DATA Bus, walk 
and bicycle

b. Delaware roads need some work

• 65% believe roads could be better maintained

c. Driving in Delaware can be a challenge

• Congestion, roads that need maintenance, need for 
safer streets 



8/8/2018

6

d. Reasons 2016 levy failed 

• At least half of those engaged voted for it
• Didn’t want permanent tax
• Didn’t feel it was needed for roads
• Pay income taxes 2 times: in Delaware and where they work
• Concern about how funds are spent, accountability
• Vague, confusing, not well-explained

Key Takeaways

e. Priorities: maintaining and improving roadways

• Reducing congestion in key areas
• Improving safety

f. Public asked for increased communication

• Want to give input on transportation priorities
• Surveys, public meetings, public education

Key Takeaways



8/8/2018

7

Recommendations

• City says resources are thin, but public still sees projects 
moving forward, doesn’t understand what and why funding 
gaps exist

• Public won’t support fixing a problem they don’t believe exists

Make Stronger Case for 
Transportation Investment Needs



8/8/2018

8

Explain 

• Why adding more lanes may not solve congestion

• Why the “obvious” choice is not always the wisest one

• Trade-offs involved

• How city prioritizes needs

• How funding works – why it may seem like there IS enough money 
to fix roads when there is not enough sustainable funding

Communicate Best Practices in 
Transportation Planning & Engineering

• General distrust of government

• City must constantly prove itself through transparency, inclusiveness 
and education

− Demonstrate how the City has been conservative, good stewards of 
public funds

− Newsletters and social media are an appreciated resource

Build Trust and Understanding



8/8/2018

9

• Talk to the public early and often

• Solicit/respond to public input through: 

− Letters, emails, quarterly public forums 

− Public meetings at key transportation project milestones

− Surveys, social media

− Convene community task force to identify transportation/infrastructure 
needs, review current funding strategies, make recommendations 
to fill gaps

Build Trust and Understanding

• Findings reported to public

• Access Delaware page on website

• Public meeting for upcoming projects

Next Steps



8/8/2018

10

Questions/Thoughts?

Thank you!



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  7    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-64    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       August 13, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST BY N & 
G TAKHAR OIL LLC FOR A RENOVATION AND EXPANSION OF THE 
MARATHON GAS STATION AT 473 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.80 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT).     
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on July 18, 
2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-64 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT REQUEST BY N & G TAKHAR OIL LLC FOR A 
RENOVATION AND EXPANSION OF THE MARATHON 
GAS STATION AT 473 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.80 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on July 18, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit request by Takhar Oil LLC., 
for a Renovation and Expansion of the Marathon Gas Station at 473 South 
Sandusky Street on approximately 0.80 acres on property zoned B-3 (Community 
Business District) (2018-1462). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit request by Takhar Oil LLC., 
for a Conditional Use Permit for a Renovation and Expansion of the Marathon Gas 
Station at 473 South Sandusky Street on approximately 0.80 acres on property 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District), is hereby confirmed, approved and 
accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. No overnight semi-truck parking shall be permitted within the subject 
development and the applicant shall be responsible for ensuring 
compliance of such. 

2. No inoperable vehicle(s) shall be permitted to remain on the property for 
more than 48 hours. 

3. Any outdoor merchandise (ice box, propone tanks, etc.) shall be located 
on the north or south side of the building with installation of low wall (2 
to 3 feet tall) as approved by staff to delineate the storage area and shield 
the “outside merchandise” from public right-of-way.   No movie boxes, 
ATM machines, etc., shall be allowed outside the building. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

























































 
 

 

 

Visit  
  

 

 

 

call 

 

fax 

 

click 

City Hall  —  1 south sandusky st  —  Delaware, oh 43015 740-203-1010 740-203-1024 www.delawareohio.net 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Tom Homan, City Manager 
                Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
FROM: Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
DATE: 7/30/2018 
RE:  Economic Development Related Transfer of Liquor Permit into Mystic Golf & Games, LLC 

 
This is intended to provide information related to a requested transfer of a liquor permit for Mystic Golf & 
Games, LLC (proposed to be located at 1159 Columbus Pike) as an economic development project (“TREX”) 
into Delaware.  
 
As you know, State law allows for the transfer of the ownership and location of liquor permits from one 
municipality to an economic development project located in another municipality in Ohio.  Transferring a 
permit to an economic development project in a new municipality is known as TREX. It is required that the 
new municipality acknowledge that the liquor permit will be transferred to an economic development 
project. 
 
This memorandum, and the information provided below is verification that the Mystic Golf & Games, LLC 
project is indeed an economic development project.  
 
The following economic development impact information has been provided to City staff by way of written 
information from the project owners, in addition to a follow-up conversation with the principal business 
owner David Sturman:  
 
• Estimated Investment (equipment, services, utilities, etc.):   $237,000  
• Total number of jobs to be created:   4 
• Estimated Annual Tax Collections: 
o Sales Tax:   $18,750 
o State Unemployment Tax:   $1,890 
o State Withholding Tax:   $3,414 
o Property Tax:  $11,715 
 
On the basis of this information, I recommend that the City Manager acknowledge, by signature on TREX 
application, that the Mystic Golf & Games, LLC project represents an economic development project within 
the City of Delaware. 

http://www.delawareohio.net/






 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:    R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

FROM:  David M. Efland, Planning & Community Development Director  

DATE:   Tuesday, August 7, 2018 

RE:    Wesleyan Inn Cases – UPDATE  

Below and attached are updates to the Wesleyan Inn cases pending before City Council. 

1. The Applicant and the City Engineering Division have been working on a revised access plan 
taking into account the public remarks regarding access, parking, and the like.  In summary, the 
revised plan would allow in-only access on the east side and in/out access to the proposed 
parking lot on the west side.  This configuration means that no parking bump-ins nor widening 
would likely have to occur on the north side of William St.  Improvements would be on the south 
side of William St. and preliminarily be contained to the frontage of applicant-controlled 
property and the Ohio Wesleyan property to the east.  This would allow safe, efficient, and 
effective access to the site and adequately account for William St. traffic.   
 

2. Questions related to Zoning – Some questions have been asked related to changing the R-3 
zoned lot to the immediate west of the Perkins home which is proposed for the parking lot for 
the Wesleyan Inn.  To that end, the following is offered for consideration: 

a. In summary, the PMU approach gives the City (1) more control of the current proposal 
than straight zoning, (2) more surety of outcome, and (3) better defensibility long term.  
In the opinion of Planning & Community Development Staff, following the PMU 
approach does not set a legal nor political precedent because it is a site and use specific 
analysis with many points of distinction from other proposals.  Using straight zoning 
techniques as described below would be more likely to result in both potential political 
and legal precedent in a case such as this as a result.  That is exactly why each proposed 
planned development is almost always unique and subject to its own circumstances and 
analysis, which is often complex and difficult.  It is, of course, impossible to stop a future 
applicant from asking for zone changes or their own consideration relative to their own 
project. 

b. The R-3 District is not proposed to be changed to a more intense use district, in fact the 
opposite is true.  The list of possible uses for this lot is proposed to be severely 
restricted from even that allowed under a base R-3 District.  This is coupled with a 
proposed requirement that a permanent covenant be placed upon this property to 



 
 

 

ensure that, as a matter of title, the use could only be open space or a parking lot in the 
future. 

c. The underlying PO/I District for the hotel itself and the R-3 District for the parking lot do 
not technically change with the proposed rezoning.  The PMU overlay is just that – an 
overlay that affords the City (and community) more control over the development than 
either district would or a straight zone change to another district to both properties 
would. 

d. The PMU approach ties the Development Plan directly to the zoning, making this a 
strong and potentially more defensible decision as a Final Development Plan may come 
forward or as circumstances may change long-term for the property.  In a typical 
development plan review process, the review is separated from the underlying zoning 
rights of the property. 

e. The Applicant could have brought forward a proposal to exercise rights afforded under 
Zoning Code Section 1161.04 Location of Spaces, which allows that where land is not 
available on the same lot for required off-street parking, the Planning Commission may 
modify the location of parking facilities to permit such facilities on another lot within 
300 feet walking distance of the building or use.  The proposed parking lot is within this 
distance requirement.  The Planning Commission has recommended approval of the 
PMU approach but was not specifically asked to consider Section 1161.04 consideration.  
Staff has recommended the much stronger (ultimately) PMU approach to the overall 
zoning and planning for the site for reasons given above and in the Staff report.  
However, in the absence of approval of the PMU, the Applicant could seek this 
consideration.  This would, in the opinion of staff, have a higher likelihood of setting 
potentially undesirable political and legal precedent for future cases here and in other 
Zoning Districts. 

f. Lastly, the Applicant could place a fairly large parking area on the R-3 zoned property 
today.  This would have to meet R-3 standards including lot coverage maximums, but 
could be allowed in the front, side, and rear yard areas past the front yard setback but 
within 3 ft. of any other lot line.  With a typical single family house this is not typically 
the outcome on a parcel but it could technically be allowable under the current code.  
Thus, the PMU provides greater setback, more landscaping, lower lighting levels, and 
greater surety of outcome while restricting future uses on this lot and therefore 
potential future impacts to the larger neighborhood area without a public zone change 
process and removal of the proposed land covenant. 

 



PR
O

PO
SE

D 
DR

IV
E

EXISTING EDGE
OF PAVEMENT

3.
0'

35.0'
50.0'

62.5'

50.0'

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
DR

IV
E

50.0'

END OF PROPOSED CURB
LINE/ROADWAY WIDENING

EDGE LINE

12
.0

'

12
.0

'

12
.0

'
10

.0
'

12
.0

'

4.
0'

12
.0

'
8.

0'

EDGE LINE AT 8' OFF
EXISTING CURB LINE

12
.0

'
10

.5
'

EDGE LINE

INTERSECTION OF 12'
EDGE LINE AND EXISTING

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
(BEGINNING OF

ROADWAY WIDENING)

200.0' TAPER (7.5' OFFSET, 40 MPH DESIGN SPEED)

7.
5'

EDGE LINE

15
.5

'
22

.5
'

12
.0

'

PROPOSED
CURB LINE

MANOS PROPERTYMANOS PROPERTY

CONTINUE TAPER SLIGHTLY TO
EAST AND MERGE WITH EXISTING

TAPER AREA PRIOR TO TURN LANES
AT INTERSECTION

42
.0

'

EXISTING
PAVEMENT
MARKINGS

MANOS
PROPERTY

EXISTING PARKING
RESTRICTIONS TO

REMAIN

PROPOSED SIGNAL
ADJUSTMENTS

PROPOSED ADA
CURB RAMP

RELOCATION

TREE LAWN, SIDEWALK
AND STAIRS TO BE
RELOCATED AS NEEDED

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

JOB NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

HORIZONTAL:

VERTICAL:

SHEET NO.:

E
-
8

1
1

6
7

E
L

M
A

S
I
A

N

N
I
C

H
O

L
A

S

PROF ES S
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

IN
EER

S

T

A

T

REG
IS

T
ER

ED

E

O
F

O

H

I

O

C
:
\
U

S
E

R
S

\
E

L
M

A
S

I
A

N
\
E

L
M

A
S

I
A

N
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
,
 
L
L
C

\
O

N
E

D
R

I
V

E
 
-
 
E

L
M

A
S

I
A

N
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
,
 
L
L
C

\
J
M

A
\
J
M

A
0
0
1
\
C

A
D

D
\
J
M

A
0
0
1
_
E

X
H

I
B

I
T

N
E

W
.
D

W
G

 
 
 
 
7
/
2
7
/
2
0
1
8
 
9
:
3
4
 
A

M

P
L

A
N

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 
B

Y
:

P
O

 
B

O
X

 
3

2
5

2

D
U

B
L

I
N

,
 
O

H
 
4

3
0

1
6

(
6

1
4

)
 
3

2
7

-
2

0
0

8

W
W

W
.
E

L
M

A
S

I
A

N
.
N

E
T

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

W
I
L

L
I
A

M
S

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
,
 
O

H
 
4

3
0

1
5

W
E

S
L

E
Y

A
N

 
I
N

N

JMA001

JULY, 2018

1" = 30'

N/A

1/1

PRELIMINARY - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FEET

0 30 60

SECTION A-A

SCALE: 1" = 20' HORIZONTAL

1" = 5' VERTICAL

R
I
G

H
T

-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

R
I
G

H
T

-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

EXISTING SIDEWALK

TO REMAIN

EXISTING SIDEWALK

TO BE RELOCATED

EXISTING TREE

LAWN TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE LAWN

TO BE RELOCATED

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

A

A

8' 10' 12'

38' EXISTING PAVEMENT WIDTH

42' PROPOSED PAVEMENT WIDTH

4'

12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 02°31'46" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 46°41'33" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 02°50'15" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
125.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 03°57'31" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
265.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 85°47'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
218.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-Story

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frame

AutoCAD SHX Text
#235

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-Story

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. WILLIAM ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
215.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACKTOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
256 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
256 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
238 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
253 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
243 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
239 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. WILLIAM ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
206 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
210 1/2 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
214 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
226 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
230 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
232 W WILLIAM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELIZABETH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
190 W WILLIAM ST



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-50    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIFTH    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       JUNE 25, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES 
(PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-04-002) FROM PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO PO/I AND R-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached Staff Report 
Letters Submitted by Public 
Market Study  
Response to Public Questions & Concerns from Plan 4 Land, LLC 



  ORDINANCE NO. 18-50 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES 
(PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-04-039-
002) FROM PO/I (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL 
DISTRICT) AND R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO PO/I AND R-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 235 AND 239 WEST 
WILLIAM STREET.    
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Wesleyan Inn on 
approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002) from 
PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) and R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) to PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 and 
239 West William Street (2018-1026).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for the Wesleyan Inn on 
approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-039-002) 
from PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) and R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) to PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 and 
239 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require conformance to 

all provisions of the Development Text and any conditions of approval. 
2. The proposed existing building and addition at 235 West William Street 

shall be for the proposed Inn use only and the property at 239 West William 
Street shall be for a parking lot or open space only. The property at 239 
West William Street shall have a covenant placed upon it to this effect.  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 



 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-51    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING:  FIFTH    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       June 25, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES (PARCELS 519-
433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-04-002) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM 
STREET.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-51 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-
04-039-002) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.  
  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002)  
at 235 and 239 West William Street (2018-1027).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-039-
002)  at 235 and 239 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, approved and 
accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-52    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIFTH    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES (PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-
04-002) ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I AND R-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 















































































 ORDINANCE NO. 18-52 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-
04-002) ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I AND R-3 PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 235 
AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.    
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002)  
on property zoned  PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 
and 239 West William Street (2018-1028).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002)  
on property zoned  PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 
and 239 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The addition of the two-way left turn lane into the site shall require parking 
modifications along the north side of West William Street approved by the 
City Engineer.  Any modifications to parking shall include agreements from 
affected property owners adjacent to the roadway.  Any parking proposed to 
be eliminated must include agreements from the affected property owners 
and shall require approval of the Parking and Safety Committee.  Parking 
shall be maintained to the maximum extent practicable and include curb 
modifications to provide a widened area to allow parallel parking beyond the 
existing curb line.   All necessary associated improvements including, but 
not limited to, sidewalk and utility pole relocations, shall be made by the 
developer.  If agreements cannot be obtained from affected property owners 
or approval cannot be gained from the Parking and Safety Committee, street 



widening shall need to take place on the developer’s side of West William 
Street to allow for construction of the turn lane 

3. Because no public storm sewer exists adjacent to the site, a storm sewer 
extension shall be required to be designed and constructed by the 
developer.  Design of the storm sewer and any associated roadway 
restoration shall need to be approved by the Public Works Department and 
Public Utilities Department.   

4. An emergency access point shall be required on the south eastern portion of 
the site adjacent to the Ohio Wesleyan parking lot that is accessed off Oak 
Hill Avenue. An executed agreement by the subject property owner and Ohio 
Wesleyan University shall be recorded at the County prior to final 
occupancy. The exact type of connection and barrier shall be determined 
during the Final Development Plan approval process. 

5. The number of hotel rooms shall not exceed 43 rooms. 

6. The number of required parking spaces shall be 47 in accordance with 
development text and development plan. 

7. The dumpster shall be enclosed by brick or stone that matches the building 
with wood doors painted or stained to match. 

8. The proposed hotel building shall achieve compliance with the design 
standards of the approved development text.  

9. The exposed portion of the retaining wall shall be faced with Delaware blue 
vein limestone or equivalent as approved by staff. 

10. The applicant shall make a payment of $16,700 to achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Requirements prior to construction drawing 
approval. 

11. Any street trees or other on-site trees damaged by construction shall be 
replaced. 

12. A six foot high solid wood fence shall be located along the western property 
line to screen the adjacent house while an eight foot high solid wood fence 
shall be located along the southwestern portion of the site to screen the 
adjacent residential zoned property. The landscaping shall be on the 
adjacent residential side of the fence along the west and southwestern 
property lines 

13. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

14. A lighting plan shall be documented in the Final Development Plan that 
achieves compliance with approved development text and minimum zoning 
requirements and shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official. 



15. Any signage shall be documented on the Final Development Plan and shall 
achieve compliance with the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan. 

16. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the minimum 
engineering, public works and fire department requirements.  

17. The subject two lots shall be consolidated into one lot prior to final 
occupancy permit. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



PUBLIC  
LETTERS 

 







From: Meg Maggart
To: Elaine McCloskey
Subject: [BULK] Wesleyan Inn
Date: Tuesday, June 19, 2018 7:54:48 AM
Importance: Low

***ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or
click on links from unknown senders or unexpected emails.***

Good morning,
 
My name is Meg Maggart and I live at 265  West William Street, it is two houses
away to the west of the proposed Wesleyan Inn parking site.  I am not in favor of
this project and the rezoning of the residential lot at 239 West William Street at all.  It's not
the right location for a hotel, there are many other better site choices for this project in
Delaware.  Right next to and in fact within a residential neighborhood shouldn't be one of
them.  
 
This project will have an effect on our property values, and not for the better, and could
very well be the beginning of the end for our neighborhood.  This is of no concern to Mr.
Manos but I hope it is a concern to all of you.  Because Mr. Manos can, he has made an
agreement to buy the property that would be right next to the parking he is proposing if
you approve this rezoning effort.  He knows no one in their right mind would want to live
next to or close a hotel, or its parking lot.  In an in person meeting with Mr. Manos, he told
me and other neighbors in attendance he had no intention of buying any other homes in
our neighborhood, so much for his word.  So now he will own and control at least three lots
all in a row.  This is very concerning, what will the future bring?  He said he would turn that
home into rental.  I don't want to live next to a rental home or a hotel.  Once again this will
effect property values and pride in our neighborhood.  One example is that there is already
a rental home across the street at 238 West William that has set empty for quite some time
now and is slowly deteriorating. Many people in the neighborhood have been working on
their homes, We in the process of adding a $40,000 garage and continue to make
improvements to our home,  this doesn't always happen with rentals, as I’m sure you’re
aware.  He is a business man and is less interested in the continued stability of our
neighborhood and community, then he is with making money.  
 
Mr. Manos has said and written in the documents that the Wesleyan Inn will be locally
owned and operated.  If Mr. Manos is the owner, when did living in Muirfield become local. 
He also has said this hotel is aimed primarily at parents of Ohio Wesleyan students.  I guess

mailto:mmaggart19@gmail.com
mailto:EMcCloskey@delawareohio.net


that means he will be turning away all others then.  Of course he won't.  This idea is
absurd.   Which means that 24/7 all types of people will be coming and going, walking
around our neighborhood.  This will increased traffic on an already busy street.  William
street gets backed up regularly just from existing traffic, trains and the traffic light at
Elizabeth street.  Adding a hotel would only increase the traffic congestion with customers
trying to turn in and out of the hotel.  A local person would know this.

In addition to purchasing the house which he plans to redone, he has made several shady
offers to other neighbors. The house owned by Chris and Jessica (2 down from me) he has
offered to purchase their home of the project goes through as they have argued they do
not want to live next to a parking lot. In the last meeting, Mr. Manos told us that he was “in
contract” for the purchase of that home. That is simply not true as it is a verbal offer
contingent upon the approval of the hotel. He has offered several residents across the
street to widen their driveways. There are many “promises” coming from Mr. Manos which
would further change our neighborhood.
 
In short, again this is not the right location for a hotel.

Rezoning to create a parking lot does not help anyone but 

Mr. Manos.  There are plenty of other sites in Delaware 

that would be more suited for this project then sticking a 

three story eye sore in our backyards where we all lose 

our privacy and the feel of our neighborhood and sense of 

community.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.

 

Meg Maggart



From: Tom Tobin
To: Elaine McCloskey
Subject: Re: Public Comment
Date: Friday, June 22, 2018 9:56:26 AM

***ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or
click on links from unknown senders or unexpected emails.***

Elaine,

Thank you for your email, I'm not sure what happened, I sent in on the afternoon of the 19th. 
But thank you for your follow up, and the opportunity to still send you my thoughts on the
Wesleyan Inn.

Good afternoon,
 
My name is Tom Tobin and I live at 253 West William Street, it is one house away to the west
of the proposed Wesleyan Inn parking site.  I am not in favor of this project and the rezoning
of the residential lot at 239 West William Street at all.  It's not the right location for a hotel,
there are many other better site choices for this project in Delaware.  Right next to and in fact
within a residential neighborhood shouldn't be one of them. 
 
The reality is that this project will be eating away at our residential neighborhood and will also
have an effect on property values, and not for the better.  This could very well be the
beginning of the end for our neighborhood.  This is of no concern to Mr. Manos but I hope it is
a concern to all of you.  Because Mr. Manos can, he has made an agreement to buy the
property that would be right next to the parking he is proposing if you approve this rezoning
effort.  He knows no one in their right mind would want to live next to or close to a hotel, or
its parking lot.  In an earlier in person meeting with Mr. Manos, he told me and other
neighbors in attendance he had no intention of buying any other homes in our neighborhood,
so much for his word.  So now he will own and control at least three lots all in a row.  This is
very concerning, what will the future bring?  He said he would turn that home into rental.  No
one really wants to live next to a rental home or a hotel.  Once again this will effect property
values and pride in our neighborhood.  One example is that there is already a rental home
across the street at 238 West William that has set empty for quite some time now and is
slowly deteriorating. Many people in the neighborhood have been working on their homes, I
myself am in the process of repainting and working on my home, this doesn't always happen
with rentals, as I’m sure you’re aware.  And this isn't a good buffer to the hotel because he
owns it and could encroach upon it, who knows.  He is a business man and is less interested in
the continued stability of our neighborhood and community, then he is with making money. 
 

mailto:ttobin7@outlook.com
mailto:EMcCloskey@delawareohio.net


Mr. Manos has said and written in the documents that the Wesleyan Inn will be locally owned
and operated.  If Mr. Manos is the owner, when did living in Muirfield become local.  He also
has said this hotel is aimed primarily at parents of Ohio Wesleyan students.  I guess that
means he will be turning away all others then.  Of course he won't.  This idea is absurd.  
Which means that 24/7 all types of people will be coming and going, walking around our
neighborhood.  This will increased traffic on an already busy street.  William street gets backed
up regularly just from existing traffic, trains and the traffic light at Elizabeth street.  Adding a
hotel would only increase the traffic congestion with customers trying to turn in and out of
the hotel.  A local person would know this, and it would only be worse in the winter with snow
and ice on the William Street hill. 
 
In short, again this is not the right location for a hotel.  Rezoning to create a parking lot does
not help anyone but Mr. Manos.  There are plenty of other sites in Delaware that would be
more suited for this project.  Sticking a three story eye sore in our backyards where we all lose
our privacy and the feel of our neighborhood and sense of community is not a good choice.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.

 

Tom Tobin

740.362.8544
ttobin7@outlook.com

From: Elaine McCloskey <EMcCloskey@delawareohio.net>
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 9:09 AM
To: 'ttobin7@outlook.com'
Cc: Elaine McCloskey
Subject: Public Comment
 
Mr. Tobin
 
If you are receiving this email twice, my apologies.  My email did not send me
a sent receipt and I wanted to try to send it again. 
 
I had received a call from your wife earlier today in regards to the Wesleyan
Inn.  Upon speaking with Cathy she mentioned that you had sent me an
email regarding your concerns.  I unfortunately did not receive that email
and am requesting that you try to resend it please.  I will forward the email
on to Council for their review.  Please let me know of what other assistance I
can be. 
 
Thank you,
 
Elaine McCloskey



City Council Clerk
City of Delaware
1 S. Sandusky St.
Delaware, Ohio 43015
740-203-1013 office
740-203-1024 fax
www.delawareohio.net
 

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

http://www.delawareohio.net/




MARKET 
STUDY 

&  
RESPONSES 

TO  
PUBLIC 

CONCERNS 
 



From: R Thomas Homan
To: Elaine McCloskey
Subject: FW: Wesleyan Inn - Response to Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, July 18, 2018 7:30:43 AM
Attachments: Wesleyan Inn Market Study.pdf

 
 

From: Joe Clase [mailto:joe@plan4land.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2018 4:09 PM
To: David M. Efland <defland@delawareohio.net>
Cc: R Thomas Homan <rthoman@delawareohio.net>; Lance Schultz <lschultz@delawareohio.net>;
Ben Henson <ben@plan4land.net>
Subject: Wesleyan Inn - Response to Public Comment
 

***ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or
click on links from unknown senders or unexpected emails.***

 
Dave,

Good afternoon!  Attached is the market study that architect Pat Manley presented at the meeting
last week.
 
We would like to share a summary of the public feedback that has been provided at the June 6, 2018

Planning Commission Meeting, June 25, 2018 2nd Council Reading & Public Hearing, and the July 9,

2018 3rd Council Reading, along with how we plan to address each:
 

Comment Response

Noise. The hotel has the ability to regulate noise
levels and will do so. The previous use appears
to have caused noise problems, which may
explain residents’ concerns. The hotel will take
action to prevent and mitigate noise.

Concerns about lighting. The project is 100% dark-sky compliant.

There is a hill in the road that makes sight
distances a problem and the train backs up
traffic in front of these properties.

We are improving access along W. William St.
with an extended turn lane in both directions
and widening the street. These improvements
should mitigate site distance issues.

This project will increase traffic. Estimated 40 trips/day. Residences generate 9

mailto:/O=CITY OF DELAWARE/OU=CITY HALL/CN=CITY MANAGERS OFFICE/CN=RTHOMAN-1
mailto:EMcCloskey@delawareohio.net



Architecture
July 16, 2018


Mr, James Manos


Re: Report on Wesleyan Inn Feasibility Study and Additional 


Dear Jim,
     


Please find attached a report summary of key points from our market and cost feasibility study
that can be shared with City Council. Although the details are proprietary, I extracted the most
important information in summary form. Since you already shared cost information, I omitted
this from my report. However, it is my impression there may be a concern as to how our project
may impact the viability of a larger franchise hotel. The short answer is that it has no impact
whatsoever as I describe below.


In addition, I included more recent data, that Joe Clase provided, pertaining to the current
community and business environment is also attached. This information is pertinent to this
project. In particular, it confirms that there are only four hotels within five minute drive of
downtown (a key metric for a boutique hotel) and infers there is a need for more restaurants and
retail businesses, which in turn further boost the hotel and lodging needs in the future.


Finally, I would like to include several important comments for consideration.


1. Preserve History: Saving the Perkins Home and its history is critical to the continued
economic development of the city. Historic preservation, restoration and adaptive re-use
of historic buildings is what made the City of Delaware the special place it is today.
Allowing further deterioration and eventual loss of this structure would only serve to
undermine that which so many in the community have worked to establish over many
decades.


2. Market Competition: Clearly there is a need for hotel beds in and around downtown.
This project, being a boutique hotel, will not compete with any of the larger franchise
hotels rumored to have an interest in locating downtown. Therefore, there is no reason to
be concerned that any of the large chains would lose interest if our project is approved.
Like us, they are well aware that there is a need for up to two franchise hotels of 100+
rooms, 1-2 more boutique hotels and at least one bed and breakfast. Like the downtown
businesses as a whole, a good mix of quality hotels will have a positive impact on the
community and will enhance the reputation of downtown as a destination location. 


3820 North High Street Columbus, Ohio 43214   Ph: (614) 545-1147
Member of the Association of Licensed Architects


1 of 2







Architecture


3. Surrounding Neighborhood: This property has been neglected is vandalized and broken
into on a regular basis. This is an opportunity to resolve this problem before it is
irreparably damaged or damage is done to surrounding properties.


4. Property Values: I believe this project will have positive impact on the surrounding
residential property values as is always the case when deteriorating buildings are
renovated. Switching to an upscale hotel from student housing is a more compatible use
with the single-family homes nearby and should make a goof buffer between the
dormitories and the residential neighborhood. Once completed, this project will add to the
property tax base and hotel bed tax revenues. 


Thank you for your consideration.


Sincerely,


Patrick W. Manley, RA, ALA


Enclosures:


2. Summary Report
3. Community Profile
4. Business Summary
5. Retail MarketPlace Profile
6. Retail Market Potential


3820 North High Street Columbus, Ohio 43214   Ph: (614) 545-1147
Member of the Association of Licensed Architects


2 of 2







SUMMARY OF
MARKET AND COST 


PRELIMINARY FEASIBILITY STUDY
FOR A PROPOSED HOTEL


IN
DELAWARE, OHIO


Date:
February 15, 2018


Summary Prepared:
July 16, 2018


Complete Report for Internal Use Only
Proprietary Information


1/3







SUMMARY
Based on a preliminary evaluation of the subject site at 235 W. William St., its location, size, 
street and utility access, zoning restrictions and assuming preservation of the former Perkins 
residence, a mid-size boutique hotel containing 45-65 rooms is a viable business from both a 
market need and cost perspective.  


MARKET AREA
Key factors in evaluating the Delaware, Ohio market include proximity to the downtown 
business district and Ohio Wesleyan University. More speci fically, the downtown restaurant 
and shopping area identi fied by renovated buildings, on-street parking, public parking, and 
businesses with evening hours of operation are attractive for lodging facilities. The downtown 
area was identi fied as the intersection of N. Sandusky Street and Winter Streets based on  
several factors. Please note that the actual business district is broader, but this intersection 
provides a reliable point of reference suitable for consideration. For the purposes of this 
study, “downtown” refers to this intersection. 


CONCLUSIONS
The conclusions in this study are preliminary and reflect reasonable interpretation of available
data. The purpose of the study was to determine the feasibility of building and operating a 
boutique hotel in Delaware, Ohio. For the purposes of this study, a boutique hotel is defined 
as a hotel having 10-100 rooms, a full service chain hotel as having 75-125 rooms and a bed 
and breakfast as having less than 10 rooms. Luxury hotels were excluded from consideration 
and are not considered appropriate for the downtown market at this time.


COMPETITION FROM OTHER HOTELS
At this time there is no competition for rooms in any of the aforementioned three hotel 
categories. A unique, one off boutique hotel can compete with similar hotels and to a  lesser 
degree, bed and breakfast facilities. Franchise hotels typically do not compete with boutique 
lodging, but in fact complement one another in that each serves a different market segment 
and collectively contribute to market synergy in the same way the downtown restaurants 
combine to produce an effect greater than the sum of the individual establishments.


MARKET DEMAND 
Downtown development combined with Ohio Wesleyan University, The Little Brown Jug, and 
other events, has resulted in a signi ficant shortage of new hotel accommodations in and 
around downtown. The current room shortage is estimated to be 200 rooms. The five and ten 
year projections are 250 and 350 rooms respectively based on current trends and growth.


DISTANCE ZONES
The optimum location for a boutique hotel is 0-1 mile from the entertainment and shopping 
district. 1-2 miles is acceptable. 2-5 miles is discouraged, although it is acceptable for a full 
service hotel with suites, restaurant, conference space and transportation. 


The areas under consideration are shown on the following map. The shaded circles represent
1, 2 and 5 mile radii, with the 1 mile radius being the most desirable location. The subject 
property is 0.6 miles from downtown, well within walking, biking and driving access as 
boutique hotels are particularly sensitive to location. The subject property is a 12 minute walk,
4 minute bike ride, or 3 minute drive from the intersection of N. Sandusky Street and Winter 
Streets. The perimeter of the highest concentrations of restaurants range from 7-13 minutes 
walking, 3-5 minutes biking and 2-4 minutes driving.


2/3







3/3







Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
Population Summary 


2000 Total Population 3,611 13,583 28,349
2010 Total Population 3,410 15,767 37,602
2018 Total Population 3,361 16,984 41,156


2018 Group Quarters 1,207 1,508 1,949
2023 Total Population 3,423 18,118 44,250


2018-2023 Annual Rate 0.37% 1.30% 1.46%
2018 Total Daytime Population 3,772 16,615 38,173


Workers 1,798 7,381 17,134
Residents 1,974 9,234 21,039


Household Summary
2000 Households 883 4,865 10,731


2000 Average Household Size 2.50 2.43 2.46
2010 Households 892 5,914 14,420


2010 Average Household Size 2.42 2.40 2.47
2018 Households 897 6,468 15,945


2018 Average Household Size 2.40 2.39 2.46
2023 Households 924 6,936 17,204


2023 Average Household Size 2.40 2.39 2.46
2018-2023 Annual Rate 0.59% 1.41% 1.53%


2010 Families 490 3,667 9,495
2010 Average Family Size 3.04 2.99 3.01


2018 Families 484 3,960 10,371
2018 Average Family Size 3.05 3.01 3.03


2023 Families 497 4,230 11,141
2023 Average Family Size 3.05 3.02 3.04
2018-2023 Annual Rate 0.53% 1.33% 1.44%


Housing Unit Summary
2000 Housing Units 954 5,167 11,525


Owner Occupied Housing Units 46.1% 55.6% 59.5%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 46.4% 38.6% 33.7%
Vacant Housing Units 7.4% 5.8% 6.9%


2010 Housing Units 1,003 6,424 15,395
Owner Occupied Housing Units 41.9% 53.7% 59.8%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 47.1% 38.4% 33.8%
Vacant Housing Units 11.1% 7.9% 6.3%


2018 Housing Units 1,012 7,017 16,988
Owner Occupied Housing Units 34.8% 47.4% 53.7%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 53.9% 44.8% 40.2%
Vacant Housing Units 11.4% 7.8% 6.1%


2023 Housing Units 1,045 7,536 18,366
Owner Occupied Housing Units 36.5% 49.7% 55.5%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 52.0% 42.4% 38.2%
Vacant Housing Units 11.6% 8.0% 6.3%


Median Household Income
2018 $44,614 $53,815 $61,980
2023 $52,872 $61,333 $71,035


Median Home Value
2018 $166,832 $159,851 $175,008
2023 $186,927 $174,885 $188,558


Per Capita Income
2018 $23,317 $27,339 $30,360
2023 $26,950 $31,855 $35,035


Median Age
2010 23.3 32.7 34.4
2018 23.8 34.2 36.0
2023 24.1 34.5 35.8


Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters.  Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households.  
Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption.  Per Capita Income represents the income received by 
all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 1 of 7







Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2018 Households by Income


Household Income Base 897 6,468 15,945
<$15,000 16.6% 11.9% 9.2%
$15,000 - $24,999 14.3% 10.8% 8.8%
$25,000 - $34,999 9.9% 9.5% 8.8%
$35,000 - $49,999 12.9% 13.9% 13.0%
$50,000 - $74,999 14.0% 18.5% 17.8%
$75,000 - $99,999 8.8% 13.8% 15.5%
$100,000 - $149,999 12.4% 14.4% 17.9%
$150,000 - $199,999 4.1% 4.2% 5.3%
$200,000+ 6.8% 3.0% 3.7%


Average Household Income $71,789 $68,965 $77,010
2023 Households by Income


Household Income Base 924 6,936 17,204
<$15,000 14.1% 10.0% 7.7%
$15,000 - $24,999 12.2% 8.9% 7.2%
$25,000 - $34,999 9.0% 8.0% 7.5%
$35,000 - $49,999 12.4% 12.8% 12.0%
$50,000 - $74,999 14.7% 18.7% 17.7%
$75,000 - $99,999 9.7% 15.0% 16.2%
$100,000 - $149,999 14.9% 17.5% 20.7%
$150,000 - $199,999 4.5% 5.2% 6.2%
$200,000+ 8.4% 3.9% 4.8%


Average Household Income $84,933 $80,557 $88,927
2018 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value


Total 352 3,324 9,116
<$50,000 2.0% 3.8% 4.9%
$50,000 - $99,999 11.6% 11.3% 9.3%
$100,000 - $149,999 26.7% 28.4% 18.5%
$150,000 - $199,999 28.7% 33.4% 34.5%
$200,000 - $249,999 13.4% 14.2% 15.7%
$250,000 - $299,999 11.6% 5.0% 7.8%
$300,000 - $399,999 5.4% 2.3% 5.0%
$400,000 - $499,999 0.6% 0.6% 2.0%
$500,000 - $749,999 0.0% 0.6% 1.3%
$750,000 - $999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.5%
$1,000,000 - $1,499,999 0.0% 0.4% 0.4%
$1,500,000 - $1,999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
$2,000,000 + 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%


Average Home Value $176,349 $168,880 $194,622
2023 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value


Total 381 3,742 10,187
<$50,000 0.8% 2.3% 2.8%
$50,000 - $99,999 7.6% 8.0% 6.2%
$100,000 - $149,999 20.5% 22.3% 14.4%
$150,000 - $199,999 28.6% 34.9% 34.6%
$200,000 - $249,999 16.3% 18.6% 19.1%
$250,000 - $299,999 16.0% 7.2% 9.8%
$300,000 - $399,999 8.9% 3.8% 7.0%
$400,000 - $499,999 1.3% 1.2% 3.0%
$500,000 - $749,999 0.0% 1.2% 2.0%
$750,000 - $999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.7%
$1,000,000 - $1,499,999 0.0% 0.4% 0.4%
$1,500,000 - $1,999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
$2,000,000 + 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%


Average Home Value $199,344 $188,809 $218,342


Data Note: Income represents the preceding year, expressed in current dollars.  Household income includes wage and salary earnings, interest dividends, net rents, 
pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 2 of 7







Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2010 Population by Age


Total 3,410 15,766 37,601
0 - 4 4.0% 6.9% 7.7%
5 - 9 3.9% 6.3% 7.3%
10 - 14 3.8% 5.7% 6.4%
15 - 24 48.0% 20.7% 14.9%
25 - 34 9.4% 13.7% 14.5%
35 - 44 8.1% 12.4% 14.9%
45 - 54 8.5% 12.3% 12.7%
55 - 64 6.7% 10.0% 10.1%
65 - 74 3.9% 6.3% 6.0%
75 - 84 2.2% 4.0% 3.8%
85 + 1.5% 1.9% 1.7%


18 + 86.0% 77.7% 75.0%
2018 Population by Age


Total 3,361 16,985 41,155
0 - 4 3.7% 6.4% 6.9%
5 - 9 3.6% 6.5% 7.2%
10 - 14 3.7% 6.1% 6.9%
15 - 24 45.3% 19.1% 14.7%
25 - 34 11.2% 12.9% 12.9%
35 - 44 7.7% 12.7% 14.2%
45 - 54 7.3% 11.2% 12.7%
55 - 64 7.9% 10.9% 11.0%
65 - 74 5.5% 8.2% 7.9%
75 - 84 2.3% 3.9% 3.7%
85 + 1.7% 2.1% 1.8%


18 + 86.6% 77.7% 75.3%
2023 Population by Age


Total 3,422 18,117 44,248
0 - 4 3.8% 6.4% 6.9%
5 - 9 3.4% 6.3% 6.9%
10 - 14 3.5% 6.1% 7.0%
15 - 24 43.9% 18.2% 14.7%
25 - 34 13.2% 13.6% 13.4%
35 - 44 7.7% 12.9% 13.6%
45 - 54 6.6% 10.6% 12.2%
55 - 64 7.4% 10.3% 10.6%
65 - 74 6.1% 9.1% 8.6%
75 - 84 2.7% 4.5% 4.3%
85 + 1.7% 2.0% 1.8%


18 + 87.0% 77.7% 75.3%
2010 Population by Sex


Males 1,633 7,555 18,165
Females 1,777 8,212 19,437


2018 Population by Sex
Males 1,615 8,163 19,927
Females 1,747 8,821 21,229


2023 Population by Sex
Males 1,651 8,737 21,490
Females 1,773 9,381 22,760


Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 3 of 7







Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2010 Population by Race/Ethnicity


Total 3,408 15,768 37,602
White Alone 88.0% 90.7% 91.2%
Black Alone 5.2% 4.4% 4.2%
American Indian Alone 0.1% 0.2% 0.2%
Asian Alone 3.7% 1.4% 1.2%
Pacific Islander Alone 0.1% 0.1% 0.0%
Some Other Race Alone 0.5% 0.7% 0.8%
Two or More Races 2.4% 2.6% 2.4%


Hispanic Origin 2.3% 2.4% 2.5%
Diversity Index 25.8 21.4 20.6


2018 Population by Race/Ethnicity
Total 3,360 16,985 41,158


White Alone 85.2% 88.9% 89.5%
Black Alone 5.4% 4.6% 4.4%
American Indian Alone 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Asian Alone 5.5% 2.0% 1.9%
Pacific Islander Alone 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Some Other Race Alone 0.6% 1.0% 1.0%
Two or More Races 3.0% 3.3% 3.0%


Hispanic Origin 3.2% 3.3% 3.3%
Diversity Index 31.3 25.8 24.8


2023 Population by Race/Ethnicity
Total 3,423 18,117 44,251


White Alone 83.3% 87.3% 88.0%
Black Alone 5.9% 5.0% 4.7%
American Indian Alone 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Asian Alone 6.3% 2.3% 2.2%
Pacific Islander Alone 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Some Other Race Alone 0.7% 1.1% 1.1%
Two or More Races 3.6% 4.0% 3.7%


Hispanic Origin 3.8% 3.9% 4.0%
Diversity Index 35.0 29.3 28.3


2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type
Total 3,410 15,767 37,602


In Households 63.3% 90.1% 94.6%
In Family Households 45.5% 71.8% 78.2%


Householder 15.0% 23.4% 25.2%
Spouse 10.4% 16.9% 19.2%
Child 16.9% 27.0% 29.6%
Other relative 1.3% 2.1% 2.0%
Nonrelative 1.9% 2.3% 2.1%


In Nonfamily Households 17.8% 18.4% 16.4%
In Group Quarters 36.7% 9.9% 5.4%


Institutionalized Population 0.7% 1.0% 1.5%
Noninstitutionalized Population 36.0% 8.9% 3.9%


Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race.  The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/
ethnic groups.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 4 of 7







Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2018 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment
Total 1,466 10,526 26,430


Less than 9th Grade 0.6% 2.4% 1.7%
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma 7.6% 5.4% 4.7%
High School Graduate 23.2% 27.8% 25.3%
GED/Alternative Credential 3.8% 5.0% 4.2%
Some College, No Degree 15.3% 20.8% 22.5%
Associate Degree 8.9% 6.2% 7.1%
Bachelor's Degree 25.8% 19.8% 21.6%
Graduate/Professional Degree 14.7% 12.6% 13.1%


2018 Population 15+ by Marital Status
Total 2,990 13,763 32,487


Never Married 63.6% 35.5% 31.4%
Married 24.5% 45.5% 51.2%
Widowed 2.9% 5.7% 5.1%
Divorced 9.0% 13.4% 12.4%


2018 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force
   Civilian Employed 95.5% 97.4% 98.0%
   Civilian Unemployed (Unemployment Rate) 4.5% 2.6% 2.0%
2018 Employed Population 16+ by Industry
Total 1,411 7,892 20,423
   Agriculture/Mining 0.9% 1.2% 1.0%
   Construction 2.2% 5.5% 4.9%
   Manufacturing 7.4% 11.5% 11.4%
   Wholesale Trade 1.5% 2.8% 2.9%
   Retail Trade 13.0% 13.2% 12.0%
   Transportation/Utilities 1.4% 2.1% 3.5%
   Information 2.1% 1.8% 2.2%
   Finance/Insurance/Real Estate 3.1% 6.8% 7.6%
   Services 65.3% 50.1% 48.5%
   Public Administration 2.9% 4.9% 6.2%
2018 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation
Total 1,411 7,893 20,423
   White Collar 61.1% 61.4% 65.4%
      Management/Business/Financial 8.8% 12.8% 17.2%
      Professional 27.6% 24.1% 24.2%
      Sales 8.0% 9.5% 10.4%
      Administrative Support 16.7% 15.0% 13.6%
   Services 25.6% 18.2% 17.2%
   Blue Collar 13.3% 20.4% 17.4%
      Farming/Forestry/Fishing 0.7% 0.6% 0.4%
      Construction/Extraction 3.5% 4.5% 3.4%
      Installation/Maintenance/Repair 1.9% 3.0% 2.7%
      Production 4.4% 7.0% 5.8%
      Transportation/Material Moving 2.8% 5.3% 5.1%
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status


Total Population  3,410 15,767 37,602
Population Inside Urbanized Area 99.3% 98.7% 91.2%
Population Inside Urbanized Cluster  0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Rural Population 0.7% 1.3% 8.8%


Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 5 of 7







Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2010 Households by Type


Total 891 5,914 14,420
Households with 1 Person 32.7% 30.5% 27.4%
Households with 2+ People 67.3% 69.5% 72.6%


Family Households 55.0% 62.0% 65.8%
Husband-wife Families 38.8% 44.6% 50.3%


With Related Children 16.2% 20.1% 24.0%
Other Family (No Spouse Present) 16.2% 17.4% 15.5%


Other Family with Male Householder 4.8% 5.0% 4.5%
With Related Children 3.1% 3.2% 3.0%


Other Family with Female Householder 11.3% 12.4% 11.1%
With Related Children 7.7% 8.1% 7.6%


Nonfamily Households 12.3% 7.5% 6.7%


All Households with Children 27.5% 32.1% 35.2%


Multigenerational Households 1.9% 2.5% 2.4%
Unmarried Partner Households 7.4% 7.6% 7.4%


Male-female 6.5% 6.9% 6.7%
Same-sex 0.9% 0.7% 0.7%


2010 Households by Size
Total 892 5,915 14,420


1 Person Household 32.6% 30.5% 27.4%
2 Person Household 33.1% 32.8% 33.4%
3 Person Household 15.4% 16.2% 16.4%
4 Person Household 11.0% 12.0% 13.9%
5 Person Household 5.5% 5.8% 6.3%
6 Person Household 1.8% 1.8% 2.0%
7 + Person Household 0.7% 0.8% 0.7%


2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status
Total 892 5,914 14,420


Owner Occupied 47.1% 58.3% 63.9%
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan 36.8% 45.7% 51.4%
Owned Free and Clear 10.3% 12.6% 12.4%


Renter Occupied 52.9% 41.7% 36.1%
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status


Total Housing Units 1,003 6,424 15,395
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area 98.9% 98.4% 91.1%
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Rural Housing Units 1.1% 1.6% 8.9%


Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not.  Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parent-
child relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the 
householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate 
polygons or non-standard geography.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 6 of 7







Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
Top 3 Tapestry Segments


1. Emerald City (8B) Parks and Rec (5C) Up and Coming Families 
(7A)2. Set to Impress (11D) Up and Coming Families 


(7A)
Middleburg (4C)


3. Middleburg (4C) Middleburg (4C) Soccer Moms (4A)


2018 Consumer Spending 
Apparel & Services:  Total $ $1,722,987 $11,727,094 $32,393,960


Average Spent $1,920.83 $1,813.09 $2,031.61
Spending Potential Index 88 83 93


Education:  Total $ $1,125,868 $7,564,359 $20,769,146
Average Spent $1,255.15 $1,169.51 $1,302.55
Spending Potential Index 87 81 90


Entertainment/Recreation:  Total $ $2,470,491 $17,220,494 $47,294,147
Average Spent $2,754.17 $2,662.41 $2,966.08
Spending Potential Index 86 83 92


Food at Home:  Total $ $3,941,082 $27,018,178 $73,687,147
Average Spent $4,393.63 $4,177.21 $4,621.33
Spending Potential Index 88 83 92


Food Away from Home:  Total $ $2,802,520 $19,000,932 $52,447,038
Average Spent $3,124.33 $2,937.68 $3,289.25
Spending Potential Index 89 84 94


Health Care:  Total $ $4,273,589 $30,528,553 $83,315,010
Average Spent $4,764.31 $4,719.94 $5,225.15
Spending Potential Index 83 82 91


HH Furnishings & Equipment:  Total $ $1,617,066 $11,224,720 $31,055,337
Average Spent $1,802.75 $1,735.42 $1,947.65
Spending Potential Index 86 83 93


Personal Care Products & Services: Total $ $648,808 $4,440,296 $12,301,155
Average Spent $723.31 $686.50 $771.47
Spending Potential Index 87 83 93


Shelter:  Total $ $13,437,352 $90,411,941 $246,395,054
Average Spent $14,980.33 $13,978.35 $15,452.81
Spending Potential Index 89 83 92


Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind: Total $ $1,836,622 $12,927,538 $35,381,765
Average Spent $2,047.52 $1,998.69 $2,218.99
Spending Potential Index 82 80 89


Travel:  Total $ $1,622,931 $11,313,664 $31,518,309
Average Spent $1,809.29 $1,749.18 $1,976.69
Spending Potential Index 84 81 92


Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total $ $837,729 $5,796,625 $15,889,525
Average Spent $933.92 $896.20 $996.52
Spending Potential Index 87 83 93


Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area.  Expenditures are shown by broad 
budget categories that are not mutually exclusive.  Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual 
figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100.
Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2015 and 2016 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 7 of 7







Business Summary
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736
Data for all businesses in area 2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
Total Businesses: 212 741 1,347
Total Employees: 2,137 7,952 16,701
Total Residential Population: 3,361 16,984 41,156
Employee/Residential Population Ratio (per 100 Residents) 64 47 41


Businesses Employees Businesses Employees Businesses Employees
by SIC Codes Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Agriculture & Mining 2 0.9% 7 0.3% 11 1.5% 88 1.1% 33 2.4% 233 1.4%
Construction 6 2.8% 24 1.1% 36 4.9% 157 2.0% 67 5.0% 314 1.9%
Manufacturing 4 1.9% 165 7.7% 15 2.0% 438 5.5% 46 3.4% 1,528 9.1%
Transportation 3 1.4% 46 2.2% 12 1.6% 226 2.8% 34 2.5% 556 3.3%
Communication 1 0.5% 2 0.1% 2 0.3% 12 0.2% 11 0.8% 105 0.6%
Utility 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 5 0.1% 4 0.3% 40 0.2%
Wholesale Trade 4 1.9% 32 1.5% 15 2.0% 116 1.5% 44 3.3% 773 4.6%


Retail Trade Summary 41 19.3% 428 20.0% 130 17.5% 1,438 18.1% 247 18.3% 4,185 25.1%
Home Improvement 2 0.9% 59 2.8% 9 1.2% 145 1.8% 19 1.4% 480 2.9%
General Merchandise Stores 1 0.5% 2 0.1% 3 0.4% 26 0.3% 11 0.8% 381 2.3%
Food Stores 2 0.9% 23 1.1% 9 1.2% 101 1.3% 22 1.6% 641 3.8%
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket 3 1.4% 24 1.1% 9 1.2% 84 1.1% 29 2.2% 743 4.4%
Apparel & Accessory Stores 1 0.5% 4 0.2% 4 0.5% 11 0.1% 8 0.6% 27 0.2%
Furniture & Home Furnishings 3 1.4% 9 0.4% 10 1.3% 59 0.7% 18 1.3% 101 0.6%
Eating & Drinking Places 18 8.5% 256 12.0% 54 7.3% 826 10.4% 87 6.5% 1,358 8.1%
Miscellaneous Retail 11 5.2% 52 2.4% 34 4.6% 188 2.4% 54 4.0% 454 2.7%


Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary 29 13.7% 137 6.4% 93 12.6% 415 5.2% 139 10.3% 593 3.6%
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions 7 3.3% 48 2.2% 19 2.6% 121 1.5% 28 2.1% 179 1.1%
Securities Brokers 5 2.4% 13 0.6% 12 1.6% 33 0.4% 18 1.3% 62 0.4%
Insurance Carriers & Agents 8 3.8% 24 1.1% 27 3.6% 89 1.1% 35 2.6% 124 0.7%
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices 8 3.8% 51 2.4% 36 4.9% 172 2.2% 57 4.2% 228 1.4%


Services Summary 91 42.9% 891 41.7% 326 44.0% 3,873 48.7% 553 41.1% 6,111 36.6%
Hotels & Lodging 1 0.5% 10 0.5% 4 0.5% 28 0.4% 8 0.6% 64 0.4%
Automotive Services 1 0.5% 6 0.3% 14 1.9% 46 0.6% 37 2.7% 122 0.7%
Motion Pictures & Amusements 5 2.4% 17 0.8% 22 3.0% 106 1.3% 43 3.2% 296 1.8%
Health Services 9 4.2% 114 5.3% 57 7.7% 935 11.8% 93 6.9% 1,502 9.0%
Legal Services 13 6.1% 57 2.7% 31 4.2% 120 1.5% 32 2.4% 123 0.7%
Education Institutions & Libraries 5 2.4% 125 5.8% 24 3.2% 763 9.6% 40 3.0% 1,229 7.4%
Other Services 56 26.4% 561 26.3% 173 23.3% 1,875 23.6% 301 22.3% 2,774 16.6%


Government 25 11.8% 403 18.9% 67 9.0% 1,172 14.7% 98 7.3% 2,246 13.4%


Unclassified Establishments 8 3.8% 3 0.1% 33 4.5% 11 0.1% 71 5.3% 17 0.1%


Totals 212 100.0% 2,137 100.0% 741 100.0% 7,952 100.0% 1,347 100.0% 16,701 100.0%


Source:  Copyright 2018 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2018.
Date Note: Data on the Business Summary report is calculated using Esri’s Data allocation method which uses census block groups to allocate business summary data to custom areas.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 1 of 2



http://doc.arcgis.com/en/esri-demographics/reference/data-allocation-method.htm





Business Summary
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736
Businesses Employees Businesses Employees Businesses Employees


by NAICS Codes Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 2 0.0% 6 0.4% 41 0.2%
Mining 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 24 0.1%
Utilities 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 4 0.1% 2 0.1% 30 0.2%
Construction 6 2.8% 24 1.1% 37 5.0% 162 2.0% 71 5.3% 325 1.9%
Manufacturing 5 2.4% 140 6.6% 16 2.2% 415 5.2% 50 3.7% 1,529 9.2%
Wholesale Trade 4 1.9% 32 1.5% 15 2.0% 116 1.5% 44 3.3% 771 4.6%
Retail Trade 21 9.9% 156 7.3% 74 10.0% 562 7.1% 154 11.4% 2,755 16.5%


Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 1 0.5% 17 0.8% 6 0.8% 68 0.9% 23 1.7% 711 4.3%
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 1 0.5% 1 0.0% 3 0.4% 7 0.1% 7 0.5% 18 0.1%
Electronics & Appliance Stores 2 0.9% 7 0.3% 6 0.8% 29 0.4% 10 0.7% 53 0.3%
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers 2 0.9% 59 2.8% 9 1.2% 145 1.8% 19 1.4% 481 2.9%
Food & Beverage Stores 2 0.9% 11 0.5% 8 1.1% 80 1.0% 17 1.3% 600 3.6%
Health & Personal Care Stores 2 0.9% 6 0.3% 11 1.5% 80 1.0% 19 1.4% 219 1.3%
Gasoline Stations 1 0.5% 7 0.3% 3 0.4% 16 0.2% 6 0.4% 32 0.2%
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 1 0.5% 4 0.2% 4 0.5% 11 0.1% 8 0.6% 27 0.2%
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores 3 1.4% 26 1.2% 8 1.1% 57 0.7% 11 0.8% 72 0.4%
General Merchandise Stores 1 0.5% 2 0.1% 3 0.4% 26 0.3% 11 0.8% 381 2.3%
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 6 2.8% 16 0.7% 14 1.9% 45 0.6% 24 1.8% 160 1.0%
Nonstore Retailers 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.0%


Transportation & Warehousing 2 0.9% 42 2.0% 10 1.3% 216 2.7% 28 2.1% 515 3.1%
Information 5 2.4% 60 2.8% 11 1.5% 126 1.6% 27 2.0% 280 1.7%
Finance & Insurance 20 9.4% 85 4.0% 57 7.7% 243 3.1% 82 6.1% 365 2.2%


Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities 7 3.3% 48 2.2% 19 2.6% 121 1.5% 28 2.1% 179 1.1%
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial 
Investments & Other Related Activities


5 2.4% 13 0.6% 12 1.6% 33 0.4% 18 1.3% 62 0.4%
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts & 
Other Financial Vehicles


8 3.8% 24 1.1% 27 3.6% 89 1.1% 35 2.6% 124 0.7%
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing 9 4.2% 56 2.6% 42 5.7% 182 2.3% 79 5.9% 265 1.6%
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services 26 12.3% 104 4.9% 76 10.3% 361 4.5% 122 9.1% 603 3.6%


Legal Services 14 6.6% 59 2.8% 34 4.6% 129 1.6% 35 2.6% 133 0.8%
Management of Companies & Enterprises 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 3 0.0% 1 0.1% 3 0.0%
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation 
Services


4 1.9% 28 1.3% 17 2.3% 174 2.2% 42 3.1% 336 2.0%
Educational Services 4 1.9% 111 5.2% 24 3.2% 742 9.3% 42 3.1% 1,224 7.3%
Health Care & Social Assistance 16 7.5% 194 9.1% 80 10.8% 1,507 19.0% 134 9.9% 2,353 14.1%
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation 4 1.9% 216 10.1% 18 2.4% 550 6.9% 33 2.4% 740 4.4%
Accommodation & Food Services 20 9.4% 280 13.1% 58 7.8% 878 11.0% 96 7.1% 1,446 8.7%


Accommodation 1 0.5% 10 0.5% 4 0.5% 28 0.4% 8 0.6% 64 0.4%
Food Services & Drinking Places 19 9.0% 270 12.6% 55 7.4% 850 10.7% 88 6.5% 1,382 8.3%


Other Services (except Public Administration) 33 15.6% 202 9.5% 102 13.8% 520 6.5% 165 12.2% 827 5.0%
Automotive Repair & Maintenance 1 0.5% 5 0.2% 10 1.3% 37 0.5% 24 1.8% 91 0.5%


Public Administration 26 12.3% 405 19.0% 68 9.2% 1,177 14.8% 99 7.3% 2,251 13.5%


Unclassified Establishments 8 3.8% 3 0.1% 33 4.5% 11 0.1% 71 5.3% 17 0.1%


Total 212 100.0% 2,137 100.0% 741 100.0% 7,952 100.0% 1,347 100.0% 16,701 100.0%
Source:  Copyright 2018 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2018.
Date Note: Data on the Business Summary report is calculated using Esri’s Data allocation method which uses census block groups to allocate business summary data to custom areas.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 2 of 2



http://doc.arcgis.com/en/esri-demographics/reference/data-allocation-method.htm





Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Summary Demographics
2018 Population 3,361
2018 Households 897
2018 Median Disposable Income $38,331
2018 Per Capita Income $23,317


NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Summary    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses


Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink 44-45,722 $29,232,795 $41,840,211 -$12,607,416 -17.7 40
Total Retail Trade 44-45 $26,334,544 $30,194,127 -$3,859,583 -6.8 22
Total Food & Drink 722 $2,898,251 $11,646,084 -$8,747,833 -60.1 18


NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Group    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses


Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 441 $5,568,921 $2,917,318 $2,651,603 31.2 1
   Automobile Dealers 4411 $4,497,393 $0 $4,497,393 100.0 0
   Other Motor Vehicle Dealers 4412 $506,300 $0 $506,300 100.0 0
   Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores 4413 $565,229 $2,794,742 -$2,229,513 -66.4 1
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 442 $790,275 $332,779 $457,496 40.7 1
   Furniture Stores 4421 $498,996 $0 $498,996 100.0 0
   Home Furnishings Stores 4422 $291,279 $332,779 -$41,500 -6.7 1
Electronics & Appliance Stores 443 $860,392 $1,627,297 -$766,905 -30.8 2
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores 444 $1,690,242 $8,655,934 -$6,965,692 -67.3 2
   Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers 4441 $1,558,584 $8,655,934 -$7,097,350 -69.5 2
   Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores 4442 $131,657 $0 $131,657 100.0 0
Food & Beverage Stores 445 $4,659,957 $2,081,481 $2,578,476 38.2 2
   Grocery Stores 4451 $4,187,683 $904,261 $3,283,422 64.5 1
   Specialty Food Stores 4452 $264,906 $0 $264,906 100.0 0
   Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores 4453 $207,368 $1,177,220 -$969,852 -70.0 1
Health & Personal Care Stores 446,4461 $1,897,841 $1,015,780 $882,061 30.3 2
Gasoline Stations 447,4471 $2,992,927 $7,496,130 -$4,503,203 -42.9 1
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 448 $1,280,807 $597,593 $683,214 36.4 1
   Clothing Stores 4481 $826,059 $597,593 $228,466 16.0 1
   Shoe Stores 4482 $184,768 $0 $184,768 100.0 0
   Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores 4483 $269,980 $0 $269,980 100.0 0
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 451 $604,644 $3,629,425 -$3,024,781 -71.4 3
   Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores 4511 $494,070 $3,573,691 -$3,079,621 -75.7 2
   Book, Periodical & Music Stores 4512 $110,574 $55,734 $54,840 33.0 1
General Merchandise Stores 452 $4,482,162 $343,000 $4,139,162 85.8 1
   Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts. 4521 $3,126,592 $0 $3,126,592 100.0 0
   Other General Merchandise Stores 4529 $1,355,570 $343,000 $1,012,570 59.6 1
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 453 $1,116,374 $1,497,391 -$381,017 -14.6 6
   Florists 4531 $44,386 $229,181 -$184,795 -67.6 1
   Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores 4532 $242,483 $447,070 -$204,587 -29.7 1
   Used Merchandise Stores 4533 $164,815 $345,428 -$180,613 -35.4 2
   Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 4539 $664,690 $475,713 $188,977 16.6 2
Nonstore Retailers 454 $390,003 $0 $390,003 100.0 0
   Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses 4541 $256,807 $0 $256,807 100.0 0
   Vending Machine Operators 4542 $41,325 $0 $41,325 100.0 0
   Direct Selling Establishments 4543 $91,871 $0 $91,871 100.0 0
Food Services & Drinking Places 722 $2,898,251 $11,646,084 -$8,747,833 -60.1 18
   Special Food Services 7223 $77,956 $54,391 $23,565 17.8 1
   Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages 7224 $107,948 $125,064 -$17,116 -7.3 1
   Restaurants/Other Eating Places 7225 $2,712,347 $11,466,630 -$8,754,283 -61.7 16


Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount 
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars.  The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This 
is a measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail 
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap 
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their 
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food 
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf


Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 1 of 6







Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector


Food Services & Drinking Places   
Nonstore Retailers   


Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
General Merchandise Stores  


Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores   
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 


Gasoline Stations   
Health & Personal Care Stores   


Food & Beverage Stores   
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores   


Electronics & Appliance Stores   
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores   


Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers   


Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40-60


2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group


Restaurants/Other Eating Places


Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)   


Special Food Services   


Direct Selling Establishments   


Vending Machine Operators   


Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses   


Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
Used Merchandise Stores   


Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores   


Florists   


Other General Merchandise Stores   


Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)   


Book, Periodical, and Music Stores   


Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores   


Shoe Stores   


Clothing Stores   


Gasoline Stations  


Health & Personal Care Stores   


Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores   


Specialty Food Stores   


Grocery Stores   


Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores   
Building Material and Supplies Dealers   


Electronics & Appliance Stores   


Home Furnishings Stores   


Furniture Stores


Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores   


Other Motor Vehicle Dealers   


Automobile Dealers   


Leakage/Surplus Factor
1009080706050403020100-10-20-30-40-50-60-70


Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 2 of 6







Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Summary Demographics
2018 Population 16,984
2018 Households 6,468
2018 Median Disposable Income $44,833
2018 Per Capita Income $27,339


NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Summary    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses


Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink 44-45,722 $204,010,142 $156,234,883 $47,775,259 13.3 126
Total Retail Trade 44-45 $184,104,974 $120,420,030 $63,684,944 20.9 73
Total Food & Drink 722 $19,905,168 $35,814,853 -$15,909,685 -28.6 52


NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Group    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses


Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 441 $39,268,305 $26,108,036 $13,160,269 20.1 5
   Automobile Dealers 4411 $31,676,623 $13,930,152 $17,746,471 38.9 1
   Other Motor Vehicle Dealers 4412 $3,632,884 $0 $3,632,884 100.0 0
   Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores 4413 $3,958,797 $11,855,780 -$7,896,983 -49.9 3
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 442 $5,530,257 $2,006,204 $3,524,053 46.8 3
   Furniture Stores 4421 $3,423,528 $0 $3,423,528 100.0 0
   Home Furnishings Stores 4422 $2,106,729 $1,962,685 $144,044 3.5 3
Electronics & Appliance Stores 443 $5,954,555 $4,228,141 $1,726,414 17.0 5
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores 444 $12,696,095 $20,635,828 -$7,939,733 -23.8 10
   Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers 4441 $11,709,620 $20,017,133 -$8,307,513 -26.2 9
   Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores 4442 $986,475 $618,695 $367,780 22.9 1
Food & Beverage Stores 445 $32,062,592 $12,768,775 $19,293,817 43.0 6
   Grocery Stores 4451 $28,832,373 $10,041,945 $18,790,428 48.3 4
   Specialty Food Stores 4452 $1,820,645 $0 $1,820,645 100.0 0
   Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores 4453 $1,409,574 $2,713,383 -$1,303,809 -31.6 3
Health & Personal Care Stores 446,4461 $13,275,793 $18,398,750 -$5,122,957 -16.2 10
Gasoline Stations 447,4471 $20,821,492 $18,585,118 $2,236,374 5.7 5
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 448 $8,802,399 $1,658,308 $7,144,091 68.3 4
   Clothing Stores 4481 $5,673,194 $1,547,479 $4,125,715 57.1 4
   Shoe Stores 4482 $1,280,576 $0 $1,280,576 100.0 0
   Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores 4483 $1,848,629 $0 $1,848,629 100.0 0
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 451 $4,187,724 $7,701,288 -$3,513,564 -29.6 8
   Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores 4511 $3,448,768 $7,532,712 -$4,083,944 -37.2 5
   Book, Periodical & Music Stores 4512 $738,955 $168,577 $570,378 62.8 3
General Merchandise Stores 452 $31,002,313 $4,132,148 $26,870,165 76.5 3
   Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts. 4521 $21,627,046 $0 $21,627,046 100.0 0
   Other General Merchandise Stores 4529 $9,375,267 $2,112,750 $7,262,517 63.2 3
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 453 $7,735,521 $4,197,435 $3,538,086 29.6 14
   Florists 4531 $328,812 $408,186 -$79,374 -10.8 2
   Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores 4532 $1,689,520 $1,114,743 $574,777 20.5 2
   Used Merchandise Stores 4533 $1,116,534 $1,095,402 $21,132 1.0 5
   Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 4539 $4,600,655 $1,579,104 $3,021,551 48.9 5
Nonstore Retailers 454 $2,767,928 $0 $2,767,928 100.0 0
   Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses 4541 $1,794,402 $0 $1,794,402 100.0 0
   Vending Machine Operators 4542 $285,560 $0 $285,560 100.0 0
   Direct Selling Establishments 4543 $687,966 $0 $687,966 100.0 0
Food Services & Drinking Places 722 $19,905,168 $35,814,853 -$15,909,685 -28.6 52
   Special Food Services 7223 $550,465 $289,973 $260,492 31.0 2
   Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages 7224 $727,664 $222,747 $504,917 53.1 2
   Restaurants/Other Eating Places 7225 $18,627,040 $35,302,133 -$16,675,093 -30.9 48


Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount 
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars.  The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This 
is a measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail 
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap 
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their 
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food 
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf


Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 3 of 6







Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector


Food Services & Drinking Places   
Nonstore Retailers   


Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
General Merchandise Stores  


Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores   
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 


Gasoline Stations   
Health & Personal Care Stores   


Food & Beverage Stores   
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores   


Electronics & Appliance Stores   
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores   


Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers   


Leakage/Surplus Factor
1009080706050403020100-10-20


2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group


Restaurants/Other Eating Places


Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)   


Special Food Services   


Direct Selling Establishments   


Vending Machine Operators   


Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses   


Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
Used Merchandise Stores   


Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores   


Florists   


Other General Merchandise Stores   


Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)   


Book, Periodical, and Music Stores   


Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores   


Shoe Stores   


Clothing Stores   


Gasoline Stations  


Health & Personal Care Stores   


Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores   


Specialty Food Stores   


Grocery Stores   


Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores   
Building Material and Supplies Dealers   


Electronics & Appliance Stores   


Home Furnishings Stores   


Furniture Stores


Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores   


Other Motor Vehicle Dealers   


Automobile Dealers   


Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40


Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 4 of 6







Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Summary Demographics
2018 Population 41,156
2018 Households 15,945
2018 Median Disposable Income $51,399
2018 Per Capita Income $30,360


NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Summary    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses


Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink 44-45,722 $561,424,510 $829,105,726 -$267,681,216 -19.3 244
Total Retail Trade 44-45 $506,368,281 $773,096,275 -$266,727,994 -20.8 161
Total Food & Drink 722 $55,056,228 $56,009,451 -$953,223 -0.9 84


NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Group    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses


Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 441 $108,256,437 $405,402,726 -$297,146,289 -57.8 23
   Automobile Dealers 4411 $87,267,674 $208,103,104 -$120,835,430 -40.9 10
   Other Motor Vehicle Dealers 4412 $10,124,430 $2,824,208 $7,300,222 56.4 2
   Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores 4413 $10,864,334 $194,475,414 -$183,611,080 -89.4 11
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 442 $15,375,297 $4,728,330 $10,646,967 53.0 6
   Furniture Stores 4421 $9,434,670 $533,118 $8,901,552 89.3 1
   Home Furnishings Stores 4422 $5,940,628 $4,195,212 $1,745,416 17.2 5
Electronics & Appliance Stores 443 $16,460,851 $10,107,482 $6,353,369 23.9 10
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores 444 $35,763,718 $53,074,376 -$17,310,658 -19.5 19
   Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers 4441 $33,039,696 $48,566,560 -$15,526,864 -19.0 15
   Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores 4442 $2,724,022 $4,507,816 -$1,783,794 -24.7 3
Food & Beverage Stores 445 $87,425,243 $131,331,483 -$43,906,240 -20.1 15
   Grocery Stores 4451 $78,619,887 $127,469,084 -$48,849,197 -23.7 10
   Specialty Food Stores 4452 $4,958,460 $677,533 $4,280,927 76.0 1
   Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores 4453 $3,846,896 $3,184,866 $662,030 9.4 3
Health & Personal Care Stores 446,4461 $36,255,991 $27,962,304 $8,293,687 12.9 18
Gasoline Stations 447,4471 $56,747,654 $37,396,159 $19,351,495 20.6 10
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 448 $24,340,806 $11,319,766 $13,021,040 36.5 12
   Clothing Stores 4481 $15,661,148 $7,824,885 $7,836,263 33.4 10
   Shoe Stores 4482 $3,562,175 $3,391,610 $170,565 2.5 2
   Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores 4483 $5,117,483 $0 $5,117,483 100.0 0
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 451 $11,620,065 $11,164,011 $456,054 2.0 12
   Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores 4511 $9,595,558 $10,934,164 -$1,338,606 -6.5 8
   Book, Periodical & Music Stores 4512 $2,024,507 $229,847 $1,794,660 79.6 4
General Merchandise Stores 452 $85,365,879 $62,999,702 $22,366,177 15.1 11
   Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts. 4521 $59,704,746 $54,105,225 $5,599,521 4.9 2
   Other General Merchandise Stores 4529 $25,661,133 $8,894,477 $16,766,656 48.5 9
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 453 $21,196,613 $17,488,823 $3,707,790 9.6 25
   Florists 4531 $917,087 $494,069 $423,018 30.0 3
   Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores 4532 $4,681,890 $4,390,998 $290,892 3.2 3
   Used Merchandise Stores 4533 $3,065,103 $5,929,611 -$2,864,508 -31.8 7
   Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 4539 $12,532,533 $6,674,146 $5,858,387 30.5 12
Nonstore Retailers 454 $7,559,726 $0 $7,559,726 100.0 0
   Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses 4541 $4,964,036 $0 $4,964,036 100.0 0
   Vending Machine Operators 4542 $787,138 $0 $787,138 100.0 0
   Direct Selling Establishments 4543 $1,808,553 $0 $1,808,553 100.0 0
Food Services & Drinking Places 722 $55,056,228 $56,009,451 -$953,223 -0.9 84
   Special Food Services 7223 $1,531,329 $361,265 $1,170,064 61.8 3
   Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages 7224 $1,998,907 $223,548 $1,775,359 79.9 2
   Restaurants/Other Eating Places 7225 $51,525,993 $55,424,637 -$3,898,644 -3.6 79


Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount 
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars.  The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This 
is a measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail 
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap 
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their 
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food 
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf


Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 5 of 6







Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector


Food Services & Drinking Places   
Nonstore Retailers   


Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
General Merchandise Stores  


Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores   
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 


Gasoline Stations   
Health & Personal Care Stores   


Food & Beverage Stores   
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores   


Electronics & Appliance Stores   
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores   


Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers   


Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40


2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group


Restaurants/Other Eating Places


Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)   


Special Food Services   


Direct Selling Establishments   


Vending Machine Operators   


Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses   


Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
Used Merchandise Stores   


Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores   


Florists   


Other General Merchandise Stores   


Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)   


Book, Periodical, and Music Stores   


Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores   


Shoe Stores   


Clothing Stores   


Gasoline Stations  


Health & Personal Care Stores   


Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores   


Specialty Food Stores   


Grocery Stores   


Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores   
Building Material and Supplies Dealers   


Electronics & Appliance Stores   


Home Furnishings Stores   


Furniture Stores


Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores   


Other Motor Vehicle Dealers   


Automobile Dealers   


Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40-60-80


Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 6 of 6







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Demographic Summary 2018 2023
Population 3,361 3,423
Population 18+ 2,911 2,977
Households 897 924
Median Household Income $44,614 $52,872


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Apparel (Adults)


Bought any men's clothing in last 12 months 1,266 43.5% 92
Bought any women's clothing in last 12 months 1,261 43.3% 100
Bought clothing for child <13 years in last 6 months 692 23.8% 89
Bought any shoes in last 12 months 1,477 50.7% 95
Bought costume jewelry in last 12 months 505 17.3% 95
Bought any fine jewelry in last 12 months 558 19.2% 107
Bought a watch in last 12 months 444 15.3% 96


Automobiles (Households)
HH owns/leases any vehicle 793 88.4% 103
HH bought/leased new vehicle last 12 mo 73 8.1% 84


Automotive Aftermarket (Adults)
Bought gasoline in last 6 months 2,456 84.4% 99
Bought/changed motor oil in last 12 months 1,319 45.3% 95
Had tune-up in last 12 months 804 27.6% 107


Beverages (Adults)
Drank bottled water/seltzer in last 6 months 1,818 62.5% 90
Drank regular cola in last 6 months 1,308 44.9% 101
Drank beer/ale in last 6 months 1,224 42.0% 100


Cameras (Adults)
Own digital point & shoot camera/camcorder 266 9.1% 78
Own digital SLR camera/camcorder 181 6.2% 80
Printed digital photos in last 12 months 597 20.5% 88


Cell Phones (Adults/Households)
Bought cell phone in last 12 months 988 33.9% 94
Have a smartphone 2,446 84.0% 105
Have a smartphone: Android phone (any brand) 1,238 42.5% 110
Have a smartphone: Apple iPhone 1,082 37.2% 97
Number of cell phones in household: 1 352 39.2% 127
Number of cell phones in household: 2 349 38.9% 101
Number of cell phones in household: 3+ 171 19.1% 69
HH has cell phone only (no landline telephone) 582 64.9% 123


Computers (Households)
HH owns a computer 687 76.6% 103
HH owns desktop computer 326 36.3% 95
HH owns laptop/notebook 547 61.0% 108
HH owns any Apple/Mac brand computer 176 19.6% 111
HH owns any PC/non-Apple brand computer 555 61.9% 99
HH purchased most recent computer in a store 351 39.1% 106
HH purchased most recent computer online 134 14.9% 111
Spent <$500 on most recent home computer 140 15.6% 103
Spent $500-$999 on most recent home computer
"


159 17.7% 101
Spent $1,000-$1,499 on most recent home computer 104 11.6% 122
Spent $1,500-$1,999 on most recent home computer 42 4.7% 101
Spent $2,000+ on most recent home computer 38 4.2% 104


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 1 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Convenience Stores (Adults)


Shopped at convenience store in last 6 mos 1,759 60.4% 97
Bought brewed coffee at convenience store in last 30 days 333 11.4% 85
Bought cigarettes at convenience store in last 30 days 345 11.9% 109
Bought gas at convenience store in last 30 days 1,002 34.4% 93
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: <$20 188 6.5% 90
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $20-$39 261 9.0% 94
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $40-$50 271 9.3% 112
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $51-$99 181 6.2% 111
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $100+ 565 19.4% 87


Entertainment (Adults)
Attended a movie in last 6 months 1,743 59.9% 101
Went to live theater in last 12 months 406 13.9% 120
Went to a bar/night club in last 12 months 546 18.8% 107
Dined out in last 12 months 1,385 47.6% 93
Gambled at a casino in last 12 months 341 11.7% 90
Visited a theme park in last 12 months 491 16.9% 89
Viewed movie (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 469 16.1% 89
Viewed TV show (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 405 13.9% 100
Watched any pay-per-view TV in last 12 months 274 9.4% 86
Downloaded a movie over the Internet in last 30 days 337 11.6% 128
Downloaded any individual song in last 6 months 584 20.1% 99
Watched a movie online in the  last 30 days 1,058 36.3% 152
Watched a TV program online in last 30 days 657 22.6% 126
Played a video/electronic game (console) in last 12 months 312 10.7% 117
Played a video/electronic game (portable) in last 12 months 186 6.4% 123


Financial (Adults)
Have home mortgage (1st) 813 27.9% 88
Used ATM/cash machine in last 12 months 1,457 50.1% 94
Own any stock 161 5.5% 76
Own U.S. savings bond 102 3.5% 73
Own shares in mutual fund (stock) 122 4.2% 61
Own shares in mutual fund (bonds) 86 3.0% 62
Have interest checking account 809 27.8% 94
Have non-interest checking account 841 28.9% 98
Have savings account 1,734 59.6% 102
Have 401K retirement savings plan 419 14.4% 93
Own/used any credit/debit card in last 12 months 2,276 78.2% 98
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: <$111 342 11.7% 98
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $111-$225 197 6.8% 94
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $226-$450 167 5.7% 85
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $451-$700 190 6.5% 105
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $701-$1,000 157 5.4% 93
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $1,001+ 229 7.9% 72
Did banking online in last 12 months 1,155 39.7% 101
Did banking on mobile device in last 12 months 691 23.7% 101
Paid bills online in last 12 months 1,411 48.5% 98


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 2 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Grocery (Adults)


Used beef (fresh/frozen) in last 6 months 622 69.3% 101
Used bread in last 6 months 837 93.3% 100
Used chicken (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 601 67.0% 97
Used turkey (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 134 14.9% 98
Used fish/seafood (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 475 53.0% 97
Used fresh fruit/vegetables in last 6 months 771 86.0% 99
Used fresh milk in last 6 months 757 84.4% 98
Used organic food in last 6 months 236 26.3% 111


Health (Adults)
Exercise at home 2+ times per week 777 26.7% 96
Exercise at club 2+ times per week 369 12.7% 88
Visited a doctor in last 12 months 2,086 71.7% 93
Used vitamin/dietary supplement in last 6 months 1,519 52.2% 96


Home (Households)
Any home improvement in last 12 months 242 27.0% 97
Used housekeeper/maid/professional HH cleaning service in last 12 
months


119 13.3% 95
Purchased low ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 153 17.1% 102
Purchased big ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 237 26.4% 120
Bought any small kitchen appliance in last 12 months 202 22.5% 100
Bought any large kitchen appliance in last 12 months 116 12.9% 92


Insurance (Adults/Households)
Currently carry life insurance 1,239 42.6% 96
Carry medical/hospital/accident insurance 2,070 71.1% 95
Carry homeowner insurance 1,092 37.5% 79
Carry renter's insurance 414 14.2% 165
Have auto insurance: 1 vehicle in household covered 346 38.6% 126
Have auto insurance: 2 vehicles in household covered 253 28.2% 98
Have auto insurance: 3+ vehicles in household covered 166 18.5% 81


Pets (Households)
Household owns any pet 483 53.8% 99
Household owns any cat 205 22.9% 99
Household owns any dog 350 39.0% 94


Psychographics (Adults)
Buying American is important to me 1,007 34.6% 85
Usually buy items on credit rather than wait 425 14.6% 112
Usually buy based on quality - not price 654 22.5% 116
Price is usually more important than brand name 814 28.0% 100
Usually use coupons for brands I buy often 592 20.3% 113
Am interested in how to help the environment 580 19.9% 109
Usually pay more for environ safe product 388 13.3% 94
Usually value green products over convenience 322 11.1% 98
Likely to buy a brand that supports a charity 983 33.8% 97


Reading (Adults)
Bought digital book in last 12 months 373 12.8% 96
Bought hardcover book in last 12 months 574 19.7% 99
Bought paperback book in last 12 month 907 31.2% 107
Read any daily newspaper (paper version) 693 23.8% 115
Read any digital newspaper in last 30 days 1,230 42.3% 112
Read any magazine (paper/electronic version) in last 6 months 2,713 93.2% 103


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 3 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Restaurants (Adults)


Went to family restaurant/steak house in last 6 months 2,144 73.7% 98
Went to family restaurant/steak house: 4+ times a month 652 22.4% 83
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant in last 6 months 2,669 91.7% 102
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant 9+ times/mo 1,067 36.7% 92
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: eat in 1,034 35.5% 97
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: home delivery 271 9.3% 111
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/drive-thru 1,443 49.6% 105
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/walk-in 589 20.2% 96


Television & Electronics (Adults/Households)
Own any tablet 1,280 44.0% 96
Own any e-reader 169 5.8% 78
Own e-reader/tablet: iPad 688 23.6% 89
HH has Internet connectable TV 206 23.0% 89
Own any portable MP3 player 549 18.9% 88
HH owns 1 TV 195 21.7% 104
HH owns 2 TVs 259 28.9% 107
HH owns 3 TVs 172 19.2% 91
HH owns 4+ TVs 137 15.3% 86
HH subscribes to cable TV 395 44.0% 99
HH subscribes to fiber optic 54 6.0% 76
HH owns portable GPS navigation device 176 19.6% 79
HH purchased video game system in last 12 mos 56 6.2% 73
HH owns any Internet video device for TV 199 22.2% 109


Travel (Adults)
Domestic travel in last 12 months 1,542 53.0% 102
Took 3+ domestic non-business trips in last 12 months 334 11.5% 97
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 312 10.7% 99
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$1,499 168 5.8% 96
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,500-$1,999 115 4.0% 100
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $2,000-$2,999 80 2.7% 72
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 123 4.2% 67
Domestic travel in the 12 months: used general travel website 186 6.4% 92
Foreign travel in last 3 years 736 25.3% 95
Took 3+ foreign trips by plane in last 3 years 104 3.6% 74
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 151 5.2% 111
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$2,999 91 3.1% 83
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 137 4.7% 80
Foreign travel in last 3 years: used general travel website 146 5.0% 83
Nights spent in hotel/motel in last 12 months: any 1,199 41.2% 94
Took cruise of more than one day in last 3 years 270 9.3% 108
Member of any frequent flyer program 476 16.4% 94
Member of any hotel rewards program 401 13.8% 82


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 4 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Demographic Summary 2018 2023
Population 16,984 18,118
Population 18+ 13,204 14,085
Households 6,468 6,936
Median Household Income $53,815 $61,333


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Apparel (Adults)


Bought any men's clothing in last 12 months 6,194 46.9% 99
Bought any women's clothing in last 12 months 5,748 43.5% 101
Bought clothing for child <13 years in last 6 months 3,858 29.2% 109
Bought any shoes in last 12 months 6,953 52.7% 99
Bought costume jewelry in last 12 months 2,285 17.3% 95
Bought any fine jewelry in last 12 months 2,304 17.4% 98
Bought a watch in last 12 months 2,031 15.4% 97


Automobiles (Households)
HH owns/leases any vehicle 5,689 88.0% 103
HH bought/leased new vehicle last 12 mo 607 9.4% 97


Automotive Aftermarket (Adults)
Bought gasoline in last 6 months 11,476 86.9% 102
Bought/changed motor oil in last 12 months 6,518 49.4% 104
Had tune-up in last 12 months 3,509 26.6% 103


Beverages (Adults)
Drank bottled water/seltzer in last 6 months 8,882 67.3% 97
Drank regular cola in last 6 months 5,942 45.0% 102
Drank beer/ale in last 6 months 5,459 41.3% 98


Cameras (Adults)
Own digital point & shoot camera/camcorder 1,419 10.7% 92
Own digital SLR camera/camcorder 967 7.3% 94
Printed digital photos in last 12 months 3,076 23.3% 100


Cell Phones (Adults/Households)
Bought cell phone in last 12 months 4,664 35.3% 98
Have a smartphone 10,833 82.0% 103
Have a smartphone: Android phone (any brand) 5,652 42.8% 110
Have a smartphone: Apple iPhone 4,758 36.0% 94
Number of cell phones in household: 1 2,031 31.4% 102
Number of cell phones in household: 2 2,468 38.2% 99
Number of cell phones in household: 3+ 1,766 27.3% 99
HH has cell phone only (no landline telephone) 3,825 59.1% 112


Computers (Households)
HH owns a computer 4,895 75.7% 102
HH owns desktop computer 2,477 38.3% 100
HH owns laptop/notebook 3,783 58.5% 103
HH owns any Apple/Mac brand computer 1,055 16.3% 92
HH owns any PC/non-Apple brand computer 4,173 64.5% 103
HH purchased most recent computer in a store 2,488 38.5% 104
HH purchased most recent computer online 832 12.9% 96
Spent <$500 on most recent home computer 1,034 16.0% 105
Spent $500-$999 on most recent home computer
"


1,176 18.2% 103
Spent $1,000-$1,499 on most recent home computer 619 9.6% 101
Spent $1,500-$1,999 on most recent home computer 250 3.9% 84
Spent $2,000+ on most recent home computer 238 3.7% 91


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 5 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Convenience Stores (Adults)


Shopped at convenience store in last 6 mos 8,395 63.6% 102
Bought brewed coffee at convenience store in last 30 days 1,740 13.2% 97
Bought cigarettes at convenience store in last 30 days 1,674 12.7% 116
Bought gas at convenience store in last 30 days 5,205 39.4% 107
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: <$20 780 5.9% 82
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $20-$39 1,218 9.2% 96
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $40-$50 1,152 8.7% 105
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $51-$99 809 6.1% 110
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $100+ 3,129 23.7% 107


Entertainment (Adults)
Attended a movie in last 6 months 8,001 60.6% 102
Went to live theater in last 12 months 1,469 11.1% 96
Went to a bar/night club in last 12 months 2,318 17.6% 101
Dined out in last 12 months 6,664 50.5% 99
Gambled at a casino in last 12 months 1,707 12.9% 100
Visited a theme park in last 12 months 2,507 19.0% 100
Viewed movie (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 2,513 19.0% 105
Viewed TV show (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 1,860 14.1% 101
Watched any pay-per-view TV in last 12 months 1,394 10.6% 96
Downloaded a movie over the Internet in last 30 days 1,283 9.7% 107
Downloaded any individual song in last 6 months 2,715 20.6% 102
Watched a movie online in the  last 30 days 3,649 27.6% 115
Watched a TV program online in last 30 days 2,588 19.6% 109
Played a video/electronic game (console) in last 12 months 1,354 10.3% 112
Played a video/electronic game (portable) in last 12 months 773 5.9% 113


Financial (Adults)
Have home mortgage (1st) 4,359 33.0% 104
Used ATM/cash machine in last 12 months 7,115 53.9% 101
Own any stock 735 5.6% 77
Own U.S. savings bond 526 4.0% 83
Own shares in mutual fund (stock) 731 5.5% 80
Own shares in mutual fund (bonds) 474 3.6% 75
Have interest checking account 3,737 28.3% 96
Have non-interest checking account 3,992 30.2% 103
Have savings account 7,789 59.0% 101
Have 401K retirement savings plan 2,125 16.1% 104
Own/used any credit/debit card in last 12 months 10,455 79.2% 99
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: <$111 1,735 13.1% 109
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $111-$225 991 7.5% 105
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $226-$450 908 6.9% 102
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $451-$700 774 5.9% 94
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $701-$1,000 658 5.0% 86
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $1,001+ 1,084 8.2% 75
Did banking online in last 12 months 5,404 40.9% 104
Did banking on mobile device in last 12 months 3,329 25.2% 107
Paid bills online in last 12 months 6,700 50.7% 103


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 6 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Grocery (Adults)


Used beef (fresh/frozen) in last 6 months 4,544 70.3% 102
Used bread in last 6 months 6,081 94.0% 101
Used chicken (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 4,453 68.8% 100
Used turkey (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 1,007 15.6% 102
Used fish/seafood (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 3,438 53.2% 97
Used fresh fruit/vegetables in last 6 months 5,615 86.8% 100
Used fresh milk in last 6 months 5,607 86.7% 101
Used organic food in last 6 months 1,427 22.1% 93


Health (Adults)
Exercise at home 2+ times per week 3,683 27.9% 100
Exercise at club 2+ times per week 1,778 13.5% 93
Visited a doctor in last 12 months 9,752 73.9% 96
Used vitamin/dietary supplement in last 6 months 6,929 52.5% 97


Home (Households)
Any home improvement in last 12 months 1,839 28.4% 102
Used housekeeper/maid/professional HH cleaning service in last 12 
months


788 12.2% 87
Purchased low ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 1,112 17.2% 103
Purchased big ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 1,515 23.4% 107
Bought any small kitchen appliance in last 12 months 1,418 21.9% 98
Bought any large kitchen appliance in last 12 months 940 14.5% 103


Insurance (Adults/Households)
Currently carry life insurance 5,922 44.9% 101
Carry medical/hospital/accident insurance 9,802 74.2% 99
Carry homeowner insurance 6,040 45.7% 97
Carry renter's insurance 1,382 10.5% 122
Have auto insurance: 1 vehicle in household covered 2,118 32.7% 107
Have auto insurance: 2 vehicles in household covered 1,993 30.8% 107
Have auto insurance: 3+ vehicles in household covered 1,370 21.2% 93


Pets (Households)
Household owns any pet 3,709 57.3% 105
Household owns any cat 1,528 23.6% 103
Household owns any dog 2,819 43.6% 105


Psychographics (Adults)
Buying American is important to me 5,487 41.6% 102
Usually buy items on credit rather than wait 1,859 14.1% 108
Usually buy based on quality - not price 2,560 19.4% 100
Price is usually more important than brand name 3,929 29.8% 107
Usually use coupons for brands I buy often 2,405 18.2% 102
Am interested in how to help the environment 2,293 17.4% 95
Usually pay more for environ safe product 1,804 13.7% 96
Usually value green products over convenience 1,416 10.7% 95
Likely to buy a brand that supports a charity 4,581 34.7% 100


Reading (Adults)
Bought digital book in last 12 months 1,699 12.9% 97
Bought hardcover book in last 12 months 2,542 19.3% 97
Bought paperback book in last 12 month 3,922 29.7% 102
Read any daily newspaper (paper version) 2,649 20.1% 97
Read any digital newspaper in last 30 days 5,108 38.7% 103
Read any magazine (paper/electronic version) in last 6 months 12,194 92.4% 102


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 7 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Restaurants (Adults)


Went to family restaurant/steak house in last 6 months 9,975 75.5% 100
Went to family restaurant/steak house: 4+ times a month 3,399 25.7% 96
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant in last 6 months 12,103 91.7% 102
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant 9+ times/mo 5,453 41.3% 104
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: eat in 4,790 36.3% 99
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: home delivery 1,232 9.3% 111
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/drive-thru 6,824 51.7% 109
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/walk-in 2,748 20.8% 99


Television & Electronics (Adults/Households)
Own any tablet 6,094 46.2% 101
Own any e-reader 885 6.7% 90
Own e-reader/tablet: iPad 3,315 25.1% 94
HH has Internet connectable TV 1,721 26.6% 103
Own any portable MP3 player 2,839 21.5% 100
HH owns 1 TV 1,277 19.7% 94
HH owns 2 TVs 1,851 28.6% 106
HH owns 3 TVs 1,337 20.7% 98
HH owns 4+ TVs 1,148 17.7% 100
HH subscribes to cable TV 2,961 45.8% 103
HH subscribes to fiber optic 431 6.7% 84
HH owns portable GPS navigation device 1,499 23.2% 93
HH purchased video game system in last 12 mos 482 7.5% 88
HH owns any Internet video device for TV 1,380 21.3% 104


Travel (Adults)
Domestic travel in last 12 months 6,832 51.7% 99
Took 3+ domestic non-business trips in last 12 months 1,433 10.9% 91
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 1,423 10.8% 100
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$1,499 725 5.5% 92
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,500-$1,999 495 3.7% 95
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $2,000-$2,999 405 3.1% 80
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 725 5.5% 87
Domestic travel in the 12 months: used general travel website 816 6.2% 89
Foreign travel in last 3 years 3,201 24.2% 92
Took 3+ foreign trips by plane in last 3 years 471 3.6% 74
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 606 4.6% 98
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$2,999 416 3.2% 84
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 570 4.3% 73
Foreign travel in last 3 years: used general travel website 674 5.1% 85
Nights spent in hotel/motel in last 12 months: any 5,668 42.9% 98
Took cruise of more than one day in last 3 years 1,121 8.5% 99
Member of any frequent flyer program 2,010 15.2% 87
Member of any hotel rewards program 1,895 14.4% 86


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 8 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Demographic Summary 2018 2023
Population 41,156 44,250
Population 18+ 30,994 33,326
Households 15,945 17,204
Median Household Income $61,980 $71,035


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Apparel (Adults)


Bought any men's clothing in last 12 months 15,012 48.4% 103
Bought any women's clothing in last 12 months 13,623 44.0% 102
Bought clothing for child <13 years in last 6 months 9,388 30.3% 113
Bought any shoes in last 12 months 16,716 53.9% 101
Bought costume jewelry in last 12 months 5,446 17.6% 97
Bought any fine jewelry in last 12 months 5,467 17.6% 99
Bought a watch in last 12 months 4,653 15.0% 95


Automobiles (Households)
HH owns/leases any vehicle 14,235 89.3% 104
HH bought/leased new vehicle last 12 mo 1,610 10.1% 104


Automotive Aftermarket (Adults)
Bought gasoline in last 6 months 27,519 88.8% 104
Bought/changed motor oil in last 12 months 15,426 49.8% 104
Had tune-up in last 12 months 8,258 26.6% 104


Beverages (Adults)
Drank bottled water/seltzer in last 6 months 21,334 68.8% 99
Drank regular cola in last 6 months 13,671 44.1% 100
Drank beer/ale in last 6 months 13,076 42.2% 100


Cameras (Adults)
Own digital point & shoot camera/camcorder 3,668 11.8% 101
Own digital SLR camera/camcorder 2,595 8.4% 107
Printed digital photos in last 12 months 7,874 25.4% 109


Cell Phones (Adults/Households)
Bought cell phone in last 12 months 11,073 35.7% 99
Have a smartphone 25,930 83.7% 105
Have a smartphone: Android phone (any brand) 13,069 42.2% 109
Have a smartphone: Apple iPhone 12,049 38.9% 101
Number of cell phones in household: 1 4,469 28.0% 91
Number of cell phones in household: 2 6,187 38.8% 101
Number of cell phones in household: 3+ 4,909 30.8% 112
HH has cell phone only (no landline telephone) 9,223 57.8% 110


Computers (Households)
HH owns a computer 12,507 78.4% 105
HH owns desktop computer 6,445 40.4% 105
HH owns laptop/notebook 9,657 60.6% 107
HH owns any Apple/Mac brand computer 2,754 17.3% 97
HH owns any PC/non-Apple brand computer 10,661 66.9% 106
HH purchased most recent computer in a store 6,329 39.7% 107
HH purchased most recent computer online 2,194 13.8% 103
Spent <$500 on most recent home computer 2,553 16.0% 105
Spent $500-$999 on most recent home computer
"


3,090 19.4% 110
Spent $1,000-$1,499 on most recent home computer 1,606 10.1% 106
Spent $1,500-$1,999 on most recent home computer 633 4.0% 86
Spent $2,000+ on most recent home computer 639 4.0% 99


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 9 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Convenience Stores (Adults)


Shopped at convenience store in last 6 mos 19,935 64.3% 103
Bought brewed coffee at convenience store in last 30 days 4,176 13.5% 100
Bought cigarettes at convenience store in last 30 days 3,580 11.6% 106
Bought gas at convenience store in last 30 days 12,599 40.6% 110
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: <$20 1,924 6.2% 86
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $20-$39 2,870 9.3% 97
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $40-$50 2,636 8.5% 103
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $51-$99 1,805 5.8% 104
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $100+ 7,666 24.7% 111


Entertainment (Adults)
Attended a movie in last 6 months 19,405 62.6% 105
Went to live theater in last 12 months 3,505 11.3% 97
Went to a bar/night club in last 12 months 5,548 17.9% 102
Dined out in last 12 months 16,391 52.9% 104
Gambled at a casino in last 12 months 3,998 12.9% 100
Visited a theme park in last 12 months 6,301 20.3% 107
Viewed movie (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 6,202 20.0% 110
Viewed TV show (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 4,596 14.8% 106
Watched any pay-per-view TV in last 12 months 3,604 11.6% 106
Downloaded a movie over the Internet in last 30 days 3,095 10.0% 110
Downloaded any individual song in last 6 months 6,705 21.6% 107
Watched a movie online in the  last 30 days 8,359 27.0% 113
Watched a TV program online in last 30 days 6,109 19.7% 110
Played a video/electronic game (console) in last 12 months 3,076 9.9% 109
Played a video/electronic game (portable) in last 12 months 1,737 5.6% 108


Financial (Adults)
Have home mortgage (1st) 11,394 36.8% 116
Used ATM/cash machine in last 12 months 17,331 55.9% 105
Own any stock 1,966 6.3% 88
Own U.S. savings bond 1,355 4.4% 91
Own shares in mutual fund (stock) 1,871 6.0% 88
Own shares in mutual fund (bonds) 1,367 4.4% 92
Have interest checking account 9,307 30.0% 102
Have non-interest checking account 9,555 30.8% 105
Have savings account 19,056 61.5% 105
Have 401K retirement savings plan 5,528 17.8% 115
Own/used any credit/debit card in last 12 months 25,143 81.1% 102
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: <$111 4,189 13.5% 112
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $111-$225 2,383 7.7% 107
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $226-$450 2,114 6.8% 101
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $451-$700 1,901 6.1% 99
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $701-$1,000 1,730 5.6% 96
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $1,001+ 2,983 9.6% 88
Did banking online in last 12 months 13,515 43.6% 111
Did banking on mobile device in last 12 months 8,300 26.8% 114
Paid bills online in last 12 months 16,516 53.3% 108


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 10 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Grocery (Adults)


Used beef (fresh/frozen) in last 6 months 11,384 71.4% 104
Used bread in last 6 months 15,095 94.7% 101
Used chicken (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 11,257 70.6% 103
Used turkey (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 2,525 15.8% 103
Used fish/seafood (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 8,628 54.1% 99
Used fresh fruit/vegetables in last 6 months 13,967 87.6% 101
Used fresh milk in last 6 months 13,979 87.7% 102
Used organic food in last 6 months 3,628 22.8% 96


Health (Adults)
Exercise at home 2+ times per week 8,990 29.0% 104
Exercise at club 2+ times per week 4,458 14.4% 100
Visited a doctor in last 12 months 23,323 75.3% 98
Used vitamin/dietary supplement in last 6 months 16,515 53.3% 98


Home (Households)
Any home improvement in last 12 months 4,830 30.3% 109
Used housekeeper/maid/professional HH cleaning service in last 12 
months


2,113 13.3% 95
Purchased low ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 2,818 17.7% 105
Purchased big ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 3,852 24.2% 110
Bought any small kitchen appliance in last 12 months 3,630 22.8% 102
Bought any large kitchen appliance in last 12 months 2,462 15.4% 109


Insurance (Adults/Households)
Currently carry life insurance 14,773 47.7% 107
Carry medical/hospital/accident insurance 23,581 76.1% 102
Carry homeowner insurance 15,404 49.7% 105
Carry renter's insurance 3,002 9.7% 113
Have auto insurance: 1 vehicle in household covered 4,701 29.5% 96
Have auto insurance: 2 vehicles in household covered 5,148 32.3% 112
Have auto insurance: 3+ vehicles in household covered 3,908 24.5% 107


Pets (Households)
Household owns any pet 9,373 58.8% 108
Household owns any cat 3,798 23.8% 104
Household owns any dog 7,293 45.7% 110


Psychographics (Adults)
Buying American is important to me 12,832 41.4% 102
Usually buy items on credit rather than wait 4,270 13.8% 105
Usually buy based on quality - not price 5,971 19.3% 100
Price is usually more important than brand name 9,087 29.3% 105
Usually use coupons for brands I buy often 5,598 18.1% 101
Am interested in how to help the environment 5,247 16.9% 93
Usually pay more for environ safe product 4,152 13.4% 94
Usually value green products over convenience 3,286 10.6% 94
Likely to buy a brand that supports a charity 10,715 34.6% 100


Reading (Adults)
Bought digital book in last 12 months 4,228 13.6% 102
Bought hardcover book in last 12 months 6,258 20.2% 102
Bought paperback book in last 12 month 9,511 30.7% 106
Read any daily newspaper (paper version) 5,816 18.8% 91
Read any digital newspaper in last 30 days 12,349 39.8% 106
Read any magazine (paper/electronic version) in last 6 months 28,698 92.6% 102


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 11 of 12







Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923


Longitude: -83.07736


Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Restaurants (Adults)


Went to family restaurant/steak house in last 6 months 23,984 77.4% 103
Went to family restaurant/steak house: 4+ times a month 8,367 27.0% 100
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant in last 6 months 28,616 92.3% 102
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant 9+ times/mo 13,128 42.4% 107
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: eat in 11,574 37.3% 102
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: home delivery 2,803 9.0% 108
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/drive-thru 16,383 52.9% 112
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/walk-in 6,565 21.2% 101


Television & Electronics (Adults/Households)
Own any tablet 15,134 48.8% 107
Own any e-reader 2,311 7.5% 101
Own e-reader/tablet: iPad 8,631 27.8% 105
HH has Internet connectable TV 4,558 28.6% 111
Own any portable MP3 player 6,997 22.6% 105
HH owns 1 TV 2,848 17.9% 85
HH owns 2 TVs 4,404 27.6% 102
HH owns 3 TVs 3,426 21.5% 102
HH owns 4+ TVs 3,242 20.3% 114
HH subscribes to cable TV 7,162 44.9% 101
HH subscribes to fiber optic 1,086 6.8% 86
HH owns portable GPS navigation device 3,976 24.9% 100
HH purchased video game system in last 12 mos 1,258 7.9% 93
HH owns any Internet video device for TV 3,658 22.9% 112


Travel (Adults)
Domestic travel in last 12 months 16,931 54.6% 105
Took 3+ domestic non-business trips in last 12 months 3,627 11.7% 98
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 3,400 11.0% 102
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$1,499 1,854 6.0% 100
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,500-$1,999 1,308 4.2% 107
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $2,000-$2,999 1,111 3.6% 94
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 1,973 6.4% 101
Domestic travel in the 12 months: used general travel website 2,059 6.6% 96
Foreign travel in last 3 years 7,903 25.5% 96
Took 3+ foreign trips by plane in last 3 years 1,203 3.9% 81
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 1,492 4.8% 103
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$2,999 1,019 3.3% 87
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 1,491 4.8% 81
Foreign travel in last 3 years: used general travel website 1,691 5.5% 90
Nights spent in hotel/motel in last 12 months: any 14,268 46.0% 105
Took cruise of more than one day in last 3 years 2,842 9.2% 107
Member of any frequent flyer program 5,248 16.9% 97
Member of any hotel rewards program 5,177 16.7% 100


Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.


July 10, 2018


©2018 Esri Page 12 of 12





		1. Cover Letter Re Study 235 W William St

		2. Summary Report 235 W. William St 071618

		3. Wesleyan Inn - Community Profile

		4.  Wesleyan Inn - Business Summary

		5. Wesleyan Inn - Retail MarketPlace Profile

		6. Wesleyan Inn - Retail Market Potential Report





trips/day, and we are removing one single-
family residence, resulting in 31 trips/day. By
removing vehicular traffic from Oak Hill Ave.,
we are increasing safety in the area. The
proposed access improvements will also help
with traffic concerns.

Concerns about parking. We would rather
have the building next to us instead of parking.

City Staff recommended that the Owner
purchase the adjacent single-family home to
provide an access point and increased setback
from neighboring residents. Parking is
appropriately sited to take advantage of this.

Parking lot will be too large. The Owner is providing parking per Zoning
Requirements. There is potential for shared
parking with neighboring Ohio Wesleyan
University.

Taking out trees and modifying parking (as
recommended by the City) on the north side of
the road will impact residents’ safety.

We are working with the City Engineering
Department on a solution that only includes
modifications to the south side of W. William
St. The north side will remain as-is.

Do not want the rental house to become an
expansion of the hotel

The Owner intends to retain the house as a
rental property to buffer the use from the
residences on the other side.

Transient visitors and concerns about privacy
and questionable activities.

Guests must check-in with valid ID and their
activity will be monitored appropriately while
in the parking lot and interior common areas.

Replace more of the trees. We are adding landscaping to buffer the
parking and will replace trees, per City
requirements.

This isn’t really historic restoration. We will work with the Delaware County
Historical Society to make sure the structure is
preserved to the greatest extent while
provided safety and security required in a
boutique hotel use.

The structure should be returned to its original
single-family use.

It hasn’t been a single-family home since the
original Owner. It has been improved and
added-on to over the years by subsequent
Owners. Returning to a single-family use is not
feasible.



Concerns about what future use could replace
the hotel if it is not successful.

Ohio Wesleyan University has first rights of
refusal to purchase the property back if the
Owner sells in the future.

Concerns that the hotel will be constructed
and converted to student housing.

The Owner is planning a boutique hotel use,
not student housing.

The hotel will be too far from Downtown. The site is within a 5-10 minute walk of
Downtown uses.

 
 
 
 
 

 

Roadwork delays. We will work with the City to limit delays as
much as possible. The street is only being
widened on the Owner’s side (south) of W.
William St.

Conferences and catered special events will
cause trouble.

The use is not being outfitted with a
conference room, banquet hall or restaurant.
It will not have the capacity to hold these types
of functions.

   

The hotel will degrade property values. The improvements will become a
neighborhood asset. The impact on property
values is expected to be positive, if there is any
impact at all.

It will be too tall. The improvements will not increase building
heights, which currently meet zoning
requirements.

Other hotels have failed and this hotel will be
too expensive (and fail too).

Location of the use and room rates are based
on market research. The boutique hotel will be
a higher-end experience than other area hotel
offerings, filling a need that isn’t being met.

Residential fabric. Benefit of mixed-use.

The Owner lives in Powell, but states that the The hotel is not a chain operation with offices



hotel will be locally owned and operated. outside the area. The Owner lives in Dublin
which is in Delaware County and. The Owner
also owns and operates other properties and
businesses in Delaware.

Use creep. Will this cause other uses to
“creep” further away from Sandusky St. along
W. William?

Zoning and Comprehensive Plan determine
uses, and the Owner plans to retain the
adjacent single-family house as a rental
property.

Concerned about precedent of adding non-
residential use in a neighborhood.

The use is adjacent to the University and
adheres to the Comprehensive Plan.

Resident didn’t anticipate a hotel being
located at this site when she bought her
house.

The use is an improvement over the previous
use, and is in line with the Comprehensive
Plan.

 
We hope this is helpful as you review the project. Please do not hesitate to follow-up with any
questions or comments you might have.  My cell phone number is 614-512-0182 and I would
welcome the opportunity to discuss this with you.
 
Sincerely,
 
Joe Clase, AICP  |  Plan 4 Land, LLC

10 West North Street, P.O. Box 215, Ostrander, Ohio 43061
(833) 752-6452 toll-free office line  |  joe@plan4land.net  |  www.plan4land.net

Online Conference Room: https://www.gotomeet.me/plan4land
First GoToMeeting? Try a test session: http://help.citrix.com/getready  

 

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

mailto:joe@plan4land.net
http://www.plan4land.net/
http://www.plan4land.net/
https://www.gotomeet.me/plan4land
http://help.citrix.com/getready


Architecture
July 16, 2018

Mr, James Manos

Re: Report on Wesleyan Inn Feasibility Study and Additional 

Dear Jim,
     

Please find attached a report summary of key points from our market and cost feasibility study
that can be shared with City Council. Although the details are proprietary, I extracted the most
important information in summary form. Since you already shared cost information, I omitted
this from my report. However, it is my impression there may be a concern as to how our project
may impact the viability of a larger franchise hotel. The short answer is that it has no impact
whatsoever as I describe below.

In addition, I included more recent data, that Joe Clase provided, pertaining to the current
community and business environment is also attached. This information is pertinent to this
project. In particular, it confirms that there are only four hotels within five minute drive of
downtown (a key metric for a boutique hotel) and infers there is a need for more restaurants and
retail businesses, which in turn further boost the hotel and lodging needs in the future.

Finally, I would like to include several important comments for consideration.

1. Preserve History: Saving the Perkins Home and its history is critical to the continued
economic development of the city. Historic preservation, restoration and adaptive re-use
of historic buildings is what made the City of Delaware the special place it is today.
Allowing further deterioration and eventual loss of this structure would only serve to
undermine that which so many in the community have worked to establish over many
decades.

2. Market Competition: Clearly there is a need for hotel beds in and around downtown.
This project, being a boutique hotel, will not compete with any of the larger franchise
hotels rumored to have an interest in locating downtown. Therefore, there is no reason to
be concerned that any of the large chains would lose interest if our project is approved.
Like us, they are well aware that there is a need for up to two franchise hotels of 100+
rooms, 1-2 more boutique hotels and at least one bed and breakfast. Like the downtown
businesses as a whole, a good mix of quality hotels will have a positive impact on the
community and will enhance the reputation of downtown as a destination location. 

3820 North High Street Columbus, Ohio 43214   Ph: (614) 545-1147
Member of the Association of Licensed Architects

1 of 2



Architecture

3. Surrounding Neighborhood: This property has been neglected is vandalized and broken
into on a regular basis. This is an opportunity to resolve this problem before it is
irreparably damaged or damage is done to surrounding properties.

4. Property Values: I believe this project will have positive impact on the surrounding
residential property values as is always the case when deteriorating buildings are
renovated. Switching to an upscale hotel from student housing is a more compatible use
with the single-family homes nearby and should make a goof buffer between the
dormitories and the residential neighborhood. Once completed, this project will add to the
property tax base and hotel bed tax revenues. 

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Patrick W. Manley, RA, ALA

Enclosures:

2. Summary Report
3. Community Profile
4. Business Summary
5. Retail MarketPlace Profile
6. Retail Market Potential

3820 North High Street Columbus, Ohio 43214   Ph: (614) 545-1147
Member of the Association of Licensed Architects

2 of 2



SUMMARY OF
MARKET AND COST 

PRELIMINARY FEASIBILITY STUDY
FOR A PROPOSED HOTEL

IN
DELAWARE, OHIO

Date:
February 15, 2018

Summary Prepared:
July 16, 2018

Complete Report for Internal Use Only
Proprietary Information

1/3



SUMMARY
Based on a preliminary evaluation of the subject site at 235 W. William St., its location, size, 
street and utility access, zoning restrictions and assuming preservation of the former Perkins 
residence, a mid-size boutique hotel containing 45-65 rooms is a viable business from both a 
market need and cost perspective.  

MARKET AREA
Key factors in evaluating the Delaware, Ohio market include proximity to the downtown 
business district and Ohio Wesleyan University. More speci fically, the downtown restaurant 
and shopping area identi fied by renovated buildings, on-street parking, public parking, and 
businesses with evening hours of operation are attractive for lodging facilities. The downtown 
area was identi fied as the intersection of N. Sandusky Street and Winter Streets based on  
several factors. Please note that the actual business district is broader, but this intersection 
provides a reliable point of reference suitable for consideration. For the purposes of this 
study, “downtown” refers to this intersection. 

CONCLUSIONS
The conclusions in this study are preliminary and reflect reasonable interpretation of available
data. The purpose of the study was to determine the feasibility of building and operating a 
boutique hotel in Delaware, Ohio. For the purposes of this study, a boutique hotel is defined 
as a hotel having 10-100 rooms, a full service chain hotel as having 75-125 rooms and a bed 
and breakfast as having less than 10 rooms. Luxury hotels were excluded from consideration 
and are not considered appropriate for the downtown market at this time.

COMPETITION FROM OTHER HOTELS
At this time there is no competition for rooms in any of the aforementioned three hotel 
categories. A unique, one off boutique hotel can compete with similar hotels and to a  lesser 
degree, bed and breakfast facilities. Franchise hotels typically do not compete with boutique 
lodging, but in fact complement one another in that each serves a different market segment 
and collectively contribute to market synergy in the same way the downtown restaurants 
combine to produce an effect greater than the sum of the individual establishments.

MARKET DEMAND 
Downtown development combined with Ohio Wesleyan University, The Little Brown Jug, and 
other events, has resulted in a signi ficant shortage of new hotel accommodations in and 
around downtown. The current room shortage is estimated to be 200 rooms. The five and ten 
year projections are 250 and 350 rooms respectively based on current trends and growth.

DISTANCE ZONES
The optimum location for a boutique hotel is 0-1 mile from the entertainment and shopping 
district. 1-2 miles is acceptable. 2-5 miles is discouraged, although it is acceptable for a full 
service hotel with suites, restaurant, conference space and transportation. 

The areas under consideration are shown on the following map. The shaded circles represent
1, 2 and 5 mile radii, with the 1 mile radius being the most desirable location. The subject 
property is 0.6 miles from downtown, well within walking, biking and driving access as 
boutique hotels are particularly sensitive to location. The subject property is a 12 minute walk,
4 minute bike ride, or 3 minute drive from the intersection of N. Sandusky Street and Winter 
Streets. The perimeter of the highest concentrations of restaurants range from 7-13 minutes 
walking, 3-5 minutes biking and 2-4 minutes driving.

2/3



3/3



Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
Population Summary 

2000 Total Population 3,611 13,583 28,349
2010 Total Population 3,410 15,767 37,602
2018 Total Population 3,361 16,984 41,156

2018 Group Quarters 1,207 1,508 1,949
2023 Total Population 3,423 18,118 44,250

2018-2023 Annual Rate 0.37% 1.30% 1.46%
2018 Total Daytime Population 3,772 16,615 38,173

Workers 1,798 7,381 17,134
Residents 1,974 9,234 21,039

Household Summary
2000 Households 883 4,865 10,731

2000 Average Household Size 2.50 2.43 2.46
2010 Households 892 5,914 14,420

2010 Average Household Size 2.42 2.40 2.47
2018 Households 897 6,468 15,945

2018 Average Household Size 2.40 2.39 2.46
2023 Households 924 6,936 17,204

2023 Average Household Size 2.40 2.39 2.46
2018-2023 Annual Rate 0.59% 1.41% 1.53%

2010 Families 490 3,667 9,495
2010 Average Family Size 3.04 2.99 3.01

2018 Families 484 3,960 10,371
2018 Average Family Size 3.05 3.01 3.03

2023 Families 497 4,230 11,141
2023 Average Family Size 3.05 3.02 3.04
2018-2023 Annual Rate 0.53% 1.33% 1.44%

Housing Unit Summary
2000 Housing Units 954 5,167 11,525

Owner Occupied Housing Units 46.1% 55.6% 59.5%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 46.4% 38.6% 33.7%
Vacant Housing Units 7.4% 5.8% 6.9%

2010 Housing Units 1,003 6,424 15,395
Owner Occupied Housing Units 41.9% 53.7% 59.8%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 47.1% 38.4% 33.8%
Vacant Housing Units 11.1% 7.9% 6.3%

2018 Housing Units 1,012 7,017 16,988
Owner Occupied Housing Units 34.8% 47.4% 53.7%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 53.9% 44.8% 40.2%
Vacant Housing Units 11.4% 7.8% 6.1%

2023 Housing Units 1,045 7,536 18,366
Owner Occupied Housing Units 36.5% 49.7% 55.5%
Renter Occupied Housing Units 52.0% 42.4% 38.2%
Vacant Housing Units 11.6% 8.0% 6.3%

Median Household Income
2018 $44,614 $53,815 $61,980
2023 $52,872 $61,333 $71,035

Median Home Value
2018 $166,832 $159,851 $175,008
2023 $186,927 $174,885 $188,558

Per Capita Income
2018 $23,317 $27,339 $30,360
2023 $26,950 $31,855 $35,035

Median Age
2010 23.3 32.7 34.4
2018 23.8 34.2 36.0
2023 24.1 34.5 35.8

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters.  Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households.  
Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption.  Per Capita Income represents the income received by 
all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 1 of 7



Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2018 Households by Income

Household Income Base 897 6,468 15,945
<$15,000 16.6% 11.9% 9.2%
$15,000 - $24,999 14.3% 10.8% 8.8%
$25,000 - $34,999 9.9% 9.5% 8.8%
$35,000 - $49,999 12.9% 13.9% 13.0%
$50,000 - $74,999 14.0% 18.5% 17.8%
$75,000 - $99,999 8.8% 13.8% 15.5%
$100,000 - $149,999 12.4% 14.4% 17.9%
$150,000 - $199,999 4.1% 4.2% 5.3%
$200,000+ 6.8% 3.0% 3.7%

Average Household Income $71,789 $68,965 $77,010
2023 Households by Income

Household Income Base 924 6,936 17,204
<$15,000 14.1% 10.0% 7.7%
$15,000 - $24,999 12.2% 8.9% 7.2%
$25,000 - $34,999 9.0% 8.0% 7.5%
$35,000 - $49,999 12.4% 12.8% 12.0%
$50,000 - $74,999 14.7% 18.7% 17.7%
$75,000 - $99,999 9.7% 15.0% 16.2%
$100,000 - $149,999 14.9% 17.5% 20.7%
$150,000 - $199,999 4.5% 5.2% 6.2%
$200,000+ 8.4% 3.9% 4.8%

Average Household Income $84,933 $80,557 $88,927
2018 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value

Total 352 3,324 9,116
<$50,000 2.0% 3.8% 4.9%
$50,000 - $99,999 11.6% 11.3% 9.3%
$100,000 - $149,999 26.7% 28.4% 18.5%
$150,000 - $199,999 28.7% 33.4% 34.5%
$200,000 - $249,999 13.4% 14.2% 15.7%
$250,000 - $299,999 11.6% 5.0% 7.8%
$300,000 - $399,999 5.4% 2.3% 5.0%
$400,000 - $499,999 0.6% 0.6% 2.0%
$500,000 - $749,999 0.0% 0.6% 1.3%
$750,000 - $999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.5%
$1,000,000 - $1,499,999 0.0% 0.4% 0.4%
$1,500,000 - $1,999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
$2,000,000 + 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%

Average Home Value $176,349 $168,880 $194,622
2023 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value

Total 381 3,742 10,187
<$50,000 0.8% 2.3% 2.8%
$50,000 - $99,999 7.6% 8.0% 6.2%
$100,000 - $149,999 20.5% 22.3% 14.4%
$150,000 - $199,999 28.6% 34.9% 34.6%
$200,000 - $249,999 16.3% 18.6% 19.1%
$250,000 - $299,999 16.0% 7.2% 9.8%
$300,000 - $399,999 8.9% 3.8% 7.0%
$400,000 - $499,999 1.3% 1.2% 3.0%
$500,000 - $749,999 0.0% 1.2% 2.0%
$750,000 - $999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.7%
$1,000,000 - $1,499,999 0.0% 0.4% 0.4%
$1,500,000 - $1,999,999 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
$2,000,000 + 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%

Average Home Value $199,344 $188,809 $218,342

Data Note: Income represents the preceding year, expressed in current dollars.  Household income includes wage and salary earnings, interest dividends, net rents, 
pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 2 of 7



Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2010 Population by Age

Total 3,410 15,766 37,601
0 - 4 4.0% 6.9% 7.7%
5 - 9 3.9% 6.3% 7.3%
10 - 14 3.8% 5.7% 6.4%
15 - 24 48.0% 20.7% 14.9%
25 - 34 9.4% 13.7% 14.5%
35 - 44 8.1% 12.4% 14.9%
45 - 54 8.5% 12.3% 12.7%
55 - 64 6.7% 10.0% 10.1%
65 - 74 3.9% 6.3% 6.0%
75 - 84 2.2% 4.0% 3.8%
85 + 1.5% 1.9% 1.7%

18 + 86.0% 77.7% 75.0%
2018 Population by Age

Total 3,361 16,985 41,155
0 - 4 3.7% 6.4% 6.9%
5 - 9 3.6% 6.5% 7.2%
10 - 14 3.7% 6.1% 6.9%
15 - 24 45.3% 19.1% 14.7%
25 - 34 11.2% 12.9% 12.9%
35 - 44 7.7% 12.7% 14.2%
45 - 54 7.3% 11.2% 12.7%
55 - 64 7.9% 10.9% 11.0%
65 - 74 5.5% 8.2% 7.9%
75 - 84 2.3% 3.9% 3.7%
85 + 1.7% 2.1% 1.8%

18 + 86.6% 77.7% 75.3%
2023 Population by Age

Total 3,422 18,117 44,248
0 - 4 3.8% 6.4% 6.9%
5 - 9 3.4% 6.3% 6.9%
10 - 14 3.5% 6.1% 7.0%
15 - 24 43.9% 18.2% 14.7%
25 - 34 13.2% 13.6% 13.4%
35 - 44 7.7% 12.9% 13.6%
45 - 54 6.6% 10.6% 12.2%
55 - 64 7.4% 10.3% 10.6%
65 - 74 6.1% 9.1% 8.6%
75 - 84 2.7% 4.5% 4.3%
85 + 1.7% 2.0% 1.8%

18 + 87.0% 77.7% 75.3%
2010 Population by Sex

Males 1,633 7,555 18,165
Females 1,777 8,212 19,437

2018 Population by Sex
Males 1,615 8,163 19,927
Females 1,747 8,821 21,229

2023 Population by Sex
Males 1,651 8,737 21,490
Females 1,773 9,381 22,760

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 3 of 7



Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2010 Population by Race/Ethnicity

Total 3,408 15,768 37,602
White Alone 88.0% 90.7% 91.2%
Black Alone 5.2% 4.4% 4.2%
American Indian Alone 0.1% 0.2% 0.2%
Asian Alone 3.7% 1.4% 1.2%
Pacific Islander Alone 0.1% 0.1% 0.0%
Some Other Race Alone 0.5% 0.7% 0.8%
Two or More Races 2.4% 2.6% 2.4%

Hispanic Origin 2.3% 2.4% 2.5%
Diversity Index 25.8 21.4 20.6

2018 Population by Race/Ethnicity
Total 3,360 16,985 41,158

White Alone 85.2% 88.9% 89.5%
Black Alone 5.4% 4.6% 4.4%
American Indian Alone 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Asian Alone 5.5% 2.0% 1.9%
Pacific Islander Alone 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Some Other Race Alone 0.6% 1.0% 1.0%
Two or More Races 3.0% 3.3% 3.0%

Hispanic Origin 3.2% 3.3% 3.3%
Diversity Index 31.3 25.8 24.8

2023 Population by Race/Ethnicity
Total 3,423 18,117 44,251

White Alone 83.3% 87.3% 88.0%
Black Alone 5.9% 5.0% 4.7%
American Indian Alone 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Asian Alone 6.3% 2.3% 2.2%
Pacific Islander Alone 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Some Other Race Alone 0.7% 1.1% 1.1%
Two or More Races 3.6% 4.0% 3.7%

Hispanic Origin 3.8% 3.9% 4.0%
Diversity Index 35.0 29.3 28.3

2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type
Total 3,410 15,767 37,602

In Households 63.3% 90.1% 94.6%
In Family Households 45.5% 71.8% 78.2%

Householder 15.0% 23.4% 25.2%
Spouse 10.4% 16.9% 19.2%
Child 16.9% 27.0% 29.6%
Other relative 1.3% 2.1% 2.0%
Nonrelative 1.9% 2.3% 2.1%

In Nonfamily Households 17.8% 18.4% 16.4%
In Group Quarters 36.7% 9.9% 5.4%

Institutionalized Population 0.7% 1.0% 1.5%
Noninstitutionalized Population 36.0% 8.9% 3.9%

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race.  The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/
ethnic groups.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 4 of 7



Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2018 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment
Total 1,466 10,526 26,430

Less than 9th Grade 0.6% 2.4% 1.7%
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma 7.6% 5.4% 4.7%
High School Graduate 23.2% 27.8% 25.3%
GED/Alternative Credential 3.8% 5.0% 4.2%
Some College, No Degree 15.3% 20.8% 22.5%
Associate Degree 8.9% 6.2% 7.1%
Bachelor's Degree 25.8% 19.8% 21.6%
Graduate/Professional Degree 14.7% 12.6% 13.1%

2018 Population 15+ by Marital Status
Total 2,990 13,763 32,487

Never Married 63.6% 35.5% 31.4%
Married 24.5% 45.5% 51.2%
Widowed 2.9% 5.7% 5.1%
Divorced 9.0% 13.4% 12.4%

2018 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force
   Civilian Employed 95.5% 97.4% 98.0%
   Civilian Unemployed (Unemployment Rate) 4.5% 2.6% 2.0%
2018 Employed Population 16+ by Industry
Total 1,411 7,892 20,423
   Agriculture/Mining 0.9% 1.2% 1.0%
   Construction 2.2% 5.5% 4.9%
   Manufacturing 7.4% 11.5% 11.4%
   Wholesale Trade 1.5% 2.8% 2.9%
   Retail Trade 13.0% 13.2% 12.0%
   Transportation/Utilities 1.4% 2.1% 3.5%
   Information 2.1% 1.8% 2.2%
   Finance/Insurance/Real Estate 3.1% 6.8% 7.6%
   Services 65.3% 50.1% 48.5%
   Public Administration 2.9% 4.9% 6.2%
2018 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation
Total 1,411 7,893 20,423
   White Collar 61.1% 61.4% 65.4%
      Management/Business/Financial 8.8% 12.8% 17.2%
      Professional 27.6% 24.1% 24.2%
      Sales 8.0% 9.5% 10.4%
      Administrative Support 16.7% 15.0% 13.6%
   Services 25.6% 18.2% 17.2%
   Blue Collar 13.3% 20.4% 17.4%
      Farming/Forestry/Fishing 0.7% 0.6% 0.4%
      Construction/Extraction 3.5% 4.5% 3.4%
      Installation/Maintenance/Repair 1.9% 3.0% 2.7%
      Production 4.4% 7.0% 5.8%
      Transportation/Material Moving 2.8% 5.3% 5.1%
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status

Total Population  3,410 15,767 37,602
Population Inside Urbanized Area 99.3% 98.7% 91.2%
Population Inside Urbanized Cluster  0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Rural Population 0.7% 1.3% 8.8%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 5 of 7



Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
2010 Households by Type

Total 891 5,914 14,420
Households with 1 Person 32.7% 30.5% 27.4%
Households with 2+ People 67.3% 69.5% 72.6%

Family Households 55.0% 62.0% 65.8%
Husband-wife Families 38.8% 44.6% 50.3%

With Related Children 16.2% 20.1% 24.0%
Other Family (No Spouse Present) 16.2% 17.4% 15.5%

Other Family with Male Householder 4.8% 5.0% 4.5%
With Related Children 3.1% 3.2% 3.0%

Other Family with Female Householder 11.3% 12.4% 11.1%
With Related Children 7.7% 8.1% 7.6%

Nonfamily Households 12.3% 7.5% 6.7%

All Households with Children 27.5% 32.1% 35.2%

Multigenerational Households 1.9% 2.5% 2.4%
Unmarried Partner Households 7.4% 7.6% 7.4%

Male-female 6.5% 6.9% 6.7%
Same-sex 0.9% 0.7% 0.7%

2010 Households by Size
Total 892 5,915 14,420

1 Person Household 32.6% 30.5% 27.4%
2 Person Household 33.1% 32.8% 33.4%
3 Person Household 15.4% 16.2% 16.4%
4 Person Household 11.0% 12.0% 13.9%
5 Person Household 5.5% 5.8% 6.3%
6 Person Household 1.8% 1.8% 2.0%
7 + Person Household 0.7% 0.8% 0.7%

2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status
Total 892 5,914 14,420

Owner Occupied 47.1% 58.3% 63.9%
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan 36.8% 45.7% 51.4%
Owned Free and Clear 10.3% 12.6% 12.4%

Renter Occupied 52.9% 41.7% 36.1%
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status

Total Housing Units 1,003 6,424 15,395
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area 98.9% 98.4% 91.1%
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Rural Housing Units 1.1% 1.6% 8.9%

Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not.  Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parent-
child relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the 
householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate 
polygons or non-standard geography.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 6 of 7



Community Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
Top 3 Tapestry Segments

1. Emerald City (8B) Parks and Rec (5C) Up and Coming Families 
(7A)2. Set to Impress (11D) Up and Coming Families 

(7A)
Middleburg (4C)

3. Middleburg (4C) Middleburg (4C) Soccer Moms (4A)

2018 Consumer Spending 
Apparel & Services:  Total $ $1,722,987 $11,727,094 $32,393,960

Average Spent $1,920.83 $1,813.09 $2,031.61
Spending Potential Index 88 83 93

Education:  Total $ $1,125,868 $7,564,359 $20,769,146
Average Spent $1,255.15 $1,169.51 $1,302.55
Spending Potential Index 87 81 90

Entertainment/Recreation:  Total $ $2,470,491 $17,220,494 $47,294,147
Average Spent $2,754.17 $2,662.41 $2,966.08
Spending Potential Index 86 83 92

Food at Home:  Total $ $3,941,082 $27,018,178 $73,687,147
Average Spent $4,393.63 $4,177.21 $4,621.33
Spending Potential Index 88 83 92

Food Away from Home:  Total $ $2,802,520 $19,000,932 $52,447,038
Average Spent $3,124.33 $2,937.68 $3,289.25
Spending Potential Index 89 84 94

Health Care:  Total $ $4,273,589 $30,528,553 $83,315,010
Average Spent $4,764.31 $4,719.94 $5,225.15
Spending Potential Index 83 82 91

HH Furnishings & Equipment:  Total $ $1,617,066 $11,224,720 $31,055,337
Average Spent $1,802.75 $1,735.42 $1,947.65
Spending Potential Index 86 83 93

Personal Care Products & Services: Total $ $648,808 $4,440,296 $12,301,155
Average Spent $723.31 $686.50 $771.47
Spending Potential Index 87 83 93

Shelter:  Total $ $13,437,352 $90,411,941 $246,395,054
Average Spent $14,980.33 $13,978.35 $15,452.81
Spending Potential Index 89 83 92

Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind: Total $ $1,836,622 $12,927,538 $35,381,765
Average Spent $2,047.52 $1,998.69 $2,218.99
Spending Potential Index 82 80 89

Travel:  Total $ $1,622,931 $11,313,664 $31,518,309
Average Spent $1,809.29 $1,749.18 $1,976.69
Spending Potential Index 84 81 92

Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total $ $837,729 $5,796,625 $15,889,525
Average Spent $933.92 $896.20 $996.52
Spending Potential Index 87 83 93

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area.  Expenditures are shown by broad 
budget categories that are not mutually exclusive.  Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual 
figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100.
Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2015 and 2016 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 7 of 7



Business Summary
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736
Data for all businesses in area 2 minutes 5 minutes 10 minutes
Total Businesses: 212 741 1,347
Total Employees: 2,137 7,952 16,701
Total Residential Population: 3,361 16,984 41,156
Employee/Residential Population Ratio (per 100 Residents) 64 47 41

Businesses Employees Businesses Employees Businesses Employees
by SIC Codes Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Agriculture & Mining 2 0.9% 7 0.3% 11 1.5% 88 1.1% 33 2.4% 233 1.4%
Construction 6 2.8% 24 1.1% 36 4.9% 157 2.0% 67 5.0% 314 1.9%
Manufacturing 4 1.9% 165 7.7% 15 2.0% 438 5.5% 46 3.4% 1,528 9.1%
Transportation 3 1.4% 46 2.2% 12 1.6% 226 2.8% 34 2.5% 556 3.3%
Communication 1 0.5% 2 0.1% 2 0.3% 12 0.2% 11 0.8% 105 0.6%
Utility 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 5 0.1% 4 0.3% 40 0.2%
Wholesale Trade 4 1.9% 32 1.5% 15 2.0% 116 1.5% 44 3.3% 773 4.6%

Retail Trade Summary 41 19.3% 428 20.0% 130 17.5% 1,438 18.1% 247 18.3% 4,185 25.1%
Home Improvement 2 0.9% 59 2.8% 9 1.2% 145 1.8% 19 1.4% 480 2.9%
General Merchandise Stores 1 0.5% 2 0.1% 3 0.4% 26 0.3% 11 0.8% 381 2.3%
Food Stores 2 0.9% 23 1.1% 9 1.2% 101 1.3% 22 1.6% 641 3.8%
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket 3 1.4% 24 1.1% 9 1.2% 84 1.1% 29 2.2% 743 4.4%
Apparel & Accessory Stores 1 0.5% 4 0.2% 4 0.5% 11 0.1% 8 0.6% 27 0.2%
Furniture & Home Furnishings 3 1.4% 9 0.4% 10 1.3% 59 0.7% 18 1.3% 101 0.6%
Eating & Drinking Places 18 8.5% 256 12.0% 54 7.3% 826 10.4% 87 6.5% 1,358 8.1%
Miscellaneous Retail 11 5.2% 52 2.4% 34 4.6% 188 2.4% 54 4.0% 454 2.7%

Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary 29 13.7% 137 6.4% 93 12.6% 415 5.2% 139 10.3% 593 3.6%
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions 7 3.3% 48 2.2% 19 2.6% 121 1.5% 28 2.1% 179 1.1%
Securities Brokers 5 2.4% 13 0.6% 12 1.6% 33 0.4% 18 1.3% 62 0.4%
Insurance Carriers & Agents 8 3.8% 24 1.1% 27 3.6% 89 1.1% 35 2.6% 124 0.7%
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices 8 3.8% 51 2.4% 36 4.9% 172 2.2% 57 4.2% 228 1.4%

Services Summary 91 42.9% 891 41.7% 326 44.0% 3,873 48.7% 553 41.1% 6,111 36.6%
Hotels & Lodging 1 0.5% 10 0.5% 4 0.5% 28 0.4% 8 0.6% 64 0.4%
Automotive Services 1 0.5% 6 0.3% 14 1.9% 46 0.6% 37 2.7% 122 0.7%
Motion Pictures & Amusements 5 2.4% 17 0.8% 22 3.0% 106 1.3% 43 3.2% 296 1.8%
Health Services 9 4.2% 114 5.3% 57 7.7% 935 11.8% 93 6.9% 1,502 9.0%
Legal Services 13 6.1% 57 2.7% 31 4.2% 120 1.5% 32 2.4% 123 0.7%
Education Institutions & Libraries 5 2.4% 125 5.8% 24 3.2% 763 9.6% 40 3.0% 1,229 7.4%
Other Services 56 26.4% 561 26.3% 173 23.3% 1,875 23.6% 301 22.3% 2,774 16.6%

Government 25 11.8% 403 18.9% 67 9.0% 1,172 14.7% 98 7.3% 2,246 13.4%

Unclassified Establishments 8 3.8% 3 0.1% 33 4.5% 11 0.1% 71 5.3% 17 0.1%

Totals 212 100.0% 2,137 100.0% 741 100.0% 7,952 100.0% 1,347 100.0% 16,701 100.0%

Source:  Copyright 2018 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2018.
Date Note: Data on the Business Summary report is calculated using Esri’s Data allocation method which uses census block groups to allocate business summary data to custom areas.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 1 of 2

http://doc.arcgis.com/en/esri-demographics/reference/data-allocation-method.htm


Business Summary
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2, 5, 10 minute radii Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736
Businesses Employees Businesses Employees Businesses Employees

by NAICS Codes Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 2 0.0% 6 0.4% 41 0.2%
Mining 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 24 0.1%
Utilities 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 4 0.1% 2 0.1% 30 0.2%
Construction 6 2.8% 24 1.1% 37 5.0% 162 2.0% 71 5.3% 325 1.9%
Manufacturing 5 2.4% 140 6.6% 16 2.2% 415 5.2% 50 3.7% 1,529 9.2%
Wholesale Trade 4 1.9% 32 1.5% 15 2.0% 116 1.5% 44 3.3% 771 4.6%
Retail Trade 21 9.9% 156 7.3% 74 10.0% 562 7.1% 154 11.4% 2,755 16.5%

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 1 0.5% 17 0.8% 6 0.8% 68 0.9% 23 1.7% 711 4.3%
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 1 0.5% 1 0.0% 3 0.4% 7 0.1% 7 0.5% 18 0.1%
Electronics & Appliance Stores 2 0.9% 7 0.3% 6 0.8% 29 0.4% 10 0.7% 53 0.3%
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers 2 0.9% 59 2.8% 9 1.2% 145 1.8% 19 1.4% 481 2.9%
Food & Beverage Stores 2 0.9% 11 0.5% 8 1.1% 80 1.0% 17 1.3% 600 3.6%
Health & Personal Care Stores 2 0.9% 6 0.3% 11 1.5% 80 1.0% 19 1.4% 219 1.3%
Gasoline Stations 1 0.5% 7 0.3% 3 0.4% 16 0.2% 6 0.4% 32 0.2%
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 1 0.5% 4 0.2% 4 0.5% 11 0.1% 8 0.6% 27 0.2%
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores 3 1.4% 26 1.2% 8 1.1% 57 0.7% 11 0.8% 72 0.4%
General Merchandise Stores 1 0.5% 2 0.1% 3 0.4% 26 0.3% 11 0.8% 381 2.3%
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 6 2.8% 16 0.7% 14 1.9% 45 0.6% 24 1.8% 160 1.0%
Nonstore Retailers 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.0%

Transportation & Warehousing 2 0.9% 42 2.0% 10 1.3% 216 2.7% 28 2.1% 515 3.1%
Information 5 2.4% 60 2.8% 11 1.5% 126 1.6% 27 2.0% 280 1.7%
Finance & Insurance 20 9.4% 85 4.0% 57 7.7% 243 3.1% 82 6.1% 365 2.2%

Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities 7 3.3% 48 2.2% 19 2.6% 121 1.5% 28 2.1% 179 1.1%
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial 
Investments & Other Related Activities

5 2.4% 13 0.6% 12 1.6% 33 0.4% 18 1.3% 62 0.4%
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts & 
Other Financial Vehicles

8 3.8% 24 1.1% 27 3.6% 89 1.1% 35 2.6% 124 0.7%
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing 9 4.2% 56 2.6% 42 5.7% 182 2.3% 79 5.9% 265 1.6%
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services 26 12.3% 104 4.9% 76 10.3% 361 4.5% 122 9.1% 603 3.6%

Legal Services 14 6.6% 59 2.8% 34 4.6% 129 1.6% 35 2.6% 133 0.8%
Management of Companies & Enterprises 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 0.1% 3 0.0% 1 0.1% 3 0.0%
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation 
Services

4 1.9% 28 1.3% 17 2.3% 174 2.2% 42 3.1% 336 2.0%
Educational Services 4 1.9% 111 5.2% 24 3.2% 742 9.3% 42 3.1% 1,224 7.3%
Health Care & Social Assistance 16 7.5% 194 9.1% 80 10.8% 1,507 19.0% 134 9.9% 2,353 14.1%
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation 4 1.9% 216 10.1% 18 2.4% 550 6.9% 33 2.4% 740 4.4%
Accommodation & Food Services 20 9.4% 280 13.1% 58 7.8% 878 11.0% 96 7.1% 1,446 8.7%

Accommodation 1 0.5% 10 0.5% 4 0.5% 28 0.4% 8 0.6% 64 0.4%
Food Services & Drinking Places 19 9.0% 270 12.6% 55 7.4% 850 10.7% 88 6.5% 1,382 8.3%

Other Services (except Public Administration) 33 15.6% 202 9.5% 102 13.8% 520 6.5% 165 12.2% 827 5.0%
Automotive Repair & Maintenance 1 0.5% 5 0.2% 10 1.3% 37 0.5% 24 1.8% 91 0.5%

Public Administration 26 12.3% 405 19.0% 68 9.2% 1,177 14.8% 99 7.3% 2,251 13.5%

Unclassified Establishments 8 3.8% 3 0.1% 33 4.5% 11 0.1% 71 5.3% 17 0.1%

Total 212 100.0% 2,137 100.0% 741 100.0% 7,952 100.0% 1,347 100.0% 16,701 100.0%
Source:  Copyright 2018 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2018.
Date Note: Data on the Business Summary report is calculated using Esri’s Data allocation method which uses census block groups to allocate business summary data to custom areas.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 2 of 2

http://doc.arcgis.com/en/esri-demographics/reference/data-allocation-method.htm


Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Summary Demographics
2018 Population 3,361
2018 Households 897
2018 Median Disposable Income $38,331
2018 Per Capita Income $23,317

NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Summary    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses

Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink 44-45,722 $29,232,795 $41,840,211 -$12,607,416 -17.7 40
Total Retail Trade 44-45 $26,334,544 $30,194,127 -$3,859,583 -6.8 22
Total Food & Drink 722 $2,898,251 $11,646,084 -$8,747,833 -60.1 18

NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Group    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 441 $5,568,921 $2,917,318 $2,651,603 31.2 1
   Automobile Dealers 4411 $4,497,393 $0 $4,497,393 100.0 0
   Other Motor Vehicle Dealers 4412 $506,300 $0 $506,300 100.0 0
   Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores 4413 $565,229 $2,794,742 -$2,229,513 -66.4 1
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 442 $790,275 $332,779 $457,496 40.7 1
   Furniture Stores 4421 $498,996 $0 $498,996 100.0 0
   Home Furnishings Stores 4422 $291,279 $332,779 -$41,500 -6.7 1
Electronics & Appliance Stores 443 $860,392 $1,627,297 -$766,905 -30.8 2
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores 444 $1,690,242 $8,655,934 -$6,965,692 -67.3 2
   Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers 4441 $1,558,584 $8,655,934 -$7,097,350 -69.5 2
   Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores 4442 $131,657 $0 $131,657 100.0 0
Food & Beverage Stores 445 $4,659,957 $2,081,481 $2,578,476 38.2 2
   Grocery Stores 4451 $4,187,683 $904,261 $3,283,422 64.5 1
   Specialty Food Stores 4452 $264,906 $0 $264,906 100.0 0
   Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores 4453 $207,368 $1,177,220 -$969,852 -70.0 1
Health & Personal Care Stores 446,4461 $1,897,841 $1,015,780 $882,061 30.3 2
Gasoline Stations 447,4471 $2,992,927 $7,496,130 -$4,503,203 -42.9 1
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 448 $1,280,807 $597,593 $683,214 36.4 1
   Clothing Stores 4481 $826,059 $597,593 $228,466 16.0 1
   Shoe Stores 4482 $184,768 $0 $184,768 100.0 0
   Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores 4483 $269,980 $0 $269,980 100.0 0
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 451 $604,644 $3,629,425 -$3,024,781 -71.4 3
   Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores 4511 $494,070 $3,573,691 -$3,079,621 -75.7 2
   Book, Periodical & Music Stores 4512 $110,574 $55,734 $54,840 33.0 1
General Merchandise Stores 452 $4,482,162 $343,000 $4,139,162 85.8 1
   Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts. 4521 $3,126,592 $0 $3,126,592 100.0 0
   Other General Merchandise Stores 4529 $1,355,570 $343,000 $1,012,570 59.6 1
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 453 $1,116,374 $1,497,391 -$381,017 -14.6 6
   Florists 4531 $44,386 $229,181 -$184,795 -67.6 1
   Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores 4532 $242,483 $447,070 -$204,587 -29.7 1
   Used Merchandise Stores 4533 $164,815 $345,428 -$180,613 -35.4 2
   Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 4539 $664,690 $475,713 $188,977 16.6 2
Nonstore Retailers 454 $390,003 $0 $390,003 100.0 0
   Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses 4541 $256,807 $0 $256,807 100.0 0
   Vending Machine Operators 4542 $41,325 $0 $41,325 100.0 0
   Direct Selling Establishments 4543 $91,871 $0 $91,871 100.0 0
Food Services & Drinking Places 722 $2,898,251 $11,646,084 -$8,747,833 -60.1 18
   Special Food Services 7223 $77,956 $54,391 $23,565 17.8 1
   Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages 7224 $107,948 $125,064 -$17,116 -7.3 1
   Restaurants/Other Eating Places 7225 $2,712,347 $11,466,630 -$8,754,283 -61.7 16

Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount 
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars.  The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This 
is a measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail 
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap 
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their 
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food 
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf

Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 1 of 6



Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector

Food Services & Drinking Places   
Nonstore Retailers   

Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
General Merchandise Stores  

Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores   
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 

Gasoline Stations   
Health & Personal Care Stores   

Food & Beverage Stores   
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores   

Electronics & Appliance Stores   
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores   

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers   

Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40-60

2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group

Restaurants/Other Eating Places

Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)   

Special Food Services   

Direct Selling Establishments   

Vending Machine Operators   

Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses   

Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
Used Merchandise Stores   

Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores   

Florists   

Other General Merchandise Stores   

Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)   

Book, Periodical, and Music Stores   

Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores   

Shoe Stores   

Clothing Stores   

Gasoline Stations  

Health & Personal Care Stores   

Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores   

Specialty Food Stores   

Grocery Stores   

Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores   
Building Material and Supplies Dealers   

Electronics & Appliance Stores   

Home Furnishings Stores   

Furniture Stores

Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores   

Other Motor Vehicle Dealers   

Automobile Dealers   

Leakage/Surplus Factor
1009080706050403020100-10-20-30-40-50-60-70

Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 2 of 6



Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Summary Demographics
2018 Population 16,984
2018 Households 6,468
2018 Median Disposable Income $44,833
2018 Per Capita Income $27,339

NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Summary    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses

Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink 44-45,722 $204,010,142 $156,234,883 $47,775,259 13.3 126
Total Retail Trade 44-45 $184,104,974 $120,420,030 $63,684,944 20.9 73
Total Food & Drink 722 $19,905,168 $35,814,853 -$15,909,685 -28.6 52

NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Group    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 441 $39,268,305 $26,108,036 $13,160,269 20.1 5
   Automobile Dealers 4411 $31,676,623 $13,930,152 $17,746,471 38.9 1
   Other Motor Vehicle Dealers 4412 $3,632,884 $0 $3,632,884 100.0 0
   Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores 4413 $3,958,797 $11,855,780 -$7,896,983 -49.9 3
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 442 $5,530,257 $2,006,204 $3,524,053 46.8 3
   Furniture Stores 4421 $3,423,528 $0 $3,423,528 100.0 0
   Home Furnishings Stores 4422 $2,106,729 $1,962,685 $144,044 3.5 3
Electronics & Appliance Stores 443 $5,954,555 $4,228,141 $1,726,414 17.0 5
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores 444 $12,696,095 $20,635,828 -$7,939,733 -23.8 10
   Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers 4441 $11,709,620 $20,017,133 -$8,307,513 -26.2 9
   Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores 4442 $986,475 $618,695 $367,780 22.9 1
Food & Beverage Stores 445 $32,062,592 $12,768,775 $19,293,817 43.0 6
   Grocery Stores 4451 $28,832,373 $10,041,945 $18,790,428 48.3 4
   Specialty Food Stores 4452 $1,820,645 $0 $1,820,645 100.0 0
   Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores 4453 $1,409,574 $2,713,383 -$1,303,809 -31.6 3
Health & Personal Care Stores 446,4461 $13,275,793 $18,398,750 -$5,122,957 -16.2 10
Gasoline Stations 447,4471 $20,821,492 $18,585,118 $2,236,374 5.7 5
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 448 $8,802,399 $1,658,308 $7,144,091 68.3 4
   Clothing Stores 4481 $5,673,194 $1,547,479 $4,125,715 57.1 4
   Shoe Stores 4482 $1,280,576 $0 $1,280,576 100.0 0
   Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores 4483 $1,848,629 $0 $1,848,629 100.0 0
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 451 $4,187,724 $7,701,288 -$3,513,564 -29.6 8
   Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores 4511 $3,448,768 $7,532,712 -$4,083,944 -37.2 5
   Book, Periodical & Music Stores 4512 $738,955 $168,577 $570,378 62.8 3
General Merchandise Stores 452 $31,002,313 $4,132,148 $26,870,165 76.5 3
   Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts. 4521 $21,627,046 $0 $21,627,046 100.0 0
   Other General Merchandise Stores 4529 $9,375,267 $2,112,750 $7,262,517 63.2 3
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 453 $7,735,521 $4,197,435 $3,538,086 29.6 14
   Florists 4531 $328,812 $408,186 -$79,374 -10.8 2
   Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores 4532 $1,689,520 $1,114,743 $574,777 20.5 2
   Used Merchandise Stores 4533 $1,116,534 $1,095,402 $21,132 1.0 5
   Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 4539 $4,600,655 $1,579,104 $3,021,551 48.9 5
Nonstore Retailers 454 $2,767,928 $0 $2,767,928 100.0 0
   Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses 4541 $1,794,402 $0 $1,794,402 100.0 0
   Vending Machine Operators 4542 $285,560 $0 $285,560 100.0 0
   Direct Selling Establishments 4543 $687,966 $0 $687,966 100.0 0
Food Services & Drinking Places 722 $19,905,168 $35,814,853 -$15,909,685 -28.6 52
   Special Food Services 7223 $550,465 $289,973 $260,492 31.0 2
   Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages 7224 $727,664 $222,747 $504,917 53.1 2
   Restaurants/Other Eating Places 7225 $18,627,040 $35,302,133 -$16,675,093 -30.9 48

Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount 
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars.  The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This 
is a measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail 
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap 
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their 
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food 
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf

Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 3 of 6



Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector

Food Services & Drinking Places   
Nonstore Retailers   

Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
General Merchandise Stores  

Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores   
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 

Gasoline Stations   
Health & Personal Care Stores   

Food & Beverage Stores   
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores   

Electronics & Appliance Stores   
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores   

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers   

Leakage/Surplus Factor
1009080706050403020100-10-20

2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group

Restaurants/Other Eating Places

Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)   

Special Food Services   

Direct Selling Establishments   

Vending Machine Operators   

Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses   

Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
Used Merchandise Stores   

Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores   

Florists   

Other General Merchandise Stores   

Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)   

Book, Periodical, and Music Stores   

Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores   

Shoe Stores   

Clothing Stores   

Gasoline Stations  

Health & Personal Care Stores   

Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores   

Specialty Food Stores   

Grocery Stores   

Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores   
Building Material and Supplies Dealers   

Electronics & Appliance Stores   

Home Furnishings Stores   

Furniture Stores

Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores   

Other Motor Vehicle Dealers   

Automobile Dealers   

Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40

Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 4 of 6



Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Summary Demographics
2018 Population 41,156
2018 Households 15,945
2018 Median Disposable Income $51,399
2018 Per Capita Income $30,360

NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Summary    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses

Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink 44-45,722 $561,424,510 $829,105,726 -$267,681,216 -19.3 244
Total Retail Trade 44-45 $506,368,281 $773,096,275 -$266,727,994 -20.8 161
Total Food & Drink 722 $55,056,228 $56,009,451 -$953,223 -0.9 84

NAICS    Demand          Supply Retail Gap Leakage/Surplus     Number of
2017 Industry Group    (Retail Potential)         (Retail Sales) Factor     Businesses

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 441 $108,256,437 $405,402,726 -$297,146,289 -57.8 23
   Automobile Dealers 4411 $87,267,674 $208,103,104 -$120,835,430 -40.9 10
   Other Motor Vehicle Dealers 4412 $10,124,430 $2,824,208 $7,300,222 56.4 2
   Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores 4413 $10,864,334 $194,475,414 -$183,611,080 -89.4 11
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 442 $15,375,297 $4,728,330 $10,646,967 53.0 6
   Furniture Stores 4421 $9,434,670 $533,118 $8,901,552 89.3 1
   Home Furnishings Stores 4422 $5,940,628 $4,195,212 $1,745,416 17.2 5
Electronics & Appliance Stores 443 $16,460,851 $10,107,482 $6,353,369 23.9 10
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores 444 $35,763,718 $53,074,376 -$17,310,658 -19.5 19
   Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers 4441 $33,039,696 $48,566,560 -$15,526,864 -19.0 15
   Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores 4442 $2,724,022 $4,507,816 -$1,783,794 -24.7 3
Food & Beverage Stores 445 $87,425,243 $131,331,483 -$43,906,240 -20.1 15
   Grocery Stores 4451 $78,619,887 $127,469,084 -$48,849,197 -23.7 10
   Specialty Food Stores 4452 $4,958,460 $677,533 $4,280,927 76.0 1
   Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores 4453 $3,846,896 $3,184,866 $662,030 9.4 3
Health & Personal Care Stores 446,4461 $36,255,991 $27,962,304 $8,293,687 12.9 18
Gasoline Stations 447,4471 $56,747,654 $37,396,159 $19,351,495 20.6 10
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 448 $24,340,806 $11,319,766 $13,021,040 36.5 12
   Clothing Stores 4481 $15,661,148 $7,824,885 $7,836,263 33.4 10
   Shoe Stores 4482 $3,562,175 $3,391,610 $170,565 2.5 2
   Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores 4483 $5,117,483 $0 $5,117,483 100.0 0
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 451 $11,620,065 $11,164,011 $456,054 2.0 12
   Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores 4511 $9,595,558 $10,934,164 -$1,338,606 -6.5 8
   Book, Periodical & Music Stores 4512 $2,024,507 $229,847 $1,794,660 79.6 4
General Merchandise Stores 452 $85,365,879 $62,999,702 $22,366,177 15.1 11
   Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts. 4521 $59,704,746 $54,105,225 $5,599,521 4.9 2
   Other General Merchandise Stores 4529 $25,661,133 $8,894,477 $16,766,656 48.5 9
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 453 $21,196,613 $17,488,823 $3,707,790 9.6 25
   Florists 4531 $917,087 $494,069 $423,018 30.0 3
   Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores 4532 $4,681,890 $4,390,998 $290,892 3.2 3
   Used Merchandise Stores 4533 $3,065,103 $5,929,611 -$2,864,508 -31.8 7
   Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers 4539 $12,532,533 $6,674,146 $5,858,387 30.5 12
Nonstore Retailers 454 $7,559,726 $0 $7,559,726 100.0 0
   Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses 4541 $4,964,036 $0 $4,964,036 100.0 0
   Vending Machine Operators 4542 $787,138 $0 $787,138 100.0 0
   Direct Selling Establishments 4543 $1,808,553 $0 $1,808,553 100.0 0
Food Services & Drinking Places 722 $55,056,228 $56,009,451 -$953,223 -0.9 84
   Special Food Services 7223 $1,531,329 $361,265 $1,170,064 61.8 3
   Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages 7224 $1,998,907 $223,548 $1,775,359 79.9 2
   Restaurants/Other Eating Places 7225 $51,525,993 $55,424,637 -$3,898,644 -3.6 79

Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount 
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars.  The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This 
is a measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail 
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap 
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their 
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food 
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf

Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 5 of 6



Retail MarketPlace Profile
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector

Food Services & Drinking Places   
Nonstore Retailers   

Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
General Merchandise Stores  

Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores   
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 

Gasoline Stations   
Health & Personal Care Stores   

Food & Beverage Stores   
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores   

Electronics & Appliance Stores   
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores   

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers   

Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40

2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group2017 Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group

Restaurants/Other Eating Places

Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)   

Special Food Services   

Direct Selling Establishments   

Vending Machine Operators   

Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses   

Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers   
Used Merchandise Stores   

Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores   

Florists   

Other General Merchandise Stores   

Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)   

Book, Periodical, and Music Stores   

Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores   

Shoe Stores   

Clothing Stores   

Gasoline Stations  

Health & Personal Care Stores   

Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores   

Specialty Food Stores   

Grocery Stores   

Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores   
Building Material and Supplies Dealers   

Electronics & Appliance Stores   

Home Furnishings Stores   

Furniture Stores

Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores   

Other Motor Vehicle Dealers   

Automobile Dealers   

Leakage/Surplus Factor
100806040200-20-40-60-80

Source: Esri and Infogroup.  Esri 2018 Updated Demographics.  Esri 2017 Retail MarketPlace. Copyright 2018 Esri. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 6 of 6



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Demographic Summary 2018 2023
Population 3,361 3,423
Population 18+ 2,911 2,977
Households 897 924
Median Household Income $44,614 $52,872

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Apparel (Adults)

Bought any men's clothing in last 12 months 1,266 43.5% 92
Bought any women's clothing in last 12 months 1,261 43.3% 100
Bought clothing for child <13 years in last 6 months 692 23.8% 89
Bought any shoes in last 12 months 1,477 50.7% 95
Bought costume jewelry in last 12 months 505 17.3% 95
Bought any fine jewelry in last 12 months 558 19.2% 107
Bought a watch in last 12 months 444 15.3% 96

Automobiles (Households)
HH owns/leases any vehicle 793 88.4% 103
HH bought/leased new vehicle last 12 mo 73 8.1% 84

Automotive Aftermarket (Adults)
Bought gasoline in last 6 months 2,456 84.4% 99
Bought/changed motor oil in last 12 months 1,319 45.3% 95
Had tune-up in last 12 months 804 27.6% 107

Beverages (Adults)
Drank bottled water/seltzer in last 6 months 1,818 62.5% 90
Drank regular cola in last 6 months 1,308 44.9% 101
Drank beer/ale in last 6 months 1,224 42.0% 100

Cameras (Adults)
Own digital point & shoot camera/camcorder 266 9.1% 78
Own digital SLR camera/camcorder 181 6.2% 80
Printed digital photos in last 12 months 597 20.5% 88

Cell Phones (Adults/Households)
Bought cell phone in last 12 months 988 33.9% 94
Have a smartphone 2,446 84.0% 105
Have a smartphone: Android phone (any brand) 1,238 42.5% 110
Have a smartphone: Apple iPhone 1,082 37.2% 97
Number of cell phones in household: 1 352 39.2% 127
Number of cell phones in household: 2 349 38.9% 101
Number of cell phones in household: 3+ 171 19.1% 69
HH has cell phone only (no landline telephone) 582 64.9% 123

Computers (Households)
HH owns a computer 687 76.6% 103
HH owns desktop computer 326 36.3% 95
HH owns laptop/notebook 547 61.0% 108
HH owns any Apple/Mac brand computer 176 19.6% 111
HH owns any PC/non-Apple brand computer 555 61.9% 99
HH purchased most recent computer in a store 351 39.1% 106
HH purchased most recent computer online 134 14.9% 111
Spent <$500 on most recent home computer 140 15.6% 103
Spent $500-$999 on most recent home computer
"

159 17.7% 101
Spent $1,000-$1,499 on most recent home computer 104 11.6% 122
Spent $1,500-$1,999 on most recent home computer 42 4.7% 101
Spent $2,000+ on most recent home computer 38 4.2% 104

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 1 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Convenience Stores (Adults)

Shopped at convenience store in last 6 mos 1,759 60.4% 97
Bought brewed coffee at convenience store in last 30 days 333 11.4% 85
Bought cigarettes at convenience store in last 30 days 345 11.9% 109
Bought gas at convenience store in last 30 days 1,002 34.4% 93
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: <$20 188 6.5% 90
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $20-$39 261 9.0% 94
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $40-$50 271 9.3% 112
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $51-$99 181 6.2% 111
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $100+ 565 19.4% 87

Entertainment (Adults)
Attended a movie in last 6 months 1,743 59.9% 101
Went to live theater in last 12 months 406 13.9% 120
Went to a bar/night club in last 12 months 546 18.8% 107
Dined out in last 12 months 1,385 47.6% 93
Gambled at a casino in last 12 months 341 11.7% 90
Visited a theme park in last 12 months 491 16.9% 89
Viewed movie (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 469 16.1% 89
Viewed TV show (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 405 13.9% 100
Watched any pay-per-view TV in last 12 months 274 9.4% 86
Downloaded a movie over the Internet in last 30 days 337 11.6% 128
Downloaded any individual song in last 6 months 584 20.1% 99
Watched a movie online in the  last 30 days 1,058 36.3% 152
Watched a TV program online in last 30 days 657 22.6% 126
Played a video/electronic game (console) in last 12 months 312 10.7% 117
Played a video/electronic game (portable) in last 12 months 186 6.4% 123

Financial (Adults)
Have home mortgage (1st) 813 27.9% 88
Used ATM/cash machine in last 12 months 1,457 50.1% 94
Own any stock 161 5.5% 76
Own U.S. savings bond 102 3.5% 73
Own shares in mutual fund (stock) 122 4.2% 61
Own shares in mutual fund (bonds) 86 3.0% 62
Have interest checking account 809 27.8% 94
Have non-interest checking account 841 28.9% 98
Have savings account 1,734 59.6% 102
Have 401K retirement savings plan 419 14.4% 93
Own/used any credit/debit card in last 12 months 2,276 78.2% 98
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: <$111 342 11.7% 98
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $111-$225 197 6.8% 94
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $226-$450 167 5.7% 85
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $451-$700 190 6.5% 105
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $701-$1,000 157 5.4% 93
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $1,001+ 229 7.9% 72
Did banking online in last 12 months 1,155 39.7% 101
Did banking on mobile device in last 12 months 691 23.7% 101
Paid bills online in last 12 months 1,411 48.5% 98

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 2 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Grocery (Adults)

Used beef (fresh/frozen) in last 6 months 622 69.3% 101
Used bread in last 6 months 837 93.3% 100
Used chicken (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 601 67.0% 97
Used turkey (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 134 14.9% 98
Used fish/seafood (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 475 53.0% 97
Used fresh fruit/vegetables in last 6 months 771 86.0% 99
Used fresh milk in last 6 months 757 84.4% 98
Used organic food in last 6 months 236 26.3% 111

Health (Adults)
Exercise at home 2+ times per week 777 26.7% 96
Exercise at club 2+ times per week 369 12.7% 88
Visited a doctor in last 12 months 2,086 71.7% 93
Used vitamin/dietary supplement in last 6 months 1,519 52.2% 96

Home (Households)
Any home improvement in last 12 months 242 27.0% 97
Used housekeeper/maid/professional HH cleaning service in last 12 
months

119 13.3% 95
Purchased low ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 153 17.1% 102
Purchased big ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 237 26.4% 120
Bought any small kitchen appliance in last 12 months 202 22.5% 100
Bought any large kitchen appliance in last 12 months 116 12.9% 92

Insurance (Adults/Households)
Currently carry life insurance 1,239 42.6% 96
Carry medical/hospital/accident insurance 2,070 71.1% 95
Carry homeowner insurance 1,092 37.5% 79
Carry renter's insurance 414 14.2% 165
Have auto insurance: 1 vehicle in household covered 346 38.6% 126
Have auto insurance: 2 vehicles in household covered 253 28.2% 98
Have auto insurance: 3+ vehicles in household covered 166 18.5% 81

Pets (Households)
Household owns any pet 483 53.8% 99
Household owns any cat 205 22.9% 99
Household owns any dog 350 39.0% 94

Psychographics (Adults)
Buying American is important to me 1,007 34.6% 85
Usually buy items on credit rather than wait 425 14.6% 112
Usually buy based on quality - not price 654 22.5% 116
Price is usually more important than brand name 814 28.0% 100
Usually use coupons for brands I buy often 592 20.3% 113
Am interested in how to help the environment 580 19.9% 109
Usually pay more for environ safe product 388 13.3% 94
Usually value green products over convenience 322 11.1% 98
Likely to buy a brand that supports a charity 983 33.8% 97

Reading (Adults)
Bought digital book in last 12 months 373 12.8% 96
Bought hardcover book in last 12 months 574 19.7% 99
Bought paperback book in last 12 month 907 31.2% 107
Read any daily newspaper (paper version) 693 23.8% 115
Read any digital newspaper in last 30 days 1,230 42.3% 112
Read any magazine (paper/electronic version) in last 6 months 2,713 93.2% 103

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 3 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 2 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Restaurants (Adults)

Went to family restaurant/steak house in last 6 months 2,144 73.7% 98
Went to family restaurant/steak house: 4+ times a month 652 22.4% 83
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant in last 6 months 2,669 91.7% 102
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant 9+ times/mo 1,067 36.7% 92
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: eat in 1,034 35.5% 97
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: home delivery 271 9.3% 111
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/drive-thru 1,443 49.6% 105
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/walk-in 589 20.2% 96

Television & Electronics (Adults/Households)
Own any tablet 1,280 44.0% 96
Own any e-reader 169 5.8% 78
Own e-reader/tablet: iPad 688 23.6% 89
HH has Internet connectable TV 206 23.0% 89
Own any portable MP3 player 549 18.9% 88
HH owns 1 TV 195 21.7% 104
HH owns 2 TVs 259 28.9% 107
HH owns 3 TVs 172 19.2% 91
HH owns 4+ TVs 137 15.3% 86
HH subscribes to cable TV 395 44.0% 99
HH subscribes to fiber optic 54 6.0% 76
HH owns portable GPS navigation device 176 19.6% 79
HH purchased video game system in last 12 mos 56 6.2% 73
HH owns any Internet video device for TV 199 22.2% 109

Travel (Adults)
Domestic travel in last 12 months 1,542 53.0% 102
Took 3+ domestic non-business trips in last 12 months 334 11.5% 97
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 312 10.7% 99
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$1,499 168 5.8% 96
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,500-$1,999 115 4.0% 100
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $2,000-$2,999 80 2.7% 72
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 123 4.2% 67
Domestic travel in the 12 months: used general travel website 186 6.4% 92
Foreign travel in last 3 years 736 25.3% 95
Took 3+ foreign trips by plane in last 3 years 104 3.6% 74
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 151 5.2% 111
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$2,999 91 3.1% 83
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 137 4.7% 80
Foreign travel in last 3 years: used general travel website 146 5.0% 83
Nights spent in hotel/motel in last 12 months: any 1,199 41.2% 94
Took cruise of more than one day in last 3 years 270 9.3% 108
Member of any frequent flyer program 476 16.4% 94
Member of any hotel rewards program 401 13.8% 82

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 4 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Demographic Summary 2018 2023
Population 16,984 18,118
Population 18+ 13,204 14,085
Households 6,468 6,936
Median Household Income $53,815 $61,333

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Apparel (Adults)

Bought any men's clothing in last 12 months 6,194 46.9% 99
Bought any women's clothing in last 12 months 5,748 43.5% 101
Bought clothing for child <13 years in last 6 months 3,858 29.2% 109
Bought any shoes in last 12 months 6,953 52.7% 99
Bought costume jewelry in last 12 months 2,285 17.3% 95
Bought any fine jewelry in last 12 months 2,304 17.4% 98
Bought a watch in last 12 months 2,031 15.4% 97

Automobiles (Households)
HH owns/leases any vehicle 5,689 88.0% 103
HH bought/leased new vehicle last 12 mo 607 9.4% 97

Automotive Aftermarket (Adults)
Bought gasoline in last 6 months 11,476 86.9% 102
Bought/changed motor oil in last 12 months 6,518 49.4% 104
Had tune-up in last 12 months 3,509 26.6% 103

Beverages (Adults)
Drank bottled water/seltzer in last 6 months 8,882 67.3% 97
Drank regular cola in last 6 months 5,942 45.0% 102
Drank beer/ale in last 6 months 5,459 41.3% 98

Cameras (Adults)
Own digital point & shoot camera/camcorder 1,419 10.7% 92
Own digital SLR camera/camcorder 967 7.3% 94
Printed digital photos in last 12 months 3,076 23.3% 100

Cell Phones (Adults/Households)
Bought cell phone in last 12 months 4,664 35.3% 98
Have a smartphone 10,833 82.0% 103
Have a smartphone: Android phone (any brand) 5,652 42.8% 110
Have a smartphone: Apple iPhone 4,758 36.0% 94
Number of cell phones in household: 1 2,031 31.4% 102
Number of cell phones in household: 2 2,468 38.2% 99
Number of cell phones in household: 3+ 1,766 27.3% 99
HH has cell phone only (no landline telephone) 3,825 59.1% 112

Computers (Households)
HH owns a computer 4,895 75.7% 102
HH owns desktop computer 2,477 38.3% 100
HH owns laptop/notebook 3,783 58.5% 103
HH owns any Apple/Mac brand computer 1,055 16.3% 92
HH owns any PC/non-Apple brand computer 4,173 64.5% 103
HH purchased most recent computer in a store 2,488 38.5% 104
HH purchased most recent computer online 832 12.9% 96
Spent <$500 on most recent home computer 1,034 16.0% 105
Spent $500-$999 on most recent home computer
"

1,176 18.2% 103
Spent $1,000-$1,499 on most recent home computer 619 9.6% 101
Spent $1,500-$1,999 on most recent home computer 250 3.9% 84
Spent $2,000+ on most recent home computer 238 3.7% 91

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 5 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Convenience Stores (Adults)

Shopped at convenience store in last 6 mos 8,395 63.6% 102
Bought brewed coffee at convenience store in last 30 days 1,740 13.2% 97
Bought cigarettes at convenience store in last 30 days 1,674 12.7% 116
Bought gas at convenience store in last 30 days 5,205 39.4% 107
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: <$20 780 5.9% 82
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $20-$39 1,218 9.2% 96
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $40-$50 1,152 8.7% 105
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $51-$99 809 6.1% 110
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $100+ 3,129 23.7% 107

Entertainment (Adults)
Attended a movie in last 6 months 8,001 60.6% 102
Went to live theater in last 12 months 1,469 11.1% 96
Went to a bar/night club in last 12 months 2,318 17.6% 101
Dined out in last 12 months 6,664 50.5% 99
Gambled at a casino in last 12 months 1,707 12.9% 100
Visited a theme park in last 12 months 2,507 19.0% 100
Viewed movie (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 2,513 19.0% 105
Viewed TV show (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 1,860 14.1% 101
Watched any pay-per-view TV in last 12 months 1,394 10.6% 96
Downloaded a movie over the Internet in last 30 days 1,283 9.7% 107
Downloaded any individual song in last 6 months 2,715 20.6% 102
Watched a movie online in the  last 30 days 3,649 27.6% 115
Watched a TV program online in last 30 days 2,588 19.6% 109
Played a video/electronic game (console) in last 12 months 1,354 10.3% 112
Played a video/electronic game (portable) in last 12 months 773 5.9% 113

Financial (Adults)
Have home mortgage (1st) 4,359 33.0% 104
Used ATM/cash machine in last 12 months 7,115 53.9% 101
Own any stock 735 5.6% 77
Own U.S. savings bond 526 4.0% 83
Own shares in mutual fund (stock) 731 5.5% 80
Own shares in mutual fund (bonds) 474 3.6% 75
Have interest checking account 3,737 28.3% 96
Have non-interest checking account 3,992 30.2% 103
Have savings account 7,789 59.0% 101
Have 401K retirement savings plan 2,125 16.1% 104
Own/used any credit/debit card in last 12 months 10,455 79.2% 99
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: <$111 1,735 13.1% 109
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $111-$225 991 7.5% 105
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $226-$450 908 6.9% 102
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $451-$700 774 5.9% 94
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $701-$1,000 658 5.0% 86
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $1,001+ 1,084 8.2% 75
Did banking online in last 12 months 5,404 40.9% 104
Did banking on mobile device in last 12 months 3,329 25.2% 107
Paid bills online in last 12 months 6,700 50.7% 103

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 6 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Grocery (Adults)

Used beef (fresh/frozen) in last 6 months 4,544 70.3% 102
Used bread in last 6 months 6,081 94.0% 101
Used chicken (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 4,453 68.8% 100
Used turkey (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 1,007 15.6% 102
Used fish/seafood (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 3,438 53.2% 97
Used fresh fruit/vegetables in last 6 months 5,615 86.8% 100
Used fresh milk in last 6 months 5,607 86.7% 101
Used organic food in last 6 months 1,427 22.1% 93

Health (Adults)
Exercise at home 2+ times per week 3,683 27.9% 100
Exercise at club 2+ times per week 1,778 13.5% 93
Visited a doctor in last 12 months 9,752 73.9% 96
Used vitamin/dietary supplement in last 6 months 6,929 52.5% 97

Home (Households)
Any home improvement in last 12 months 1,839 28.4% 102
Used housekeeper/maid/professional HH cleaning service in last 12 
months

788 12.2% 87
Purchased low ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 1,112 17.2% 103
Purchased big ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 1,515 23.4% 107
Bought any small kitchen appliance in last 12 months 1,418 21.9% 98
Bought any large kitchen appliance in last 12 months 940 14.5% 103

Insurance (Adults/Households)
Currently carry life insurance 5,922 44.9% 101
Carry medical/hospital/accident insurance 9,802 74.2% 99
Carry homeowner insurance 6,040 45.7% 97
Carry renter's insurance 1,382 10.5% 122
Have auto insurance: 1 vehicle in household covered 2,118 32.7% 107
Have auto insurance: 2 vehicles in household covered 1,993 30.8% 107
Have auto insurance: 3+ vehicles in household covered 1,370 21.2% 93

Pets (Households)
Household owns any pet 3,709 57.3% 105
Household owns any cat 1,528 23.6% 103
Household owns any dog 2,819 43.6% 105

Psychographics (Adults)
Buying American is important to me 5,487 41.6% 102
Usually buy items on credit rather than wait 1,859 14.1% 108
Usually buy based on quality - not price 2,560 19.4% 100
Price is usually more important than brand name 3,929 29.8% 107
Usually use coupons for brands I buy often 2,405 18.2% 102
Am interested in how to help the environment 2,293 17.4% 95
Usually pay more for environ safe product 1,804 13.7% 96
Usually value green products over convenience 1,416 10.7% 95
Likely to buy a brand that supports a charity 4,581 34.7% 100

Reading (Adults)
Bought digital book in last 12 months 1,699 12.9% 97
Bought hardcover book in last 12 months 2,542 19.3% 97
Bought paperback book in last 12 month 3,922 29.7% 102
Read any daily newspaper (paper version) 2,649 20.1% 97
Read any digital newspaper in last 30 days 5,108 38.7% 103
Read any magazine (paper/electronic version) in last 6 months 12,194 92.4% 102

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 7 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 5 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Restaurants (Adults)

Went to family restaurant/steak house in last 6 months 9,975 75.5% 100
Went to family restaurant/steak house: 4+ times a month 3,399 25.7% 96
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant in last 6 months 12,103 91.7% 102
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant 9+ times/mo 5,453 41.3% 104
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: eat in 4,790 36.3% 99
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: home delivery 1,232 9.3% 111
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/drive-thru 6,824 51.7% 109
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/walk-in 2,748 20.8% 99

Television & Electronics (Adults/Households)
Own any tablet 6,094 46.2% 101
Own any e-reader 885 6.7% 90
Own e-reader/tablet: iPad 3,315 25.1% 94
HH has Internet connectable TV 1,721 26.6% 103
Own any portable MP3 player 2,839 21.5% 100
HH owns 1 TV 1,277 19.7% 94
HH owns 2 TVs 1,851 28.6% 106
HH owns 3 TVs 1,337 20.7% 98
HH owns 4+ TVs 1,148 17.7% 100
HH subscribes to cable TV 2,961 45.8% 103
HH subscribes to fiber optic 431 6.7% 84
HH owns portable GPS navigation device 1,499 23.2% 93
HH purchased video game system in last 12 mos 482 7.5% 88
HH owns any Internet video device for TV 1,380 21.3% 104

Travel (Adults)
Domestic travel in last 12 months 6,832 51.7% 99
Took 3+ domestic non-business trips in last 12 months 1,433 10.9% 91
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 1,423 10.8% 100
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$1,499 725 5.5% 92
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,500-$1,999 495 3.7% 95
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $2,000-$2,999 405 3.1% 80
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 725 5.5% 87
Domestic travel in the 12 months: used general travel website 816 6.2% 89
Foreign travel in last 3 years 3,201 24.2% 92
Took 3+ foreign trips by plane in last 3 years 471 3.6% 74
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 606 4.6% 98
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$2,999 416 3.2% 84
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 570 4.3% 73
Foreign travel in last 3 years: used general travel website 674 5.1% 85
Nights spent in hotel/motel in last 12 months: any 5,668 42.9% 98
Took cruise of more than one day in last 3 years 1,121 8.5% 99
Member of any frequent flyer program 2,010 15.2% 87
Member of any hotel rewards program 1,895 14.4% 86

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 8 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Demographic Summary 2018 2023
Population 41,156 44,250
Population 18+ 30,994 33,326
Households 15,945 17,204
Median Household Income $61,980 $71,035

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Apparel (Adults)

Bought any men's clothing in last 12 months 15,012 48.4% 103
Bought any women's clothing in last 12 months 13,623 44.0% 102
Bought clothing for child <13 years in last 6 months 9,388 30.3% 113
Bought any shoes in last 12 months 16,716 53.9% 101
Bought costume jewelry in last 12 months 5,446 17.6% 97
Bought any fine jewelry in last 12 months 5,467 17.6% 99
Bought a watch in last 12 months 4,653 15.0% 95

Automobiles (Households)
HH owns/leases any vehicle 14,235 89.3% 104
HH bought/leased new vehicle last 12 mo 1,610 10.1% 104

Automotive Aftermarket (Adults)
Bought gasoline in last 6 months 27,519 88.8% 104
Bought/changed motor oil in last 12 months 15,426 49.8% 104
Had tune-up in last 12 months 8,258 26.6% 104

Beverages (Adults)
Drank bottled water/seltzer in last 6 months 21,334 68.8% 99
Drank regular cola in last 6 months 13,671 44.1% 100
Drank beer/ale in last 6 months 13,076 42.2% 100

Cameras (Adults)
Own digital point & shoot camera/camcorder 3,668 11.8% 101
Own digital SLR camera/camcorder 2,595 8.4% 107
Printed digital photos in last 12 months 7,874 25.4% 109

Cell Phones (Adults/Households)
Bought cell phone in last 12 months 11,073 35.7% 99
Have a smartphone 25,930 83.7% 105
Have a smartphone: Android phone (any brand) 13,069 42.2% 109
Have a smartphone: Apple iPhone 12,049 38.9% 101
Number of cell phones in household: 1 4,469 28.0% 91
Number of cell phones in household: 2 6,187 38.8% 101
Number of cell phones in household: 3+ 4,909 30.8% 112
HH has cell phone only (no landline telephone) 9,223 57.8% 110

Computers (Households)
HH owns a computer 12,507 78.4% 105
HH owns desktop computer 6,445 40.4% 105
HH owns laptop/notebook 9,657 60.6% 107
HH owns any Apple/Mac brand computer 2,754 17.3% 97
HH owns any PC/non-Apple brand computer 10,661 66.9% 106
HH purchased most recent computer in a store 6,329 39.7% 107
HH purchased most recent computer online 2,194 13.8% 103
Spent <$500 on most recent home computer 2,553 16.0% 105
Spent $500-$999 on most recent home computer
"

3,090 19.4% 110
Spent $1,000-$1,499 on most recent home computer 1,606 10.1% 106
Spent $1,500-$1,999 on most recent home computer 633 4.0% 86
Spent $2,000+ on most recent home computer 639 4.0% 99

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 9 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Convenience Stores (Adults)

Shopped at convenience store in last 6 mos 19,935 64.3% 103
Bought brewed coffee at convenience store in last 30 days 4,176 13.5% 100
Bought cigarettes at convenience store in last 30 days 3,580 11.6% 106
Bought gas at convenience store in last 30 days 12,599 40.6% 110
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: <$20 1,924 6.2% 86
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $20-$39 2,870 9.3% 97
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $40-$50 2,636 8.5% 103
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $51-$99 1,805 5.8% 104
Spent at convenience store in last 30 days: $100+ 7,666 24.7% 111

Entertainment (Adults)
Attended a movie in last 6 months 19,405 62.6% 105
Went to live theater in last 12 months 3,505 11.3% 97
Went to a bar/night club in last 12 months 5,548 17.9% 102
Dined out in last 12 months 16,391 52.9% 104
Gambled at a casino in last 12 months 3,998 12.9% 100
Visited a theme park in last 12 months 6,301 20.3% 107
Viewed movie (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 6,202 20.0% 110
Viewed TV show (video-on-demand) in last 30 days 4,596 14.8% 106
Watched any pay-per-view TV in last 12 months 3,604 11.6% 106
Downloaded a movie over the Internet in last 30 days 3,095 10.0% 110
Downloaded any individual song in last 6 months 6,705 21.6% 107
Watched a movie online in the  last 30 days 8,359 27.0% 113
Watched a TV program online in last 30 days 6,109 19.7% 110
Played a video/electronic game (console) in last 12 months 3,076 9.9% 109
Played a video/electronic game (portable) in last 12 months 1,737 5.6% 108

Financial (Adults)
Have home mortgage (1st) 11,394 36.8% 116
Used ATM/cash machine in last 12 months 17,331 55.9% 105
Own any stock 1,966 6.3% 88
Own U.S. savings bond 1,355 4.4% 91
Own shares in mutual fund (stock) 1,871 6.0% 88
Own shares in mutual fund (bonds) 1,367 4.4% 92
Have interest checking account 9,307 30.0% 102
Have non-interest checking account 9,555 30.8% 105
Have savings account 19,056 61.5% 105
Have 401K retirement savings plan 5,528 17.8% 115
Own/used any credit/debit card in last 12 months 25,143 81.1% 102
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: <$111 4,189 13.5% 112
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $111-$225 2,383 7.7% 107
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $226-$450 2,114 6.8% 101
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $451-$700 1,901 6.1% 99
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $701-$1,000 1,730 5.6% 96
Avg monthly credit card expenditures: $1,001+ 2,983 9.6% 88
Did banking online in last 12 months 13,515 43.6% 111
Did banking on mobile device in last 12 months 8,300 26.8% 114
Paid bills online in last 12 months 16,516 53.3% 108

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 10 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Grocery (Adults)

Used beef (fresh/frozen) in last 6 months 11,384 71.4% 104
Used bread in last 6 months 15,095 94.7% 101
Used chicken (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 11,257 70.6% 103
Used turkey (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 2,525 15.8% 103
Used fish/seafood (fresh or frozen) in last 6 months 8,628 54.1% 99
Used fresh fruit/vegetables in last 6 months 13,967 87.6% 101
Used fresh milk in last 6 months 13,979 87.7% 102
Used organic food in last 6 months 3,628 22.8% 96

Health (Adults)
Exercise at home 2+ times per week 8,990 29.0% 104
Exercise at club 2+ times per week 4,458 14.4% 100
Visited a doctor in last 12 months 23,323 75.3% 98
Used vitamin/dietary supplement in last 6 months 16,515 53.3% 98

Home (Households)
Any home improvement in last 12 months 4,830 30.3% 109
Used housekeeper/maid/professional HH cleaning service in last 12 
months

2,113 13.3% 95
Purchased low ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 2,818 17.7% 105
Purchased big ticket HH furnishings in last 12 months 3,852 24.2% 110
Bought any small kitchen appliance in last 12 months 3,630 22.8% 102
Bought any large kitchen appliance in last 12 months 2,462 15.4% 109

Insurance (Adults/Households)
Currently carry life insurance 14,773 47.7% 107
Carry medical/hospital/accident insurance 23,581 76.1% 102
Carry homeowner insurance 15,404 49.7% 105
Carry renter's insurance 3,002 9.7% 113
Have auto insurance: 1 vehicle in household covered 4,701 29.5% 96
Have auto insurance: 2 vehicles in household covered 5,148 32.3% 112
Have auto insurance: 3+ vehicles in household covered 3,908 24.5% 107

Pets (Households)
Household owns any pet 9,373 58.8% 108
Household owns any cat 3,798 23.8% 104
Household owns any dog 7,293 45.7% 110

Psychographics (Adults)
Buying American is important to me 12,832 41.4% 102
Usually buy items on credit rather than wait 4,270 13.8% 105
Usually buy based on quality - not price 5,971 19.3% 100
Price is usually more important than brand name 9,087 29.3% 105
Usually use coupons for brands I buy often 5,598 18.1% 101
Am interested in how to help the environment 5,247 16.9% 93
Usually pay more for environ safe product 4,152 13.4% 94
Usually value green products over convenience 3,286 10.6% 94
Likely to buy a brand that supports a charity 10,715 34.6% 100

Reading (Adults)
Bought digital book in last 12 months 4,228 13.6% 102
Bought hardcover book in last 12 months 6,258 20.2% 102
Bought paperback book in last 12 month 9,511 30.7% 106
Read any daily newspaper (paper version) 5,816 18.8% 91
Read any digital newspaper in last 30 days 12,349 39.8% 106
Read any magazine (paper/electronic version) in last 6 months 28,698 92.6% 102

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 11 of 12



Retail Market Potential
239 W William St, Delaware, Ohio, 43015 Prepared by Esri
Drive Time: 10 minute radius Latitude: 40.29923

Longitude: -83.07736

Expected Number of Percent of 
Product/Consumer Behavior  Adults/HHs Adults/HHs MPI
Restaurants (Adults)

Went to family restaurant/steak house in last 6 months 23,984 77.4% 103
Went to family restaurant/steak house: 4+ times a month 8,367 27.0% 100
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant in last 6 months 28,616 92.3% 102
Went to fast food/drive-in restaurant 9+ times/mo 13,128 42.4% 107
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: eat in 11,574 37.3% 102
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: home delivery 2,803 9.0% 108
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/drive-thru 16,383 52.9% 112
Fast food/drive-in last 6 months: take-out/walk-in 6,565 21.2% 101

Television & Electronics (Adults/Households)
Own any tablet 15,134 48.8% 107
Own any e-reader 2,311 7.5% 101
Own e-reader/tablet: iPad 8,631 27.8% 105
HH has Internet connectable TV 4,558 28.6% 111
Own any portable MP3 player 6,997 22.6% 105
HH owns 1 TV 2,848 17.9% 85
HH owns 2 TVs 4,404 27.6% 102
HH owns 3 TVs 3,426 21.5% 102
HH owns 4+ TVs 3,242 20.3% 114
HH subscribes to cable TV 7,162 44.9% 101
HH subscribes to fiber optic 1,086 6.8% 86
HH owns portable GPS navigation device 3,976 24.9% 100
HH purchased video game system in last 12 mos 1,258 7.9% 93
HH owns any Internet video device for TV 3,658 22.9% 112

Travel (Adults)
Domestic travel in last 12 months 16,931 54.6% 105
Took 3+ domestic non-business trips in last 12 months 3,627 11.7% 98
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 3,400 11.0% 102
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$1,499 1,854 6.0% 100
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $1,500-$1,999 1,308 4.2% 107
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $2,000-$2,999 1,111 3.6% 94
Spent on domestic vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 1,973 6.4% 101
Domestic travel in the 12 months: used general travel website 2,059 6.6% 96
Foreign travel in last 3 years 7,903 25.5% 96
Took 3+ foreign trips by plane in last 3 years 1,203 3.9% 81
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: <$1,000 1,492 4.8% 103
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $1,000-$2,999 1,019 3.3% 87
Spent on foreign vacations in last 12 months: $3,000+ 1,491 4.8% 81
Foreign travel in last 3 years: used general travel website 1,691 5.5% 90
Nights spent in hotel/motel in last 12 months: any 14,268 46.0% 105
Took cruise of more than one day in last 3 years 2,842 9.2% 107
Member of any frequent flyer program 5,248 16.9% 97
Member of any hotel rewards program 5,177 16.7% 100

Data Note: An MPI (Market Potential Index) measures the relative likelihood of the adults or households in the specified trade area to exhibit certain consumer behavior 
or purchasing patterns compared to the U.S. An MPI of 100 represents the U.S. average.                                                                                                               
Source: These data are based upon national propensities to use various products and services, applied to local demographic composition. Usage data were collected by 
GfK MRI in a nationally representative survey of U.S. households. Esri forecasts for 2018 and 2023.

July 10, 2018

©2018 Esri Page 12 of 12



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 14    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-65    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY 
GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR GLENROSS NORTH SECTIONS 2-4 
CONTAINING 127 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 65.81 ACRES 
LOCATED JUST EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY AND NORTH OF THE GLENROSS 
GOLF CLUB ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on August 1, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-65 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN REQUEST BY GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR 
GLENROSS NORTH SECTIONS 2-4 CONTAINING 127 
SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 65.81 
ACRES LOCATED JUST EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY 
AND NORTH OF THE GLENROSS GOLF CLUB ON 
PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan request by Glenross North 
LLC., for Glenross North Sections 2-4 containing 127 single family lots on 
approximately 65.81 acres located just east of Glenn Parkway and north of the 
Glenross Golf Club on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay) (PC 2018-1731). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan request by Glenross North 
LLC., for Glenross North Sections 2-4 containing 127 single family lots on 
approximately 65.81 acres located just east of Glenn Parkway and north of the 
Glenross Golf Club on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The required amount of Glenn Parkway right-of-way per the City 
Engineer shall be granted by the developer to extend to the northern 
boundary of Section 4. 

3. The Final Development Plan shall achieve compliance with the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 



this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-66    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR GLENROSS NORTH SECTION 2 CONTAINING 
48 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 28.726 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON IRVINE LOOP, DELANO DRIVE, 
SYCAMORE LANE, IRVINE WAY AND BLACKMORE DRIVE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on August 1, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-66 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR 
GLENROSS NORTH SECTION 2 CONTAINING 48 
SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 28.726 
ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON IRVINE LOOP, DELANO 
DRIVE, SYCAMORE LANE, IRVINE WAY AND 
BLACKMORE DRIVE.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North 
LLC., for Glenross North Section 2 containing 48 single family lots on 
approximately 28.726 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay) and located on Irvine Loop, Delano Drive, 
Sycamore Lane, Irvine Way and Blackmore Drive (PC 2018-1733).  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North 
LLC., for Glenross North Section 2 containing 48 single family lots on 
approximately 28.726 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay) and located on Irvine Loop, Delano Drive, 
Sycamore Lane, Irvine Way and Blackmore Drive, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. All the lots adjacent to The Glenross Golf Club shall have a minimum 
rear yard lot width of 80 feet. 

3. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 
of the current zoning code. 

4. The proposed radial park in Section 2 shall have the following upgrades: 
 1. A bicycle rack shall be added; 2. A few benches shall be added 
between the north/south path between the fields; 3. The play structure 



shall have additional ADA compliant components added to what is 
shown; 4. Under drains shall be added to the fields and playground area; 
5. The playground area shall include a raised border with opening(s) to 
accommodate ADA access; 6. The swing set structure shall include “U” 
shaped ends for stability and longevity; 7. Drainage shall be directed 
away from the pathways and active fields spaces;  8. A north/south 
pathway between the pool and tot lot shall be added 

5. A street tree plan shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

6. The applicant shall pay a $6,800 ($100 x 68 caliper inches) tree removal 
fee prior to construction drawing approval to achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations.   

7. The tree lines along the east and south property lines shall be preserved. 
8. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 

the Chief Building Official and achieve compliance with all zoning 
requirements. 

9. All elements of the Pre-Annexation Agreement shall achieve compliance 
with including but not limited to: voluntary developer entrance into the a 
New Community Authority, an additional sanitary sewer charge for the 
Southeast Highlands trunk sewer of $3,200 per edu, the single family lot 
transportation fee in this area at the time of building permit issuance of 
$1,000 per dwelling unit, and dedication of right-of-way for the future 
expansion of Glen Parkway. 

10. The engineering drawings for the radial park area shall be submitted 
and approved by the Engineering Department prior to any building 
permit approval. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-67    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR GLENROSS NORTH SECTION 3 CONTAINING 
44 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 17.930 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON BLACKMORE DRIVE, WINDLEY 
COURT AND MELICK DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on August 1, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-67 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR 
GLENROSS NORTH SECTION 3 CONTAINING 44 
SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 17.930 
ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON BLACKMORE DRIVE, 
WINDLEY COURT AND MELICK DRIVE.   
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North 
LLC., for Glenross North Section 3 containing 44 single family lots on 
approximately 17.930 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay) and Blackmore Drive, Windley Court and 
Melick Drive (2018-1735).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North 
LLC., for Glenross North Section 3 containing 44 single family lots on 
approximately 17.930 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay) and Blackmore Drive, Windley Court and 
Melick Drive, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. All the lots adjacent to The Glenross Golf Club shall have a minimum 
rear yard lot width of 80 feet. 

3. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

4. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 
of the current zoning code. 

5. A 10-12 foot high mound with landscaping shall be installed adjacent to 
the railroad tracks to be consistent with mounding the Communities at 



Glenross just south of the subject development. The subject plan shall 
be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree Commission. 

6. A street tree plan shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

7. The applicant shall pay a $7,200 ($100 x 72 caliper inches) tree removal 
fee prior to construction drawing approval to achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations.   

8. The tree lines along the east and south property lines shall be preserved. 
9. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 

the Chief Building Official and achieve compliance with all zoning 
requirements. 

10. All elements of the Pre-Annexation Agreement shall achieve compliance 
with including but not limited to: voluntary developer entrance into the a 
New Community Authority, an additional sanitary sewer charge for the 
Southeast Highlands trunk sewer of $3,200 per edu, the single family lot 
transportation fee in this area at the time of building permit issuance of 
$1,000 per dwelling unit, and dedication of right-of-way for the future 
expansion of Glen Parkway. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-68    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR GLENROSS NORTH SECTION 4 CONTAINING 
35 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 19.157 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON MELICK DRIVE AND IRVINE WAY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on August 1, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 

































































 ORDINANCE NO. 18-68 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 

PLAT REQUEST BY GLENROSS NORTH LLC., FOR 

GLENROSS NORTH SECTION 4 CONTAINING 35 

SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 19.157 

ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 

DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON MELICK DRIVE AND 

IRVINE WAY.  

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of August 1, 2018 

recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North 

LLC., for Glenross North Section 4 containing 35 single family lots on 

approximately 19.157 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential 

with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay) and located on Melick Drive and Irvine Way 

(2018-1737) and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 

 SECTION 1.  That the a Final Subdivision Plat request by Glenross North 

LLC., for Glenross North Section 4 containing 35 single family lots on 

approximately 19.157 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential 

with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay) and located on Melick Drive and Irvine Way, is 

hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 

Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 

layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 

modification or change based on the final technical review by the 

Engineering Department. 

2. The required amount of Glenn Parkway right-of-way per the City 

Engineer shall be granted by the developer to extend to the northern 

boundary of Section 4. 

3. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 

requirements in the approved development text. 

4. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 

standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 

of the current zoning code. 

5. A minimum 3-6 foot high mound with landscaping and a three rail fence 

shall be extended north of Section 1 (current location) along the western 



portion of lots in Section 4 (lots 12445-12449) that would be adjacent to 

future Glenn Parkway when it is extended north to match the existing 

mound just south in Section 1. The subject plan shall be reviewed and 

approved by the Shade Tree Commission. 

6. A street tree plan shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 

Commission. 

7. The applicant shall pay a $5,200 ($100 x 52 caliper inches) tree removal 

fee prior to construction drawing approval to achieve compliance with 

Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations.   

8. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 

compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and shall 

be required prior to final plat approvals for each phase.  

9. The tree lines along the east and south property lines shall be preserved. 

10. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 

the Chief Building Official and achieve compliance with all zoning 

requirements. 

11. All elements of the Pre-Annexation Agreement shall achieve compliance 

with including but not limited to: voluntary developer entrance into the a 

New Community Authority, an additional sanitary sewer charge for the 

Southeast Highlands trunk sewer of $3,200 per edu, the single family lot 

transportation fee in this area at the time of building permit issuance of 

$1,000 per dwelling unit, and dedication of right-of-way for the future 

expansion of Glen Parkway. 

 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 

this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 

deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 

formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 

including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 

 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  

          ABSTAIN ____ 

 

PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 

      ABSTAIN ____ 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 18    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-69    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING AMENDMENT REQUEST BY 
JOSHUA MORGAN CONSTRUCTION LLC., AT 1354 SR 521 (PARCELS 519-
441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) FROM A-1 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO R-3  (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 2.091 ACRES.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 

































 ORDINANCE NO. 18-69 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING 
AMENDMENT REQUEST BY JOSHUA MORGAN 
CONSTRUCTION LLC., AT 1354 SR 521 (PARCELS 519-
441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-003-000 & 519-441-02-
004-000) FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 
 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 2.091 ACRES.    
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment request by Joshua Morgan 
Construction LLC., at 1354 SR 521 (Parcels 519-441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-
003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-
Family Residential District) on approximately 2.091 acres (2018-1589).   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment request by Joshua Morgan 
Construction LLC., at 1354 SR 521 (Parcels 519-441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-
003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-
Family Residential District) on approximately 2.091 acres (2018-1589), is hereby 
confirmed, approved and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The engineering drawing shall be approved by the City prior to building 
permit approval of the first house. 

2. The houses shall achieve compliance with all R-3 zoning requirements. 
3. A sidewalk along SR 521 shall be required for each single family lot. 
4. Each house and lot shall achieve compliance with all other City 

development requirements.   
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 19    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-70    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-001-001) 
FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND B-3 (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO R-6 AND B-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO 
STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-70 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-
001-001) FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) AND B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) 
TO R-6 AND B-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 
36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD 
JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018  
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-3 (Community Business 
District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1394).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-3 (Community Business 
District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provision of the Development Text and any conditions 
of approval. 

2. Any revisions to the public or private street layout shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 

3. The maximum amount of multi-family dwelling units permitted in Sub-
Area 4 shall not exceed 240 dwelling units. 

4. The several mature trees along Bowtown Road shall be preserved along 
with constructing a minimum 10 foot high mound with minimum 6 foot 
high evergreens planted in a soldier course manner along Bowtown Road 



to provide a consistent year round buffer. The subject mound shall wrap 
around the eastern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single 
family house. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 20    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-71    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:30 p.m.  
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE  
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON APPOXIMATELY 24.212 
ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-001-001) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE 
OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF 
THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-71 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-
01-001-001) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD 
JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown 
Road just east of the Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1395).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown 
Road just east of the Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  21    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-72    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE SEATTLE HOUSE 
APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 
519-444-01-001-001) ZONED R-6 AND B-3 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST 
OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-1 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 





































































































 ORDINANCE NO. 18-72 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR THE  SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 
519-444-01-001-001) ZONED R-6 AND B-3 PMU (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF 
BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN 
AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) zoned R-6 and B-3 (Multi-Family Residential District and Community 
Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the 
north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1396).   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) zoned R-6 and B-3 (Multi-Family Residential District and Community 
Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the 
north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The traffic impact study shall be approved by the City and the developer 
shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial obligations of 
the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County Engineer. 

3. The north/south access road and Bilmore Drive shall be constructed per 
the City Engineer. 



4. The emergency only access road from Bowtown Road to the apartment 
complex shall be constructed per the City Engineer and Fire 
Department. 

5. A bike path shall be conducted on the north side of Biltmore Drive per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027 and a sidewalk 
shall be required on the south side of Biltmore Drive. 

6. A sidewalk shall be constructed on the south side of Bowtown Road. 

7. The developer shall make a payment in lieu of constructing a sidewalk 
on the east side of the north/south connector road. The City Engineer 
shall determine the required payment in lieu prior to Final Development 
Plan approval. 

8. The density of the multi-family portion of the development (Sub-Area A) 
shall not exceed 240 units. 

9. The one and two bedroom apartment unit sizes shall range in size 
between a minimum 678 (one bedroom) to 933 (two bedroom) square 
feet. 

10. The height of the buildings shall not exceed 42 feet (to the peak of the 
eave) and shall not exceed 3 stories. 

11. The apartment building elevations fronting Bowntown Road and 
proposed Biltmore Drive shall have the majority of the elevation 
constructed of brick or stone with vinyl used as an accent material.  
Hardi plank or equivalent could be substituted for the vinyl siding to 
meet natural material requirements as well. Any limestone on the 
buildings shall be constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or 
equivalent as approved by staff. 

12. The trash compactor enclosure shall be constructed of brick or stone 
wall to match the buildings and have wood doors painted to match and 
shall be buffered form the residential property to the east,. 

13. The apartment and the commercial out lot frontage along the 
north/south access road and Biltmore Drive shall require street and 
shade trees along with a 2-3 foot high undulating mounding with 
landscaping (a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreen trees and shrubs). 

14. The several mature trees along Bowtown Road shall be preserved along 
with constructing a minimum 10 foot high mounding with minimum 6 
foot high evergreens planted in a soldier course manner along Bowtown 
Road to provide a consistent year round buffer. The subject mound shall 
wrap around the eastern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single 
family house. 

15. The parking islands within the apartment development shall be planted 
with street trees. 



16. All landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

17. The open space within the apartment development shall have additional 
amenities, detailed during Final Development Plan process including 
pavilions, benches, dog parks, recreational fields and the like. Any field 
space shall be flat and shall not provide storm water drains except at the 
edges of the area to eliminate catch basins being located in the middle of 
any field surface.   

18. Lighting plans that achieves compliance with the zoning code and 
approved development text that would need to be approved by the Chief 
Building Official shall be required with Final Development Plan 
submittal. 

19. A comprehensive sign plan that achieves compliance with the zoning 
code requirements, the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridors Plan shall be required with the Final 
Development Plan submittal. 

20. The garages shall not be rented out to any non-residents of the 
apartment complex or for any use or occupancy other than storage of 
vehicles. 

21. The private street names shall be submitted and approved by the City 
and other appropriate agencies.  

22. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the Fire 
Department and Public Works development final requirements after the 
final review is complete. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  22    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-73    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 
AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a 4-3 vote on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-73 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-
020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE 
GATE APARTMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission  at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Highpoint Place 
Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-
000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 
PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments (PC Case 2018-1402).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Rezoning 
Amendment for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 
(Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provision of the Development Text and any conditions 
of approval. 

2. Any revisions the public or private street layout shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 

3. The maximum amount of multi-family dwelling units permitted shall not 
exceed 160 dwelling units. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 



this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  23    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-74    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote 4-3 on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-74 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND LOCATED 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST 
OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 
519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1403). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of a Conditional Use 
Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located 
on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 24    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-75    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE 
APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-
442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote of 4-3 on 
August 1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 



N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 







































































































 ORDINANCE NO. 18-75 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU 
(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Highpoint 
Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-
020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side 
of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1404). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Preliminary 
Development Plan for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-
000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of 
Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The traffic impact study shall be approved by the City and the developer 
shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial obligations of 
the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County Engineer. 

3. Ferguson Avenue from Bowtown Road shall be extended north to the 
adjacent property line per the City Engineer. 

4. The developer shall dedicate the appropriate right-of-way and make a 
payment in lieu to be determined by the City Engineer for the Ferguson 



Avenue extension along the northern portion of the property that would 
be constructed when the adjacent properties are developed. 

5. A bike path shall be constructed on the east side of Ferguson Avenue per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027 and a side walk 
shall be required on the west side of Ferguson Avenue. 

6. A bike path shall be constructed on the north side of Bowtown Road per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027. 

7. The density of the multi-family portion of the development shall not 
exceed 160 units. 

8. The one and two bedroom apartment unit sizes shall range in size 
between a minimum 678 (one bedroom) to 933 (two bedroom) square 
feet. 

9. The height of the buildings shall not exceed 42 feet (to the peak of the 
eave) and shall not exceed 3 stories. 

10. The apartment building elevations shall have the majority of the 
elevation constructed of brick or stone with vinyl used as an accent 
material on the public view side of the building.  Hardi plank or 
equivalent could be substituted for the vinyl siding to meet natural 
material requirements as well. Any limestone on the buildings shall be 
constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved 
by staff. 

11. The Ferguson Avenue right-of-way shall be setback a minimum 20 feet 
from the residential property to the west, 

12. The trash compactor enclosure shall be constructed of brick or stone 
wall to match the buildings and have wood doors painted to match and 
shall be buffered form the residential property to the east,. 

13. The road frontage along Ferguson Avenue and Bowtown Road that is not 
adjacent to a single family property shall have a 2-3 foot high undulating 
mound with landscaping (a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreen trees 
and shrubs) 

14. A 5-6 foot high mound with landscaping and minimum 6 foot high 
evergreen trees planted in a soldier course manner shall be required  
along the east  and west side of Ferguson Avenue adjacent to the existing 
single family properties fronting Bowtown Road 

15. The parking islands within the apartment development shall be planted 
with street trees. 

16. All landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

17. The open space within the apartment development shall have more 
amenities including pavilions, benches, dog park, recreational fields and 



the like  and to ensure any field space is flat and does not provide storm 
water drains except at the edges of the area to eliminate catch basins 
being located in the middle of any playing surface.   

18. The tree preservation area shall be located within a permanent 
preservation easement with the appropriate language that would need to 
be reviewed and approved by staff and then be recorded at the County. 

19. Lighting plans that achieves compliance with the zoning code and 
approved development text that would need to be approved by the Chief 
Building Official shall be required with Final Development Plan 
submittal. 

20. A comprehensive sign plan that achieves compliance with the zoning 
code requirements, the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridors Plan shall be required with the Final 
Development Plan submittal. 

21. The private street names shall be submitted and approved by the City 
and other appropriate agencies.  

22. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the Fire 
Department and Public Works development final requirements after the 
final review is complete. 

23. An emergency access location shall be located through the Village Gate 
Apartments to the east if possible. If not possible another location shall 
be established and approved by the City Engineer and Fire Department 
prior to Final Development Plan submittal. 

24. The garages shall not be rented out to any non-residents of the 
apartment complex or for any use or occupancy other than storage of 
vehicles. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  25    DATE: 08/13/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-76    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean P. Stelzer, Director of Finance 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE RENOVATION OF  CITY HALL 
AND THE CITY HALL ANNEX AND TO MAKE IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PARKING 
LOT EAST OF THE CITY HALL ANNEX BUILDING. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City is providing renovations to the City Hall Annex, including complete 
renovation of the basement and first floor levels to be occupied by the Delaware 
Community Space, and mechanical, electrical, and structural improvements to 
the second floor to be utilized by City staff.  Upon further consideration, it has 
been recommended to finish the second floor space to enable occupancy by the 
City, to complete various relocation and security renovations to City Hall, and to 
make improvements to the parking lot east of the Annex building.  The Finance 
Committee reviewed the fiscal impact of making the additional improvements at 
their July 30, 2018 meeting and recommended that the supplemental 
appropriation be presented for City Council consideration.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
No appropriation was included in the 2018 budget 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Finance Committee – Approval  3-0 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
$777,600 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
Dean Stelzer, Director of Finance 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Go to Second Reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 











ORDINANCE NO. 18-76 
 

 AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 

ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE RENOVATION OF  
CITY HALL AND THE CITY HALL ANNEX AND TO 
MAKE IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PARKING LOT EAST 

OF THE CITY HALL ANNEX BUILDING. 
 

WHEREAS, the City is in the process of making improvements to the City 

Hall Annex in order to make the building usable for Delaware Community 
Space (formerly CoHatch) as a space for local entrepreneurs, and  

 
WHEREAS, City Council had previously approved Ordinance No. 18-26 

supplementing the 2018 Budget to provide for renovations to the City Hall 

Annex including complete renovation of the basement and first floor levels to be 
occupied by Delaware Community Space and mechanical, electrical, and 

structural improvements to the second floor to eventually be utilized by the 
City, and  

 

WHEREAS, upon further consideration it has been recommended to 
finish off the second floor space of the Annex to enable occupancy by the City,  
to complete various relocation and security renovations to City Hall, and to 

make improvements to the parking lot east of the Annex Building, and  
 

WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation to the 2018 budget will be 
necessary to fund these renovations. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

 SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Capital Improvement Fund $777,600 increasing the following 

accounts: 
 
 Annex Building Improvements (410-4118-5528)   $  231,000 

 City Hall Building Renovations (410-4118-5520)           218,000 
 Parking Lot Improvements (410-4118-5526)       328,600 

 
 SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 

of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 

law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 



 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 

      ABSTAIN ____ 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

 
 



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  26    DATE: 08/13/18 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 18- 77   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  

 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 

 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT THE PETITION FOR THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY COMPLIES 
AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 
349.03 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE AND TO FIX A DATE AND PLACE FOR A 

PUBLIC HEARING ON THAT PETITION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 

BACKGROUND: 
A New Community Authority (NCA) is a charge put on residents’ property tax bill 
to help pay for infrastructure in the authority area.  The charge is usually used 

as a tool to facilitate future development.   
 

The City has two existing NCAs, which were created to help finance 
infrastructure put in by the City after the formation of the NCA. When the 
infrastructure is paid off, the charges will be removed from the taxes in the 

existing NCAs. 
 
The City has experienced some issues with residents in the current NCAs.  For 

example, the charge is often a source of confusion for residents who do not 
understand what the charge pays for.  Some residents feel the charge is too high.  

Because it is based on millage (property tax value), owners of new houses are 
often surprised by the charge even though it was disclosed, because the tax rate 
on the auditor’s website is based on the value of the land when it was vacant.  

Finally, during the levy campaign, residents in the NCA indicated they felt their 



NCA charge should already cover roads and were therefore reluctant to approve 
additional taxes. 

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

Statutory process  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The petition anticipates 2250 new residents will reside in the district at full build 

out. The requested NCA would add a 7.5 mills charge to each parcel of property 
in the district.  This would result in a $.75 charge for each $1,000 of assessed 

valuation, which would appear on the residents’ property tax bill. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 

The present request being brought forward by the developer differs from our 
existing NCAs in the following ways. First, it would reimburse the developer as 

opposed to the City.  Second, the developer has indicated that it is intended to 
help finance amenities, but the majority of the items the developer would be 
reimbursed for through the charge are infrastructure items that traditionally are 

a developer’s responsibility to install. Third, part of the charge would go towards 
reimbursing the developer for infrastructure that has already been built, which 
does not fit with the City’s prior use of an NCA to finance future development.  

Finally, the proposed NCA has no set end date. 
 

PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is concerned that by adding a significant cost to the property tax bill of 
2250 new residents of the city, it will make it more difficult for city and school 

levies to pass.  In addition, based on the volume of calls generated by the 
existing NCAs, staff anticipates additional staff time will be required to help 

these new residents understand the charge.  Finally, staff believes approving 
this NCA will set a precedent for future NCA requests.  To the extent these 
expenses are related to amenities, they could be financed by a homeowners 

association (HOA) charge, which would make it clear what the charge is paying 
for and eliminate any confusion over perceived increased taxes.   

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-77  
 

AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT THE 
PETITION FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE 

TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY 
COMPLIES AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE WITH 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 349.03 OF 

THE OHIO REVISED CODE AND TO FIX A DATE 
AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THAT 
PETITION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, TERRA 

ALTA, LLC (the “Developer”), has filed a petition (the “Petition”) with Clerk of 
Council for the City of Delaware (the “City”) as required by Chapter 349.03(A) of 
the Ohio Revised Code, with that Petition being for the establishment of The 

Terra Alta Community Authority (the “Authority”) and its proposed new 
community district (the “District”); and   

 
WHEREAS, this Council comprises the “organizational board of 

commissioners” for the proposed Authority, as that term is defined in Section 

349.01(F) of the Ohio Revised Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the land to be included in the District is owned by or is under 

the control of the Developer within the meaning of Section 349.01(E) of the Ohio 
Revised Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, this Council has reviewed the Petition to determine whether it 

complies with the requirements of Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code as 

to form and substance; and 
  
WHEREAS, this Council desires to fix a time and place of a public hearing 

on the Petition, which public hearing will be held not less than 30 days nor more 
than 45 days from the date the Petition was filed with the Clerk of this Council, 

and desires that notice of that public hearing be given, all pursuant to Section 
349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio:  

 
 SECTION 1. This Council hereby finds and determines that the Petition 
complies as to form and substance with the requirements of Section 349.03 of 

the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 2. This Council will hold a public hearing on the Petition on 

Monday. August 13, 2018, commencing at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
at Delaware City Hall, One South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  



2 
 

 
 SECTION 3. The Clerk of Council arrange for notice of that public hearing 

by publication once each week for three consecutive weeks in a newspaper of 
general circulation in Delaware County in accordance with the requirements of 

Section 349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

SECTION 4. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council and any of its 
committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees 

that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in 
compliance with the law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
 SECTION 5. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 

safety, health, and welfare of the City and to timely advance consideration of the 
Petition of the Developer to enable the City to receive the full benefit of the 

proposed development.  
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:                   YEAS______   NAYS______ 

          
ABSTAIN______  

 

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:    YEAS _____   NAYS_____ 
 

ABSTAIN_______ 
 
PASSED:___________________ , 2018    YEAS______   NAYS_____ 

 
ABSTAIN_______ 

 

ATTEST:______________________   ______________________                                    
      CITY CLERK     MAYOR    

     

















































































































































































  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  27    DATE: 8/13/18 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 18-78    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  

 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 

 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 

TO PROVIDE FUNDING TO COMPLETE A TRAIL SEGMENT ON CHESHIRE 
ROAD. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The existing multi-use trail along Cheshire Road is missing a segment across 

three lots. One lot is in Liberty Township and the remaining two are in the City 
of Delaware. The previous lot owner did not support the construction of the 
missing segment and therefore it was omitted when the original trails were 

built. Since then, a new owner has purchased the lot and has requested the 
segment be built. Currently all three lot owners are in support of the trail. We 

have applied and were awarded a grant from Delaware County to construct this 
segment of trail. The estimate for construction is $49,995.00 and the grant 
awarded the maximum, 50% of the project, $24,997.50. The grant requires the 

project to be completed by the end of 2018. 
 
The trail segment is approximately 445 LF and would connect to existing trails 

at each end. The portion of the trail in Liberty Township is 265 LF and they are 
in support of the trail but are unable to allocate funds at this time.  

   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
An appropriation for this work was not included in the 2018 City Budget. 

 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 

Requires $24,997.50 allocation from the unencumbered balance of the Park 
Impact Fees Improvement Fund. 
 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 

PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 

   
ATTACHMENT(S) 

Cheshire Road Trail exhibit 
Multi-Use Trail Assistance Application 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-78 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 
2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO 

PROVIDE FUNDING TO COMPLETE A 
TRAIL SEGMENT ON CHESHIRE ROAD. 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that in 2018 the City of Delaware 
applied for and received a $24,997 Delaware County Trails Assistance grant for 
the Cheshire Road multi-use trail , and  

 
WHEREAS, the project will link existing neighborhoods, public parks, 

Source Point and businesses, and 
 
WHEREAS, the project will provide alternative transportation linkages, 

and 
 

WHEREAS, the 2018 Budget does not include an appropriation to cover 
the City’s match portion of this grant project.   

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Park Impact Fees Improvement Fund $24,998 increasing the 

following account: 
 
Trail Improvement Cheshire (491-4910-5550)  $   24,998 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 

this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 

formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



CHESHIRE RD

LIBERTY TW
P

CITY OF DELAW
ARE

L
I
B

E
R

T
Y

 
T

W
P

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E

FISHER

700 CHESHIRE RD

PROPOSED TRAIL:

±60 LF

BALLARD/CARPENTER

690 CHESHIRE RD

PROPOSED TRAIL:±105 LF

EXISTING TRAIL:±50 LF

MENGES

748 CHESHIRE RD

PROPOSED TRAIL: ±265 LF

LEGEND

MUNICIPAL/TOWNSHIP BOUNDARY

EXISTING TRAIL

PROPOSED TRAIL

RIGHT OF WAY

ASPHALT PATH SECTION

SCALE: NTS"

1

1

AGGREGATE BASE
3" ASPHALT CONCRETE
BASE, AC-20

1.5" ASPHALT CONCRETE
O.D.O.T. ITEM 448

1/4" PER FOOT 1/4" PER FOOT

3:1 MAX

6" 6"

EXTEND BASE 6" PAST
TRAIL EDGE

2" - #304

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
PER #203 ODOT OR
UNDISTURBED EARTH

O.D.O.T. ITEM 448

4'4'

AGGREGATE BASE
4" - #2's

NOTE: AGGREGATE BASE MAY SUBSTITUTE 6"
OF #304 BASE MATERIAL IF AREA REMAINS
DRY

CHESHIRE

ROAD TRAIL

DATE: JUNE 28, 2018

SHEET SIZE: 11 x 17

DELAWARE
CITYOF

EST 1808

OHIO

D

R

A

F

T

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'



Delaware County 
Multi-Use Trail Assistance Application 

Deadline: June 30, 2018

Page 1 of 5 
Multi-Use Trail Assistance Application 

APPLICANT:             Date: 

Address:  

City:    State:  Zip: 

Contact:   Phone (office): 

Title:     Phone (cell):  

Email:   

(Note: Contact should be available during business hours and be best to answer or coordinate a response to questions.) 

PROJECT NAME:  

Brief Project Description: 

How does this Project relate to the Delaware County Trail System Master Plan? 



Page 2 of 5 
Multi-Use Trail Assistance Application 

PROJECT FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Funding Amount Requested:  $      (*) 

Proposed Use for DCTC Funds: 

Project Estimated Costs  
(include an opinion of cost estimate signed/sealed/stamped by a registered professional engineer) 

Engineering:    $ 

Construction:  $ 

Right-of-way or easements:  $ 

Contingency:  $ % 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST:  $ 

Project Financial Resources 

Local Revenues: $ % 

Other Public Revenues: 
______________________ $ % 
______________________ $ % 
______________________ $ % 

* DCTC Funding Requested: $ % 

TOTAL FINANCIAL RESOURCES: $ % 
must equal 100% 

Does your community have a financial plan for maintenance of the trail? 
Please explain: 



Page 3 of 5 
Multi-Use Trail Assistance Application 

DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
(include a route map with property ownership identified, site photos and other appropriate info) 

Specific Location and Work to be completed (including begin and end termini): 

Length:   Width:   Number of properties intersecting trail: 

Have all necessary easements on private property been secured? □ N/A □ Yes □ No
Is the trail located within existing right-of-way?   □ Yes □ No

Is the trail part of a preserve, natural or scenic corridor? □ Yes □ No

Are there constructability issues or environmental concerns? □ Yes □ No
Please explain how these will be addressed. 

Does this trail connect to an existing trail? □ Yes □ No
Is the trail part of (or link to) the Central Ohio Greenway Trail system? □ Yes □ No
Is the trail part of (or link to) the Delaware County Trail System Master Plan? □ Yes □ No 
If yes to any of the above three questions, please explain: 

Does the trail provide a transportation alternative along with recreation? □ Yes □ No
Does the trail connect destination locations (schools, parks, retail, restaurants, etc.)? □ Yes □ No 
Please explain: 



Page 4 of 5 
Multi-Use Trail Assistance Application 

Please explain the Economic Opportunities this project may provide: 

Please explain the Health Benefits this project may provide: 

PROJECT SCHEDULE   (Enter dates as mm/dd/yy:) 

Engineering/Design  Begin date:   End Date: 
Right-of-way/Easement Acquisition Begin date:   End Date: 
Bid Advertisement and Award Begin date:   End Date: 
Construction  Begin date:   End Date: 
When Funds from DCTC will be needed Begin date:   End Date: 

SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONS 

Has your community adopted a Local Trail Plan?  □ Yes □ No

Does your community have a Complete Streets policy or standards? □ Yes □ No

Are trails part of your community’s zoning and development requirements? □ Yes □ No

Is there documented public support for the project? □ Yes □ No
Please explain: 

Is there developer involvement in the project? □ Yes □ No
Please explain: 



Page 5 of 5 
Multi-Use Trail Assistance Application 

ADDITIONAL 
Please provide any additional information that you feel will be important for the committee 
to consider prior to making a decision to recommend funding for this project:  
(i.e. copies of Local Trail Plan, Complete Streets info, zoning/development documentation, map 
showing connection to destination locations or other trails, impact on school zones, evidence of 
easements/right-of-way, proof of other public funding, legislation passed regarding this project, etc.) 

APPLICANT CERTIFICATION 
The undersigned certifies: (1) he/she is legally authorized to request and accept financial 
assistance from Delaware County; (2) to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, all 
representations that are part of this application are true and correct; (3) all official 
documents and commitments of the applicant that are part of this application have been 
duly authorized by the governing body of the applicant; and, (4) should the requested 
financial assistance be provided, the applicant will comply with all assurances required by 
Ohio law.  

Certifying Representative:    
(Printed form, type or print Name and Title) 

Original Signature / Date Signed: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DCTC Use Only 
Project # ________________ Population Proximity    Recommend Project:  YES  or  NO 
Date submitted: ____________ 1 miles:  _________    Amount funded: ____________ 
Date reviewed:  ____________ 2 miles:  _________    BCC Resolution: ____________ 



City Manager Report 20180813 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: August 6, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 July 16 
 * Rotary 
 July 17 
 * Strand Board Meeting 
 July 20 
 * Ironman Update Meeting 
 July 23 
 * Rotary 
 * Council Meeting 
 July 24 
  * Summer Soiree at SourcePoint 
 July 25 
 * Records Commission Meeting 
 * DKMM Recycling Discussion 
 July 26 
 * Delaware Northern NCA Meeting 
 July 27 
 * Supplies for Scholars 
 July 29 
 * IronMan 
 July 30 
 * Delaware South NCA Meeting 
 * Finance Meeting 
 July 31 
 * CAMS Ribbon Cutting 
  
  



City Manager Report 20180813 

  



August 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
   1 2 3 4 

   Planning 7pm    

5 6 7                                       8 9 10 11 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities 7pm-Cancelled 
BZA 7pm 
Cancelled 

   

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
 Council 7pm      

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
 Parking & Safety 7pm  HPC 7pm    

26 27 28 29 30 31  
 Council 7pm Shade Tree 7pm     

       
       

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – August 13, 2018 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2018 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
City of Columbus Dept Public 
Safety 

Training Agreement $5,000 Police 
 

Performance Racing Industry 
Magazine 

Advertising with Performance  $8,848.50 Economic Dev 

Shelly Materials Inc. Asphalt, Stone and concrete 
materials for roadway repairs 

Budgeted 
$165,000 

Public Works 

Burgess & Niple, Inc. Slack Road Waterline design for 
AEP Service Center 

$51,900 Public Utilities 

YMCA Annual YMCA management 
agreement 

$198,802 Parks 

Strawser Paving Co. OPWC Pavement Maintenance 
Program 

$809,502.68 Public Works 

National Lime & Stone Stone Contract for base roadway 
repairs 

Budgeted 
$10,000 

Public Works 

 


	01 20180813 council agenda.pdf
	02 20180723 council minutes
	03 20180711 finance minutes
	04 20180627 hpc minutes
	05 20171213 records commission
	06 20180419 airport meeting
	07 20180718 planning minutes
	08 180808 AccessDelaware Presentation
	09 factsheet ord 18-64 , 2018-1462 CUP Marathon Gas Station
	10 ord 18-64 , 2018-1462 CUP  Marathon Gas Station
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-64
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	11 PC 2018-1462-1718 Marathon Gas CUP
	12 MYSTIC TREX APP
	13 Mystic Golf Staff Report
	14 UPDATE memo Wesleyan Inn
	15 Wesleyan Inn Exhibit - NEW
	Sheets and Views
	Layout


	16 fact sheet ord 18 -50 , rezone 2018-1026 The Weselyan Inn
	17 ord 18 -50 , 2018-1026- rezone The Wesleyan Inn
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-50

	18 factsheet ord 18-51, CUP 2018-1027 The Weselyan Inn
	19 ord 18-51 , CUP 2018-1027- The Wesleyan Inn
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-51

	20 fact sheet ord 18-52, pdp 2018-1028 The Weselyan Inn
	21  PC 2018-1026-1028 Manos Properties - Copy
	22 ord 18-52, pdp 2018-1028- The Wesleyan Inn
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-52

	23  PUBLIC
	24  20180606 planning wolber public comment - Copy
	25 Maggart email Wesleyan Inn
	26 Tobin email wesleyan inn Public Comment
	27 Flyer from Montrose Ave
	28 PUBLIC
	29 FW_ Wesleyan Inn - Response to Public Comment
	30 Wesleyan Inn Market Study
	1. Cover Letter Re Study 235 W William St
	2. Summary Report 235 W. William St 071618
	3. Wesleyan Inn - Community Profile
	4.  Wesleyan Inn - Business Summary
	5. Wesleyan Inn - Retail MarketPlace Profile
	6. Wesleyan Inn - Retail Market Potential Report

	31 fact sheet ord 18- 65, Glenross North Sections 2-4 FDP
	32 ord 18-65, Glenross North Sections 2-4  FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-65
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	33 fact sheet ord 18-66, Glenross North Section 2 FSP
	34 ord 18-66, Glenross North Sections 2 FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-66
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	35 fact sheet ord 18-67 Glenross North Section 3 FSP
	36 ord 18- 67,  Glenross North Section  3 FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-67
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	37 fact sheet ord 18-68,  Glenross North Sec 4
	38 2018-1731,33,35,37 Glenross North Sec 2-4 Staff Report
	39 ord 18-68,  Glenross North Section  4 FSP
	40 fact sheet ord 18-69 , rezone  Morgan
	41 2018-1589 morgan SR 521 rezoning staff report
	42 ord 18 -69 , Rezone  Morgan SR 521
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-69
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	43 fact sheet ord 18- 70, rezone Seatttle House Apts
	44 ord 18-70 , rezone Seattle House
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-70
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	45 fact sheet ord 18-71 , CUP Seatttle House Apts
	46 ord 18-71 , CUP Seattle House apt
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-71
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	47 fact sheet ord 18-72 , PDP Seatttle House Apts
	48 2018-1394-1396 seattle House apartment staff report
	49 ord 18-72 , PDP Seattle House apt
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-72
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	50 fact sheet ord 18- 73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	51 ord 18-73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-73
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	52 fact sheet ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	53 ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-74
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	54 fact sheet ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	55 2018-1402-1404 highpoint place apartments staff report
	56 ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-75
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	57 fact sheet ord 18-76 - City Hall Annex Supplemental
	58 Building Impt Supplemental Documentation
	59 Ord 18-76, City Hall Security Rennovations
	60 fact sheet Terra Alta NCA
	61 ord 18-77 Sufficiency of Petition and Scheduling Hearing (Terra Alta CA)
	62 Terra Alta Petition - Packet
	63 Cheshire Trail fact sheet
	64 ord 18-78 Cheshire Road Trail supplemental
	65 Cheshire Rd Trail
	Sheets and Views
	West Gap Fill-Cheshire Rd Trail


	66 Multi-Use-Trail-Assistance-Application-2018
	67 city managers report 20180813
	68 August Calendar 2018
	69 contract approval 20180723
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – August 13, 2018
	2018
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Police
	$5,000
	City of Columbus Dept Public Safety
	Training Agreement

	Economic Dev
	$8,848.50
	Performance Racing Industry Magazine
	Advertising with Performance 

	Public Works
	Budgeted
	Shelly Materials Inc.
	Asphalt, Stone and concrete materials for roadway repairs

	Public Utilities
	$51,900
	Burgess & Niple, Inc.
	Slack Road Waterline design for AEP Service Center

	Parks
	$198,802
	YMCA
	Annual YMCA management agreement

	Public Works
	$809,502.68
	Strawser Paving Co.
	OPWC Pavement Maintenance Program

	Public Works
	Budgeted
	National Lime & Stone
	Stone Contract for base roadway repairs



	APPLICANT: City of Delaware/Liberty Township
	Date: 6.29.18
	Address: 440 East William St
	City: Delaware 
	State: OH
	Zip: 43015
	Contact: Ted Miller
	Phone office: 740.203.1452
	Title: Parks and Natural Resource Director
	Phone cell: 740.726.9933
	Email: tmiller@delawareohio.net
	PROJECT NAME: Cheshire Road Multi-Use Trail
	Brief Project Description: The proposed project is a joint application by the City of Delaware and Liberty Township to fill a gap along the Cheshire Road multi-use trail. The missing 445 feet of trail would complete a trail that runs from U.S. 23 at the west end, to the RR tracks at Gregory Road. The gap would complete a 2 mile length of trail along Cheshire Road.We are asking for a variance from the the 10' trail width to 8' width. The 8' width matches up with the existing ends of the trail. The easement could be large enough to accomodate a 10' trail in the future if needed. The trail is also close enough to Cheshire Road that emergency vehicles could easily access any portion of the project if needed.
	How does this Project relate to the Delaware County Trail System Master Plan: When complete, this multi-use trail would complete a Priority Trail Corridor identified in the Delaware County Trail System Master Plan. This connection is important for connecting a growing area of the city/county to many important resources including SourcePoint, Olentangy Berlin schools, Glenross Park and Alum Creek State Park. It is part of a priority east-west connector that have been very difficult to establish.
	RESET: 
	Request: 24997.50
	Proposed Use for DCTC Funds ie funds match for other grants construction maintenance repairs other: To construct +/-445 lineal feet of trail, earthwork and prepare easements.
	Other Public Revenues 1: 
	Other Public Revenues 2: 
	Other Public Revenues 3: 
	ENG: 0
	CON: 41300.00
	RW: 2500.00
	contingency: 6195.00
	ESTIMATE: 49995
	local: 24997.50
	OPR1: 
	OPR2: 
	OPR3: 
	undefined_10: 24997.5
	undefined_11: 49995
	percent contg: 14.143835616438356
	local%: 50
	OPR1%: 0
	OPR2%: 0
	OPR3%: 0
	DCTC%: 50
	TOTAL%: 100
	maintenance: Yes, the City of Delaware will assume maintenance of the multi-use trail, including the portion in Liberty Township. We currently have all our trails on a 6-8 year cycle for sealing and 20+ year cycle for resurfacing. We currently maintain each end of the trail so adding this segment to the maintenance plan could be included in future maintenance planning.
	sumofthree: 43800
	Specific Location and Work to be completed including begin and end termini: The proposed trail segment, on the west end, would extend the existing trail located on the Ballard/Carpenter parcel (parcel number 41941004006000) to the east to the SourcePoint facility (parcel number  41941004002000).
	Length: +/-445' 
	Width: 8 feet
	Number of properties intersecting trail: 3
	NA: Off
	esmt: No
	rw: No_2
	corridor: No_3
	env: No_4
	Please explain how these will be addressed: The easements and/or right of way areas have not been secured but the City has spoken with all three property owners regarding the construction of the trail and they have all been agreeable to completing this project. This project was initiated by one of the property owners who desired to have the segment completed. The trail is not locate in the right-of-way and securing easements has been included in the cost estimate. The trail is on flat ground and will require drainage improvements.
	ex trail: Yes_5
	cog: Yes_6
	master: Yes_7
	If yes to any of the above three questions please explain: The trail does connect to existing trails at each end and would fill an existing void. The trail is not defined as a Trail of Regional significance on the Central Ohio Greenway (COG) Trail system but is planned to link to the Olentangy River trail which is a primary COG trail . The trail is part of the Delaware County Trail System Master Plan and is listed as a Priority Trail Corridor. This link will complete a two mile multi-use trail segment in this corridor.
	transport: Yes_8
	destinations: Yes_9
	Please explain_2: The trail does provide a transportation alternative by filling the gap and completing a 2 mile length of trail that provides an east-west connector to growing residential community. The completed trail would also provide access to the Glenn Pkwy. trail which is a major north-south corridor. The destination points directly linked with this project include the SourcePoint senior center and Cheshire Park. Indirectly via the Glenn Pkwy trail, this project will link residents with Glenross Park, Ohio Health campus, Delaware Career Center South Campus and Cheshire Elementary School.
	Please explain the Economic Opportunities this project may provide: The current economic benefits are minimal but potentially have value when commercial areas to the west along U.S. 23 develop. This corridor will directly connect to the future district and provide active transportation routes to thefuture businesses in this area. 
	Please explain the Health Benefits this project may provide: The health benefits are many as this project will connect residents to local parks and an extensive network of trails along Cheshire Road and Glenn Pkwy. The local destination points such as SourcePoint and the Ohio Health facility offer opportunities for expanded wellness and senior programming that can utilize the connected active transportation routes. In addition, the residential area will connect the youth through active transportation routes including several neighborhood parks.
	Begin date: 
	End Date: 
	Begin date_2: 
	End Date_2: 
	Begin date_3: 
	End Date_3: 
	Begin date_4: 
	End Date_4: 
	Begin date_5: 
	End Date_5: 
	local plan: Yes_10
	complete: Yes_11
	zoning: Yes_12
	support: Yes_13
	Please explain_3: The City of Delaware has adopted a Bike and Pedestrian plan that recognizes this route as a priority active transportation route. The Olentangy Powell and Liberty (OPAL) group has identified this corridor as a primary connection route in the township. The City of Delaware is currently working with MORPC to create a complete streets policy, Liberty Township has adopted a complete streets policy. 
	undefined_24: No_14
	Please explain_4: This project is resident driven and would be administered by the City of Delaware.
	easementsrightofway proof of other public funding legislation passed regarding this project etc: Please see attachments.Cheshire Road TrailLiberty Twp OPAL PlanCost Estimate
	Certifying Representative: Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director


